AETNA INC /PA/
Form S-4/A

October 17, 2012
Table of Contents

Table of Contents

Edgar Filing: AETNA INC /PA/ - Form S-4/A

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 17, 2012

Registration No. 333-184041

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

AMENDMENT NO. 1
TO
FORM S-4

REGISTRATION STATEMENT

UNDER

THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

Aetna Inc.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)



Edgar Filing: AETNA INC /PA/ - Form S-4/A

Pennsylvania 6324 23-2229683
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (Primary Standard Industrial (LR.S. Employer

Incorporation or Organization) Classification Code Number)

151 Farmington Avenue

Identification Number)

Hartford, CT 06156
(860) 273-0123

(Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Registrant s Principal Executive Offices)

WILLIAM J. CASAZZA
Senior Vice President and General Counsel
Aetna Inc.
151 Farmington Avenue
Hartford, CT 06156
(860) 273-0123

(Name, Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Agent For Service)

Copies to:
David L. Caplan David A. Katz Bob F. Thompson

H. Oliver Smith

Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP

450 Lexington Avenue

New York, New York 10017

Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz

51 West 52nd Street

New York, New York 10019

(212) 403-2000

Bass, Berry & Sims PLC

150 Third Avenue South

Nashville, Tennessee 37201

(615) 742-6200

(212) 450-4000

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale of the securities to the public: As soon as practicable after the effective date of this registration

statement and completion of the merger of Jaguar Merger Subsidiary, Inc. ( Merger Sub ), a wholly owned subsidiary of Aetna Inc. ( Aetna ), with and into
Coventry Health Care, Inc. ( Coventry ), as described in the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of August 19, 2012, among Aetna, Merger Sub and Coventry,
as amended, and as may be further amended.

Table of Contents 2



Edgar Filing: AETNA INC /PA/ - Form S-4/A

If the securities being registered on this form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General
Instruction G, check the following box. ~

If this form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act ),
check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. ~

If this form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration
statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the
definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act ).

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer ~

Non-accelerated filer ~ (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company
If applicable, place an X in the box to designate the appropriate rule provision relied upon in conducting this transaction:

Exchange Act Rule 13e-4(i) (Cross-Border Issuer Tender Offer) ~

Exchange Act Rule 14d-1(d) (Cross-Border Third-Party Tender Offer) ~

The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the Registrant shall
file a further amendment which specifically states that this Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the
Securities Act of 1933 or until the Registration Statement shall become effective on such date as the Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a),
may determine.
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Information contained herein is subject to completion or amendment. A registration statement relating to these securities has been filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These securities may not be sold nor may offers to buy be accepted prior to the time the
registration statement becomes effective. This proxy statement/prospectus shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an
offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of these securities in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful.

PRELIMINARY SUBJECT TO COMPLETION DATED OCTOBER 17, 2012

MERGER PROPOSAL YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT
October 17, 2012
Dear Coventry Health Care, Inc. Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend a special meeting of stockholders of Coventry, to be held on November 21, 2012, at the offices of Bass, Berry & Sims PLC
located at 150 Third Avenue South, Suite 2800, Nashville, Tennessee 37201, at 9:00 a.m., local time. At the Coventry special meeting, you will be asked to adopt
the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of August 19, 2012, as amended, and as may be further amended, which provides for a merger in which Coventry will
become a wholly owned subsidiary of Aetna Inc. Coventry s board of directors unanimously determined that the merger agreement, the merger and the other
transactions contemplated by the merger agreement are advisable for, fair to and in the best interests of Coventry and its stockholders and unanimously approved
the merger agreement, the merger and the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

If the merger is completed, you will have the right to receive, in exchange for each share of Coventry common stock you own immediately prior to the merger,
$27.30 in cash, without interest, and 0.3885 of an Aetna common share. Based on the number of shares of Coventry common stock (including restricted shares)
outstanding as of October 15, 2012, and the number of Aetna common shares outstanding as of October 15, 2012, it is expected that, immediately after completion
of the merger, former Coventry stockholders will own approximately 13.5% of the outstanding Aetna common shares. The Coventry common stock and the Aetna
common shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbols CVH and AET , respectively.

We cannot complete the merger unless Coventry stockholders adopt the merger agreement. Your vote is very important, regardless of the number of shares
you own. Whether or not you expect to attend the Coventry special meeting in person, please vote or otherwise submit a proxy to vote your shares as
promptly as possible so that your shares may be represented and voted at the Coventry special meeting.

In addition, at the Coventry special meeting you also will be asked to approve the adjournment of the Coventry special meeting under certain circumstances and to
approve, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, the golden parachute compensation payments that will or may be paid by Coventry to its named executive officers in
connection with the merger.

The Coventry board of directors unanimously recommends that Coventry stockholders vote FOR the adoption of the merger agreement, FOR the
adjournment of the Coventry special meeting if necessary to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes to adopt the merger agreement at
the time of the Coventry special meeting and FOR the golden parachute compensation proposal.

The accompanying proxy statement/prospectus provides important information regarding the Coventry special meeting and a detailed description of the merger
agreement, the merger, the adjournment proposal and the golden parachute compensation proposal. We urge you to read the accompanying proxy
statement/prospectus (and any documents incorporated by reference into the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus) carefully. Please pay particular
attention to the section entitled _Risk Factors beginning on page 45. You can also obtain information about Aetna and Coventry from documents that Coventry
and Aetna previously have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

If you have any questions about the merger or about how to vote your shares, please contact Coventry Investor Relations at (301) 581-5430 or write to Coventry
Health Care, Inc., 6720-B Rockledge Drive, Suite 700, Bethesda, MD 20817, Attention: Investor Relations.

We hope to see you at the Coventry special meeting and look forward to the successful completion of the merger.
Sincerely,

ALLEN F. WISE
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of the securities to be issued under
the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus or determined that the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus is accurate or complete. Any
representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The accompanying proxy statement/prospectus is dated October 17, 2012, and is first being mailed to Coventry stockholders on or about October 19, 2012.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The accompanying document is the proxy statement of Coventry Health Care, Inc. for its special meeting of stockholders and the prospectus of
Aetna Inc. for its common shares to be issued as consideration in the merger. The accompanying proxy statement/prospectus incorporates
important business and financial information about Aetna Inc. and Coventry Health Care, Inc. from documents that are not included in or
delivered with the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus. This information is available to you without charge upon your request. You can
obtain documents incorporated by reference into the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus (other than certain exhibits or schedules to these
documents) by requesting them in writing or by telephone from Aetna Inc. or Coventry Health Care, Inc. at the following addresses and
telephone numbers:

Aetna Inc. Coventry Health Care, Inc.
151 Farmington Avenue 6720-B Rockledge Drive, Suite 700
Hartford, CT 06156 Bethesda, MD 20817
Attention: Investor Relations Attention: Investor Relations
Telephone: (860) 273-8204 Telephone: (301) 581-5430

In addition, if you have questions about the merger or the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus, would like additional copies of the
accompanying proxy statement/prospectus or need to obtain proxy cards or other information related to the proxy solicitation, please contact
MacKenzie Partners, Inc., the proxy solicitor for Coventry Health Care, Inc., toll-free at (800) 322-2885 or collect at (212) 929-5500. You will
not be charged for any of these documents that you request.

If you would like to request documents, please do so by November 14, 2012, in order to receive them before the Coventry special
meeting.

See Where You Can Find More Information beginning on page 152 of the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus for further information.
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NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS OF
COVENTRY HEALTH CARE, INC.
TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 21, 2012
To the Stockholders of Coventry Health Care, Inc.:

A special meeting of stockholders of Coventry Health Care, Inc. will be held on November 21, 2012, at the offices of Bass, Berry & Sims PLC
located at 150 Third Avenue South, Suite 2800, Nashville, Tennessee 37201, at 9:00 a.m., local time, for the following purposes:

to consider and vote on a proposal to adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of August 19, 2012, as amended, and as may
be further amended, among Aetna Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation, Jaguar Merger Subsidiary, Inc., a Delaware corporation and
wholly owned subsidiary of Aetna, and Coventry, pursuant to which Jaguar Merger Subsidiary, Inc. will be merged with and into
Coventry, and Coventry will continue as the surviving corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Aetna (a copy of the merger
agreement is attached as Annex A to the proxy statement/prospectus accompanying this notice);

to consider and vote on a proposal to approve the adjournment of the Coventry special meeting if necessary to solicit additional
proxies if there are not sufficient votes to adopt the merger agreement at the time of the Coventry special meeting; and

to consider and vote on a proposal to approve, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, the golden parachute compensation payments that
will or may be paid by Coventry to its named executive officers in connection with the merger.
The Coventry board of directors has fixed the close of business on October 15, 2012, as the record date for determination of the stockholders
entitled to vote at the Coventry special meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the Coventry special meeting. Only stockholders of
record at the record date are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Coventry special meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the
Coventry special meeting. A complete list of stockholders entitled to vote at the Coventry special meeting will be available for a period of ten
days prior to the Coventry special meeting at the offices of Coventry, located at 6720-B Rockledge Drive, Suite 700, Bethesda, Maryland 20817,
and at the offices of Bass, Berry & Sims PLC located at 150 Third Avenue South, Suite 2800, Nashville, Tennessee 37201, for inspection by any
stockholder, for any purpose germane to the Coventry special meeting, during usual business hours. The stockholder list also will be available at
the Coventry special meeting for examination by any stockholder present at the Coventry special meeting.

If you hold shares in your name at the record date, please be prepared to provide proper identification, such as a driver s license, to gain
admission to the Coventry special meeting.

If you are a beneficial owner of Coventry common stock held in street name, meaning that your shares are held by a broker, bank or other holder
of record, at the record date, in addition to proper identification, you will also need to provide proof of ownership at the record date to be

admitted to the Coventry special meeting. A brokerage statement or letter from a bank or broker are examples of proof of ownership. If you want

to vote your shares of Coventry common stock held in street name in person at the Coventry special meeting, you will have to get a written
proxy in your name from the broker, bank or other holder of record who holds your shares.

Adoption of the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the shares of Coventry common stock outstanding
and entitled to vote on the proposal. Adoption of the other proposals to be
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presented at the Coventry special meeting requires the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the shares of Coventry common stock present
in person or represented by proxy at the Coventry special meeting and entitled to vote on the proposal. After careful consideration, the
Coventry board of directors unanimously determined that the merger agreement, the merger and the other transactions contemplated
by the merger agreement are advisable for, fair to and in the best interests of Coventry and its stockholders and unanimously adopted
and approved the merger agreement, the merger and the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement and unanimously
recommends that Coventry stockholders vote FOR the adoption of the merger agreement, FOR the adjournment of the Coventry
special meeting if necessary to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes to adopt the merger agreement at the time of the
Coventry special meeting and FOR the golden parachute compensation proposal.

By order of the Board of Directors,
SHIRLEY R. SMITH

Secretary

Bethesda, Maryland

October 17, 2012
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YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT!

WHETHER OR NOT YOU EXPECT TO ATTEND THE COVENTRY SPECIAL MEETING IN PERSON, WE URGE YOU TO
SUBMIT YOUR PROXY AS PROMPTLY AS POSSIBLE (1) VIA THE INTERNET, (2) BY TELEPHONE OR (3) BY MARKING,
SIGNING AND DATING THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AND RETURNING IT IN THE POSTAGE-PAID ENVELOPE
PROVIDED. IF YOU ATTEND THE COVENTRY SPECIAL MEETING AND WISH TO VOTE YOUR SHARES IN PERSON, YOU
MAY DO SO AT ANY TIME PRIOR TO YOUR PROXY BEING EXERCISED. You may revoke your proxy or change your vote at any
time before the Coventry special meeting. If your shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other fiduciary, please follow the instructions
on the voting instruction form furnished to you by such record holder.

We urge you to read the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus, including all documents incorporated by reference into the accompanying
proxy statement/prospectus, and its annexes carefully and in their entirety. If you have any questions concerning the merger agreement, the
merger, the adjournment vote, the advisory (non-binding) vote on the golden parachute compensation payments that will or may be paid by
Coventry to its named executive officers in connection with the merger, the Coventry special meeting or the accompanying proxy
statement/prospectus, would like additional copies of the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus or need help voting your shares of Coventry
common stock, please contact:

MacKenzie Partners, Inc.
105 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10016
Telephone (Toll-Free): (800) 322-2885
Telephone (Collect): (212) 929-5500
Email: proxy @mackenziepartners.com
or
Coventry Health Care, Inc.
6720-B Rockledge Drive, Suite 700
Bethesda, MD 20817
Attention: Investor Relations

Telephone: (301) 581-5430
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER AND THE COVENTRY SPECIAL MEETING

The following are some questions that you, as a stockholder of Coventry Health Care, Inc., which is referred to in this proxy
statement/prospectus as Coventry, may have regarding the merger, the adjournment proposal, the golden parachute compensation proposal
and the Coventry special meeting and brief answers to those questions. You are urged to read carefully this proxy statement/prospectus and the
other documents referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus in their entirety because this section may not provide all of the information that is
important to you with respect to the merger, the adjournment proposal, the golden parachute compensation proposal and the Coventry
special meeting. Additional important information is contained in the annexes to, and the documents incorporated by reference into, this proxy
statement/prospectus.

Q: Why am I receiving this document?

A:  Aetna Inc., which is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as Aetna, and Coventry have agreed to a merger, pursuant to which
Coventry will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Aetna and will no longer be a publicly held corporation in a transaction that is
referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the merger. In order to complete the merger, Coventry stockholders must vote to adopt the
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of August 19, 2012, among Aetna, Coventry and Merger Sub, as amended by Amendment No. 1
dated as of October 17, 2012, and as may be further amended, which is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the merger
agreement, and Coventry is holding a special meeting of stockholders to obtain that stockholder approval. Coventry stockholders will also
be asked to approve, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, the golden parachute compensation payments that will or may be paid by
Coventry to its named executive officers in connection with the merger.

In the merger, in addition to the payment of cash, Aetna will issue Aetna common shares as part of the consideration to be paid to holders of

Coventry common stock. This document is being delivered to you as both a proxy statement of Coventry and a prospectus of Aetna in

connection with the merger. It is the proxy statement by which the Coventry board of directors is soliciting proxies from you to vote at the

Coventry special meeting, or at any adjournment or postponement of the Coventry special meeting, on the adoption of the merger agreement, the

approval of the adjournment of the Coventry special meeting under certain circumstances and the approval, on an advisory (non-binding) basis,

of the golden parachute compensation payments that will or may be paid by Coventry to its named executive officers in connection with the
merger. It is also the prospectus by which Aetna will issue Aetna common shares to you in the merger.

Q:  What will happen in the merger?

A:  In the merger, Jaguar Merger Subsidiary, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Aetna that is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as
Merger Sub, will be merged with and into Coventry. Coventry will be the surviving corporation in the merger and will be a wholly owned
subsidiary of Aetna following completion of the merger and will no longer be a publicly held corporation.

Q: What will I receive in the merger?

A:  If the merger is completed, each of your shares of Coventry common stock automatically will be cancelled and converted into the right to
receive $27.30 in cash, without interest, and 0.3885 of an Aetna common share. Each Coventry stockholder will receive cash for any
fractional Aetna common share that the stockholder would otherwise receive in the merger.

Based on the closing price of Aetna common shares on the New York Stock Exchange on August 17, 2012, the last trading day before the public

announcement of the merger agreement, the merger consideration represented approximately $42.08 in value for each share of Coventry

common stock. Based on the closing price of Aetna common shares on the New York Stock Exchange on October 15, 2012, the most recent
practicable trading day prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, the merger consideration represented approximately $44.36 in value
for each share of Coventry common stock. Because Aetna will issue a fixed fraction of an Aetna common share in exchange for each share
of Coventry common stock, the value of the stock portion of the merger consideration that Coventry stockholders will
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receive in the merger will depend on the market price of Aetna common shares at the time the merger is completed. The market price of
Aetna common shares when Coventry stockholders receive those shares after the merger is completed could be greater than, less than
or the same as the market price of Aetna common shares on the date of this proxy statement/prospectus or at the time of the Coventry
special meeting.

Q: What happens if the merger is not completed?

A:  If the merger agreement is not adopted by Coventry stockholders or if the merger is not completed for any other reason, you will not
receive any payment for your shares of Coventry common stock in connection with the merger. Instead, Coventry will remain an
independent public company and its common stock will continue to be listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange. If the merger
agreement is terminated under specified circumstances, Coventry may be required to pay Aetna a termination fee of $167.5 million and, if
the merger is terminated under certain other circumstances, Aetna may be required to pay Coventry a termination fee of $450.0 million.
See The Merger Agreement Termination Fees and Expenses beginning on page 117 of this proxy statement/prospectus for a more detailed
discussion of the termination fees.

Q: What am I being asked to vote on?

A:  Coventry stockholders are being asked to vote on the following proposals:

to adopt the merger agreement, a copy of which is attached as Annex A to this proxy statement/prospectus;

to approve the adjournment of the Coventry special meeting if necessary to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes
to adopt the merger agreement at the time of the Coventry special meeting; and

to approve, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, the golden parachute compensation payments that will or may be paid by Coventry to
its named executive officers in connection with the merger.
The adoption of the merger agreement by Coventry stockholders is a condition to the obligations of Coventry and Aetna to complete the merger.
Neither the approval of the proposal to adjourn the Coventry special meeting, if necessary, nor the approval of the golden parachute
compensation proposal is a condition to the obligations of Coventry or Aetna to complete the merger.

Q: Does Coventry s board of directors recommend that stockholders adopt the merger agreement?

A:  Yes. Coventry s board of directors unanimously determined that the merger agreement, the merger and the other transactions contemplated
by the merger agreement are advisable for, fair to and in the best interests of Coventry and its stockholders and unanimously approved the
merger agreement, the merger and the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement. The Coventry board of directors
unanimously recommends that you vote  FOR the adoption of the merger agreement at the Coventry special meeting. See Proposal I: The
Merger Coventry Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the Coventry Board of Directors that Coventry Stockholders Adopt the
Merger Agreement beginning on page 68 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Q: Does Coventry s board of directors recommend that stockholders approve the adjournment of the Coventry special meeting, if
necessary?
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A:  Yes. Coventry s board of directors unanimously recommends that you vote FOR the proposal to adjourn the Coventry special meeting if
necessary to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes to adopt the merger agreement at the time of the Coventry special
meeting. See Proposal II: Adjournment of the Coventry Special Meeting beginning on page 130 of this proxy statement/prospectus.
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Q: Whatis golden parachute compensation and why am I being asked to vote on it?

A:  The Securities and Exchange Commission has adopted rules that require Coventry to seek an advisory (non-binding) vote on golden
parachute compensation. Golden parachute compensation is certain compensation that is tied to or based on the merger and that will or
may be paid by Coventry to its named executive officers in connection with the merger. This proposal is referred to in this proxy
statement/prospectus as the golden parachute compensation proposal.

Q: Does Coventry s board of directors recommend that stockholders approve the golden parachute compensation proposal?

A:  Yes. The Coventry board of directors unanimously recommends that you vote FOR the proposal to approve the golden parachute
compensation payments that will or may be paid by Coventry to its named executive officers in connection with the merger. See Proposal
III: Advisory Vote On Golden Parachute Compensation beginning on page 131 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Q: What happens if the golden parachute compensation is not approved?

A: Approval of the golden parachute compensation is not a condition to completion of the merger. The vote is an advisory vote and is not
binding. If the merger is completed, Coventry may pay golden parachute compensation to its named executive officers in connection with
the merger even if Coventry stockholders fail to approve the golden parachute compensation proposal.

Q:  What stockholder vote is required for the approval of each proposal?

A:  The following are the vote requirements for the proposals:

Adoption of the Merger Agreement: The affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the shares of Coventry common stock

outstanding and entitled to vote on the proposal. Accordingly, a Coventry stockholder s abstention from voting, the failure of a
Coventry stockholder who holds his or her shares in street name through a broker, bank or other holder of record to give voting
instructions to that broker, bank or other holder of record or a Coventry stockholder s other failure to vote will have the same effect as
avote AGAINST the proposal.

Adjournment (if necessary): The affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the shares of Coventry common stock present in person

or represented by proxy at the Coventry special meeting and entitled to vote on the proposal. Accordingly, a Coventry stockholder s
abstention from voting will have the same effect as a vote  AGAINST the proposal, while the failure of a Coventry stockholder who
holds his or her shares in street name through a broker, bank or other holder of record to give voting instructions to that broker, bank
or other holder of record or a Coventry stockholder s other failure to vote will have no effect on the proposal.

Approval of Golden Parachute Compensation: The affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the shares of Coventry common stock
present in person or represented by proxy at the Coventry special meeting and entitled to vote on the proposal. Accordingly, a
Coventry stockholder s abstention from voting will have the same effect as a vote  AGAINST the proposal, while the failure of a
Coventry stockholder who holds his or her shares in street name through a broker, bank or other holder of record to give voting
instructions to that broker, bank or other holder of record or a Coventry stockholder s other failure to vote will have no effect on the
proposal.
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Q: What constitutes a quorum for the Coventry special meeting?

A: A majority of the outstanding shares of Coventry common stock entitled to vote being present in person or represented by proxy
constitutes a quorum for the Coventry special meeting. Abstentions will be deemed present and entitled to vote at the Coventry special
meeting for the purpose of determining the presence of a quorum. Shares of Coventry common stock held in street name with respect to
which the beneficial owner fails to give voting instructions to the broker, bank or other holder of record will not be deemed present and
entitled to vote at the Coventry special meeting for the purpose of determining the presence of a quorum.
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Q: When is this proxy statement/prospectus being mailed?

A:  This proxy statement/prospectus and the proxy card are first being sent to Coventry stockholders on or about October 19, 2012.

Q: Who is entitled to vote at the Coventry special meeting?

A:  All holders of Coventry common stock who held shares at the record date for the Coventry special meeting (the close of business on
October 15, 2012) are entitled to receive notice of, and to vote at, the Coventry special meeting provided that those shares remain
outstanding on the date of the Coventry special meeting. As of the close of business on October 15, 2012, there were 134,426,998 shares of
Coventry common stock outstanding. Each holder of Coventry common stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Coventry common
stock owned at the record date.

Q: When and where is the Coventry special meeting?

A:  The Coventry special meeting will be held on November 21, 2012, at the offices of Bass, Berry & Sims PLC located at 150 Third Avenue
South, Suite 2800, Nashville, Tennessee 37201, at 9:00 a.m., local time.

Q: How do I vote my shares at the Coventry special meeting?

A:  Via the Internet or by Telephone

If you hold Coventry shares directly in your name as a stockholder of record, you may vote via the Internet at www.proxyvote.com or by
telephone by calling (800) 690-6903. Votes submitted via the Internet or by telephone must be received by 11:59 PM (Eastern Time) on
November 20, 2012.

If you hold Coventry shares in street name, meaning through a broker, bank or other holder of record, you may vote via the Internet or by
telephone only if Internet or telephone voting is made available by your broker, bank or other holder of record. Please follow the voting
instructions provided by your broker, bank or other holder of record with these materials.

By Mail

If you hold Coventry shares directly in your name as a stockholder of record, you will need to mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it
using the postage-paid return envelope provided or return it to Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, New York
11717. Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc. must receive your proxy card no later than the close of business on November 20, 2012.

If you hold Coventry shares in street name through a broker, bank or other holder of record, to vote by mail, you will need to mark, sign and date
the voting instruction form provided by your broker, bank or other holder of record with these materials and return it in the postage-paid return
envelope provided. Your broker, bank or other holder of record must receive your voting instruction form in sufficient time to vote your shares.

In Person

If you hold Coventry shares directly in your name as a stockholder of record, you may vote in person at the Coventry special meeting.
Stockholders of record also may be represented by another person at the Coventry special meeting by executing a proper proxy designating that
person and having that proper proxy be presented to the inspector of election with the applicable ballot at the Coventry special meeting.

If you hold Coventry shares in street name through a broker, bank or other holder of record, you must obtain a legal proxy from that institution
and present it to the inspector of election with your ballot to be able to vote in person at the Coventry special meeting. To request a legal proxy
please contact your broker, bank or other holder of record.
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Please carefully consider the information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus and, whether or not you plan to attend the
meeting, vote via the Internet, by telephone or by mail so that your shares will be voted in accordance with your wishes even if you later
decide not to attend the Coventry special meeting.

We encourage you to register your vote via the Internet or by telephone. If you attend the meeting, you may also submit your vote in person, in
which case any votes that you previously submitted whether via the Internet, by telephone or by mail will be superseded by the vote that you cast
at the Coventry special meeting. To vote in person at the Coventry special meeting, beneficial owners who hold shares in street name through a
broker, bank or other holder of record will need to contact the broker, bank or other holder of record to obtain a legal proxy to bring to the
meeting. Whether your proxy is submitted via the Internet, by phone or by mail, if it is properly completed and submitted, and if you do not
revoke it prior to or at the Coventry special meeting, your shares will be voted at the Coventry special meeting in the manner set forth in this
proxy statement/prospectus or as otherwise specified by you. Again, you may vote via the Internet or by telephone until 11:59 PM (Eastern

Time) on November 20, 2012, or Coventry s agent must receive your paper proxy card by mail no later than the close of business on November
20, 2012.

Q: If my shares are held in street name, will my broker, bank or other holder of record automatically vote my shares for me?

A: No. If your shares are held in an account at a broker, bank or other holder of record, you must instruct the broker, bank or other holder of
record on how to vote your shares. Brokers, banks and other holders of record who hold shares of Coventry common stock in street name
typically have the authority to vote in their discretion on routine proposals when they have not received instructions on how to vote from
the beneficial owner. However, brokers, banks and other holders of record are typically not allowed to exercise their voting discretion on
matters that are non-routine without specific instructions on how to vote from the beneficial owner. Under the current rules of the New
York Stock Exchange, each of the three proposals described in this proxy statement/prospectus is considered non-routine, and therefore
brokers do not have discretionary authority to vote on any of the three proposals. If your shares of Coventry common stock are held in

street name, your broker, bank or other holder of record will vote your shares only if you provide instructions on how to vote by filling out
the voting instruction form sent to you by your broker, bank or other holder of record with this proxy statement/prospectus.

If your shares are held in street name, a failure to instruct your broker, bank or other holder of record how to vote your shares will

have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the adoption of the merger agreement. If your shares are held in street name, a failure to instruct

your broker, bank or other holder of record how to vote your shares will have no effect on the proposal to adjourn the Coventry special meeting,

if necessary, or the golden parachute compensation proposal.

Broker non-votes are shares held by a broker, bank or other holder of record that are present in person or represented by proxy at the special
meeting, but with respect to which the broker, bank or other holder of record is not instructed by the beneficial owner of such shares how to vote

on a particular proposal and the broker does not have discretionary voting power on such proposal. Because brokers, banks and other holders of
record do not have discretionary voting authority with respect to any of the three proposals described in this proxy statement/prospectus, if a
beneficial owner of shares of Coventry common stock held in street name does not give voting instructions to the broker, bank or other holder of
record, then those shares will not be present in person or represented by proxy at the special meeting. As a result, it is expected that there will not
be any broker non-votes in connection with any of the three proposals described in this proxy statement/prospectus.

Q: How will my shares be represented at the Coventry special meeting?

A: If you submit your proxy via the Internet, by telephone or by mail, the officers named in your proxy card will vote your shares in the
manner you requested if you correctly submitted your proxy. If you sign your
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proxy card and return it without indicating how you would like to vote your shares, your proxy will be voted as the Coventry board of
directors unanimously recommends, which is:

FOR the adoption of the merger agreement;

FOR the approval of the adjournment of the Coventry special meeting if necessary to solicit additional proxies if there are not
sufficient votes to adopt the merger agreement at the time of the Coventry special meeting; and

FOR the approval, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, of the golden parachute compensation payments that will or may be paid by

Coventry to its named executive officers in connection with the merger.

Q:  Who may attend the Coventry special meeting?

A: Coventry stockholders at the record date (the close of business on October 15, 2012), or their authorized representatives, may attend the
Coventry special meeting. If you hold shares in your name at the record date, please be prepared to provide proper identification, such as a
driver s license, to gain admission to the Coventry special meeting.

If you are a beneficial owner of Coventry common stock held in street name by a broker, bank or other holder of record at the record date (the

close of business on October 15, 2012), in addition to proper identification, you will also need proof of ownership at the record date to be

admitted to the Coventry special meeting. A brokerage statement or letter from a bank or broker are examples of proof of ownership. If you want
to vote your shares of Coventry common stock held in street name in person at the Coventry special meeting, you will have to get a written
proxy in your name from the broker, bank or other holder of record who holds your shares.

Stockholders may contact Coventry Investor Relations at (301) 581-5430 to obtain directions to the location of the Coventry special meeting.

Q: Is my vote important?

A:  Yes, your vote is very important. An abstention or failure to vote will have the same effect as a vote  AGAINST the adoption of the merger

agreement. If you hold your shares through a broker, bank or other holder of record and you do not give voting instructions to that broker,
bank or other holder of record, that broker, bank or other holder of record will not be able to vote your shares on the adoption of the
merger agreement, and your failure to give those instructions will have the same effect as a vote  AGAINST the adoption of the merger
agreement. The Coventry board of directors unanimously recommends that you vote  FOR the adoption of the merger agreement.

Q. Can I revoke my proxy or change my voting instructions?

A:  Yes. You may revoke your proxy or change your vote at any time before your proxy is voted at the Coventry special meeting.
If you are a stockholder of record at the record date (the close of business on October 15, 2012), you can revoke your proxy or change your vote
by:

sending a signed notice stating that you revoke your proxy to the Secretary of Coventry, at Coventry s offices at 6720-B Rockledge
Drive, Suite 700, Bethesda, MD 20817, Attention: Secretary, that bears a date later than the date of the proxy you want to revoke and
is received prior to the Coventry special meeting;
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submitting a valid, later-dated proxy via the Internet or by telephone before 11:59 PM (Eastern Time) on November 20, 2012, or by
mail that is received prior to the Coventry special meeting; or

attending the Coventry special meeting (or, if the Coventry special meeting is adjourned or postponed, attending the adjourned or
postponed meeting) and voting in person, which will automatically cancel
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any proxy previously given, or revoking your proxy in person, but your attendance alone will not revoke any proxy previously given.

If you hold your shares in street name through a broker, bank or other holder of record, you must contact your brokerage firm or bank to change
your vote or obtain a legal proxy to vote your shares if you wish to cast your vote in person at the Coventry special meeting.

A:

What happens if I sell my shares after the record date but before the Coventry special meeting?

The record date for the Coventry special meeting (the close of business on October 15, 2012) is earlier than the date of the Coventry
special meeting and earlier than the date that the merger is expected to be completed. If you sell or otherwise transfer your Coventry
common stock after the record date but before the date of the Coventry special meeting, you will retain your right to vote at the Coventry
special meeting. However, you will not have the right to receive the merger consideration to be received by Coventry stockholders in the
merger. In order to receive the merger consideration, you must hold your shares through completion of the merger.

What do 1 do if I receive more than one set of voting materials?

You may receive more than one set of voting materials for the Coventry special meeting, including multiple copies of this proxy
statement/prospectus, the proxy card or the voting instruction form. This can occur if you hold your shares in more than one brokerage
account, if you hold shares directly as a record holder and also in street name, or otherwise through another holder of record, and in certain
other circumstances. If you receive more than one set of voting materials, please vote or return each set separately in order to ensure that

all of your shares are voted.

Am [ entitled to appraisal rights?

Yes. Under Delaware law, record holders of Coventry common stock who do not vote in favor of the adoption of the merger agreement
and who otherwise comply with the procedures for exercising appraisal rights under Delaware law will be entitled to seek appraisal rights
in connection with the merger and, if the merger is completed, obtain payment in cash of the fair value of their shares of Coventry common
stock as determined by the Delaware Chancery Court, instead of receiving the merger consideration. To exercise your appraisal rights, you
must follow strictly the procedures prescribed by Delaware law. These procedures are summarized in this proxy statement/prospectus. See
Proposal I: The Merger Appraisal Rights beginning on page 87 of this proxy statement/prospectus. In addition, the text of the applicable
provisions of Delaware law is included as Annex C to this proxy statement/prospectus. Failure to comply strictly with these provisions will
result in loss of the right of appraisal.

Is completion of the merger subject to any conditions?

Yes. Aetna and Coventry are not required to complete the merger unless a number of conditions are satisfied (or, to the extent
permitted by applicable law, waived). These conditions include the adoption of the merger agreement by Coventry
stockholders, early termination or expiration of the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of
1976, as amended, and the receipt of certain other regulatory approvals. For a more complete summary of the conditions that
must be satisfied (or, to the extent permitted by applicable law, waived) prior to completion of the merger, see The Merger
Agreement Conditions to Completion of the Merger beginning on page 100 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

When do you expect to complete the merger?
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Coventry and Aetna are working towards completing the merger promptly. As of the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, Coventry and
Aetna expect to complete the merger in mid-2013, subject to adoption of the merger agreement by Coventry stockholders, early
termination or expiration of the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, receipt of
certain other
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regulatory approvals and other usual and customary conditions to completion. However, no assurance can be given as to when, or if, the
merger will be completed.

Q: Is the transaction expected to be taxable to Coventry stockholders?

A:  Yes. U.S. holders of Coventry common stock will generally be subject to U.S. federal income tax as a result of the exchange of their
Coventry common stock for Aetna common shares and cash (including cash received in lieu of a fractional Aetna common share) in the
merger. See Proposal I: The Merger Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences beginning on page 90 of this proxy
statement/prospectus.

Q: What do I need to do now?

A:  Carefully read and consider the information contained in and incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus,
including its annexes. Then, please vote your shares of Coventry common stock, which you may do by:

completing, dating, signing and returning the enclosed proxy card in the accompanying postage-paid return envelope;
pleting, dating, signing and ing the enclosed proxy card in th panying postage-paid lop

submitting your proxy via the Internet or by telephone by following the instructions included on your proxy card; or

attending the Coventry special meeting and voting by ballot in person.
If you hold shares in street name through a broker, bank or other holder of record, please instruct your broker, bank or other holder of record to
vote your shares by following the instructions that the broker, bank or other holder of record provides to you with these materials.

See  How will my shares be represented at the Coventry special meeting? beginning on page 5 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Q: Should I send in my stock certificates now?

A: No. Coventry stockholders should not send in their stock certificates at this time. After completion of the merger, Aetna s exchange agent
will send you a letter of transmittal and instructions for exchanging your shares of Coventry common stock for the merger consideration.
Unless you request physical certificates, the Aetna common shares you receive in the merger will be issued in book-entry form and
physical certificates will not be issued. See The Merger Agreement Procedures for Surrendering Coventry Stock Certificates beginning on
page 98 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Q: As a holder of options issued by Coventry to purchase Coventry common stock, or a holder of Coventry restricted stock, restricted stock
units or performance share units, what will I receive in the merger?

A:  Each in-the-money option (as defined under Summary Treatment of Coventry Equity Awards beginning on page 13 of this proxy
statement/prospectus) to purchase Coventry common stock (whether or not then vested or exercisable) that remains outstanding
immediately prior to completion of the merger will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive an amount in cash, without interest
and less applicable withholding taxes, determined pursuant to a formula that is intended to result in consideration that is substantially
equivalent to the excess of the merger consideration payable to holders of shares of Coventry common stock over the exercise price of that
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option. During the 60-day period following the date of the merger agreement, Aetna and Coventry discussed the treatment of each option
to purchase Coventry common stock (whether or not then vested or exercisable) that would not be entitled to receive an amount in cash
pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence and decided to cancel such options upon completion of the merger. Aetna has agreed to
pay the holders of such options that execute customary acknowledgments and waivers an amount in cash calculated by reference to the
exercise price of the canceled options and equivalent to $1.00 to $4.00 for each share of Coventry common stock subject to a cancelled
option. For active employees of Coventry, such payment will also be conditioned upon such employee remaining employed by the
surviving corporation or Aetna for one year following completion of the merger (subject to acceleration upon certain terminations of
employment). Each share of restricted Coventry common stock that, pursuant to its terms as of the date of the merger agreement, is vested
or becomes vested as of completion of the merger will be converted into the right to receive the merger consideration payable to holders of
shares of Coventry common stock.
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Each Coventry performance share unit or restricted stock unit that, pursuant to its terms as of the date of the merger agreement, is vested or
becomes vested as of completion of the merger and each performance share unit or restricted stock unit held by Allen F. Wise will be converted
into the right to receive an amount in cash, without interest and less applicable withholding taxes, determined pursuant to a formula that is
intended to result in consideration that is substantially equivalent to the merger consideration payable to holders of shares of Coventry common
stock. Each Coventry performance share unit and restricted stock unit that, pursuant to its terms as of the date of the merger agreement, is not
vested and will not become vested as of completion of the merger (other than such units held by Mr. Wise), will be converted into a cash-settled
Aetna restricted stock unit with the number of Aetna common shares underlying that cash-settled Aetna restricted stock unit determined pursuant
to a formula that is intended to result in the value of the Aetna restricted stock unit being substantially equivalent to the merger consideration
payable to a holder of the number of shares of Coventry common stock underlying that Coventry performance share unit or restricted stock unit.
See The Merger Agreement Treatment of Coventry Equity Awards beginning on page 99 of this proxy statement/prospectus for a more detailed
description of how these and certain other Coventry equity awards will be treated in the merger.

Q: How are shares in the Coventry 401(k) Plan voted?

A: Participants in the Coventry 401(k) Plan are entitled to vote the shares held under the plan in their name. To do so, you must sign and
timely return the voting instruction form you received with this proxy statement/prospectus, or submit voting instructions via the Internet
or by telephone. By doing either of the above, you direct the Coventry 401(k) Plan trustee to vote your Coventry 401(k) Plan shares at the
Coventry special meeting, in person or by proxy, as designated in your instructions. The voting results for the shares held in the Coventry
401(k) Plan will be tabulated by Coventry s transfer agent for all plan participants and reported to the Coventry 401(k) Plan trustee on an
aggregate basis. The overall vote tallies will not show how individual participants voted. The trustee will vote the shares at the Coventry
special meeting through the custodian holding the shares. If a Coventry 401(k) Plan participant s voting instructions are not received by
Coventry s transfer agent before the Coventry special meeting, or if the voting instructions are revoked by the participant before the
Coventry special meeting, the shares held by that participant will be considered unvoted. All unvoted shares in the Coventry 401(k) Plan
will be voted at the Coventry special meeting by the Coventry 401(k) Plan trustee in proportion to the voting results of the Coventry
401(k) Plan shares for which voting instructions are received.

Q: Whom should I call with questions?

A: If you have any questions about the merger or the Coventry special meeting, or desire additional copies of this proxy
statement/prospectus, proxy cards or voting instruction forms, you should contact:
MacKenzie Partners, Inc.

105 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10016
Telephone (Toll-Free): (800) 322-2885
Telephone (Collect): (212) 929-5500
Email: proxy @mackenziepartners.com
or
Coventry Health Care, Inc.
6720-B Rockledge Drive, Suite 700

Bethesda, MD 20817
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SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information from this proxy statement/prospectus. It may not contain all of the information that is important to
you. You are urged to read carefully the entire proxy statement/prospectus and the other documents referred to in this proxy
statement/prospectus in order to fully understand the merger agreement and the proposed merger. See  Where You Can Find More

Information beginning on page 152 of this proxy statement/prospectus. Each item in this summary refers to the page of this proxy
statement/prospectus on which that subject is discussed in more detail.

The Companies (See Page 55)
Aetna Inc.

Aetna was incorporated in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in 1982. Aetna is one of the nation s leading diversified health care benefits
companies, serving approximately 36.7 million people as of June 30, 2012, with information and resources to help them make better informed
decisions about their health care. Aetna offers a broad range of traditional and consumer-directed health insurance products and related services,
including medical, pharmacy, dental, behavioral health, group life and disability plans, medical management capabilities, Medicaid health care
management services and health information exchange technology services. Aetna s customers include employer groups, individuals, college
students, part-time and hourly workers, health plans, health care providers, governmental units, government-sponsored plans, labor groups and
expatriates.

The principal trading market for Aetna common shares (NYSE: AET) is the New York Stock Exchange. The principal executive offices of
Aetna are located at 151 Farmington Avenue, Hartford, CT 06156; its telephone number is (860) 273-0123; and its website is www.aetna.com.

This proxy statement/prospectus incorporates important business and financial information about Aetna from other documents that are not
included in or delivered with this proxy statement/prospectus. For a list of the documents that are incorporated by reference, see Where You Can
Find More Information beginning on page 152 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Coventry Health Care, Inc.

Coventry was incorporated in the State of Delaware on December 17, 1997, and is the successor to Coventry Corporation, which was
incorporated in the State of Delaware on November 21, 1986.

Coventry is a diversified national managed health care company based in Bethesda, Maryland, dedicated to delivering high-quality health care
solutions at an affordable price. Coventry provides a full portfolio of risk and fee-based products, including Medicare and Medicaid programs,
group and individual health insurance, workers compensation solutions, and network rental services. With a presence in every state in the nation,
Coventry s products currently serve approximately five million individuals, helping them receive the greatest possible value for their health care
investment.

The principal trading market for Coventry common stock (NYSE: CVH) is the New York Stock Exchange. The principal executive offices of
Coventry are located at 6720-B Rockledge Drive, Suite 700, Bethesda, MD 20817; its telephone number is (301) 581-0600; and its website is
www.coventryhealthcare.com.

This proxy statement/prospectus incorporates important business and financial information about Coventry from other documents that are not
included in or delivered with this proxy statement/prospectus. For a list of the documents that are incorporated by reference, see Where You Can
Find More Information beginning on page 152 of this proxy statement/prospectus.
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Jaguar Merger Subsidiary, Inc.

Merger Sub was incorporated in the State of Delaware on August 16, 2012, and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Aetna. Merger Sub was formed
solely for the purpose of completing a merger with Coventry. Merger Sub has not carried on any activities to date, except for activities incidental
to its formation and activities undertaken in connection with the merger.

The principal executive offices of Merger Sub are located at 151 Farmington Avenue, Hartford, CT 06156; and its telephone number is
(860) 273-0123.

The Merger (See Page 62)

Aetna, Merger Sub and Coventry have entered into the merger agreement. Subject to the terms and conditions of the merger agreement and in
accordance with applicable law, Merger Sub will be merged with and into Coventry, with Coventry continuing as the surviving corporation.
Upon completion of the merger, Coventry will be a wholly owned subsidiary of Aetna, and Coventry common stock will no longer be
outstanding or publicly traded.

A copy of the merger agreement is attached as Annex A to this proxy statement/prospectus. You should read the merger agreement carefully
because it is the legal document that governs the merger.

Special Meeting of Stockholders of Coventry (See Page 56)

Meeting. The Coventry special meeting will be held on November 21, 2012, at the offices of Bass, Berry & Sims PLC located at 150 Third
Avenue South, Suite 2800, Nashville, Tennessee 37201, at 9:00 a.m., local time. At the Coventry special meeting, Coventry stockholders will be
asked to consider and vote on the following proposals:

to adopt the merger agreement;

to approve the adjournment of the Coventry special meeting if necessary to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes
to adopt the merger agreement at the time of the Coventry special meeting; and

to approve, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, golden parachute compensation payments that will or may be paid by Coventry to its
named executive officers in connection with the merger.
Record Date. The Coventry board of directors has fixed the close of business on October 15, 2012, as the record date for determination of the
stockholders entitled to vote at the Coventry special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. Only Coventry stockholders of record
at the record date are entitled to receive notice of, and to vote at, the Coventry special meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the
Coventry special meeting. As of the close of business on October 15, 2012, there were 134,426,998 shares of Coventry common stock
outstanding. Each holder of Coventry common stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Coventry common stock owned at the record date.

Quorum. The presence at the Coventry special meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the aggregate voting power of
Coventry common stock outstanding at the record date (the close of business on October 15, 2012) and otherwise entitled to vote will constitute

a quorum. Abstentions will be deemed present and entitled to vote at the Coventry special meeting for the purpose of determining the presence

of a quorum. Shares of Coventry common stock held in street name with respect to which the beneficial owner fails to give voting instructions to
the broker, bank or other holder of record, and shares of Coventry common stock with respect to which the beneficial owner otherwise fails to

vote, will not be deemed present and entitled to vote at the Coventry special meeting for the purpose of determining the presence of a quorum.
There must be a quorum
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for business to be conducted at the Coventry special meeting. Failure of a quorum to be represented at the Coventry special meeting will
necessitate an adjournment or postponement and will subject Coventry to additional expense.

Required Vote. To adopt the merger agreement, the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the shares of Coventry common stock

outstanding and entitled to vote on the proposal is required. Coventry cannot complete the merger unless its stockholders adopt the merger
agreement. Because approval requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of Coventry common stock entitled to vote on
the proposal, a Coventry stockholder s abstention from voting, the failure of a Coventry stockholder who holds his or her shares in street
name through a broker, bank or other holder of record to give voting instructions to that broker, bank or other holder of record or a
Coventry stockholder s other failure to vote will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the adoption of the merger agreement.

To approve the adjournment of the Coventry special meeting if necessary to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes to adopt the
merger agreement at the time of the Coventry special meeting, the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the shares of Coventry common

stock present in person or represented by proxy at the Coventry special meeting and entitled to vote on the proposal is required. Because

approval of this proposal requires the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the shares present in person or represented by proxy and

entitled to vote, an abstention will have the same effect as a vote  AGAINST the proposal to adjourn the Coventry special meeting. The failure of
a Coventry stockholder who holds his or her shares in street name through a broker, bank or other holder of record to give voting instructions to
that broker, bank or other holder of record or a Coventry stockholder s other failure to vote will have no effect on the outcome of any vote to
adjourn the Coventry special meeting.

To approve, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, golden parachute compensation payments that will or may be paid by Coventry to its named
executive officers in connection with the merger, the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the shares of Coventry common stock present in
person or represented by proxy at the Coventry special meeting and entitled to vote on the proposal is required. Because approval of this

proposal requires the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote, an
abstention will have the same effect as a vote' AGAINST the golden parachute compensation proposal. The failure of a Coventry stockholder
who holds his or her shares in street name through a broker, bank or other holder of record to give voting instructions to that broker, bank or
other holder of record or a Coventry stockholder s other failure to vote will have no effect on the outcome of any vote to approve the golden
parachute compensation proposal.

Stock Ownership of and Voting by Coventry Directors and Executive Officers. At the record date for the Coventry special meeting (the close
of business on October 15, 2012), Coventry s directors and executive officers and their affiliates beneficially owned and had the right to vote
1,256,969 shares of Coventry common stock at the Coventry special meeting, which represents approximately 0.9% of the shares of Coventry
common stock entitled to vote at the Coventry special meeting.

It is expected that Coventry s directors and executive officers will vote their shares FOR the adoption of the merger agreement, FOR the
proposal to adjourn the Coventry special meeting, if necessary, and FOR the golden parachute compensation proposal, although none of them
has entered into any agreement requiring them to do so.

What Coventry Stockholders Will Receive in the Merger (See Page 97)

If the merger is completed, Coventry stockholders will be entitled to receive, in exchange for each share of Coventry common stock that they
own immediately prior to the merger, $27.30 in cash, without interest, and 0.3885 of an Aetna common share, which, together with cash payable
in lieu of any fractional shares as described below, are collectively referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the merger consideration.
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Aetna will not issue any fractional shares in the merger. Instead, the total number of Aetna common shares that each Coventry stockholder will
receive in the merger will be rounded down to the nearest whole number, and each Coventry stockholder will receive cash, without interest, for
any fractional Aetna common share that he or she would otherwise receive in the merger. The amount of cash for fractional shares will be
calculated by multiplying the fraction of an Aetna common share that the Coventry stockholder would otherwise be entitled to receive in the
merger by the average of the volume weighted averages of the trading prices for Aetna common shares on the New York Stock Exchange for
each of the five trading days ending on the trading day that is two trading days prior to completion of the merger, which average is referred to in
this proxy statement/prospectus as the Aetna closing price.

Example: If you own 100 shares of Coventry common stock at the time the merger is completed, you will be entitled to receive $2,730.00 in cash,
without interest, and 38 Aetna common shares. In addition, you will be entitled to receive an amount of cash equal to 0.85 of an Aetna common
share multiplied by the Aetna closing price.

The ratio of 0.3885 of an Aetna common share for each share of Coventry common stock (which is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus
as the exchange ratio) is fixed, which means that it will not change between now and the date of the merger, regardless of whether the market
price of either Aetna or Coventry common stock changes. Therefore, the value of the stock portion of the merger consideration will depend on
the market price of Aetna common shares at the time Coventry stockholders receive Aetna common shares in the merger. The market price of
Aetna common shares has fluctuated since the date of the announcement of the merger agreement and will continue to fluctuate from
the date of this proxy statement/prospectus to the date of the Coventry special meeting and the date the merger is completed and
thereafter. The market price of Aetna common shares when received by Coventry stockholders after the merger is completed could be
greater than, less than or the same as the market price of Aetna common shares on the date of this proxy statement/prospectus or at the
time of the Coventry special meeting.

Treatment of Coventry Equity Awards (See Page 99)

At completion of the merger, each option to purchase shares of Coventry common stock outstanding under any Coventry employee benefit plan,
whether or not vested or exercisable, with a per share exercise price less than the sum of (a) $27.30 and (b) the product of (i) the Aetna closing
price multiplied by (ii) the exchange ratio (which sum is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the equity award cash consideration
and which options are referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as in-the-money options), will be cancelled and converted into the right to
receive an amount in cash, without interest and less applicable withholding taxes, equal to the product of (x) the excess of (i) the equity award
cash consideration over (ii) the applicable per share exercise price of that in-the-money option multiplied by (y) the total number of shares of
Coventry common stock underlying that in-the-money option. During the 60-day period following the date of the merger agreement, Aetna and
Coventry discussed the treatment of each option to purchase shares of Coventry common stock outstanding under any Coventry employee
benefit plan, whether or not vested or exercisable, with a per share exercise price equal to or greater than the equity award cash consideration
(which options are referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as underwater options), taking into account the appropriate terms and
conditions of each such underwater option and decided to cancel such underwater options upon completion of the merger. Aetna has agreed to
pay the holders of underwater options that execute customary acknowledgments and waivers an amount in cash calculated by reference to the
exercise price of the underwater options and equivalent to $1.00 to $4.00 for each share of Coventry common stock subject to an underwater
option. For active employees of Coventry, such payment will also be conditioned upon such employee remaining employed by the surviving
corporation or Aetna for one year following the closing of the merger (subject to acceleration upon certain terminations of employment).

At completion of the merger, each outstanding restricted share of Coventry common stock (which represents a share of Coventry common stock
subject to vesting and forfeiture restrictions) will be converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, less applicable withholding
taxes.
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At completion of the merger, each Coventry performance share unit and restricted stock unit outstanding under any Coventry employee benefit
plan (which are collectively referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as Coventry stock units) that, pursuant to its terms as of the date of the
merger agreement, is vested or becomes vested upon completion of the merger and each Coventry stock unit held by Allen F. Wise, which are
collectively referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as cashed-out units, will be converted into the right to receive an amount in cash,
without interest and less applicable withholding taxes, equal to the product of (a) the equity award cash consideration multiplied by (b) the
number of shares of Coventry common stock underlying that cashed-out unit.

At completion of the merger, each Coventry stock unit outstanding under any Coventry employee benefit plan that, pursuant to its terms as of
the date of the merger agreement, is not vested and will not become vested upon completion of the merger (other than Coventry stock units held
by Mr. Wise), which are collectively referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as rollover units, will be converted into a cash-settled Aetna
restricted stock unit with the number of Aetna common shares underlying that cash-settled Aetna restricted stock unit equal to the product of
(x) the number of shares of Coventry common stock underlying that rollover unit immediately prior to completion of the merger multiplied by
(y) the quotient of (i) the equity award cash consideration divided by (ii) the Aetna closing price. Each such cash-settled Aetna restricted stock
unit will be subject to the same terms and conditions (including service-based vesting) as applied to the corresponding rollover unit immediately
prior to completion of the merger.

Recommendations of the Coventry Board of Directors (See Page 56)

After careful consideration, Coventry s board of directors unanimously determined that the merger agreement, the merger and the other
transactions contemplated by the merger agreement are advisable for, fair to and in the best interests of Coventry and its stockholders and
unanimously declared advisable and in all respects approved and adopted the merger agreement, the merger and the other transactions
contemplated by the merger agreement. The Coventry board of directors unanimously recommends that Coventry stockholders vote FOR
the adoption of the merger agreement. For the factors considered by the Coventry board of directors in reaching this decision, see Proposal I:
The Merger Coventry Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the Coventry Board of Directors that Coventry Stockholders Adopt the
Merger Agreement beginning on page 68 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

The Coventry board of directors unanimously recommends that Coventry stockholders vote  FOR  the proposal to adjourn the Coventry special
meeting if necessary to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes to adopt the merger agreement at the time of the Coventry
special meeting. See Proposal II: Adjournment of the Coventry Special Meeting beginning on page 130 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

In addition, the Coventry board of directors unanimously recommends that Coventry stockholders vote  FOR the proposal to approve, on an
advisory (non-binding) basis, golden parachute compensation payments that will or may be paid by Coventry to its named executive officers in
connection with the merger. See Proposal III: Advisory Vote On Golden Parachute Compensation beginning on page 131 of this proxy
statement/prospectus.

Opinion of Coventry s Financial Advisor (See Page 73)

The Coventry board of directors received an opinion from Greenhill & Co., LLC, which is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as
Greenhill, that, as of August 19, 2012, and based on and subject to the qualifications, limitations and assumptions set forth in that opinion, the
merger consideration to be received by the holders of shares of Coventry common stock pursuant to the merger agreement was fair, from a
financial point of view, to such holders. The full text of Greenhill s written opinion, dated August 19, 2012, which sets forth, among other things,
the procedures followed, assumptions made, matters considered and qualifications and
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limitations on the scope of review undertaken by Greenhill in rendering its opinion, is attached as Annex B to this proxy statement/prospectus.
The opinion was directed to the Coventry board of directors and addresses only the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the merger
consideration to be received by the holders of shares of Coventry common stock entitled to receive such consideration. The opinion does not
address any other aspect or implication of the merger and does not constitute a recommendation to the Coventry board of directors or to any
other person in respect of the proposed merger, including as to how any holder of shares of Coventry common stock should vote or act in respect
of the merger.

Ownership of Aetna After the Merger (See Page 62)

Based on the number of shares of Coventry common stock (including restricted shares) outstanding as of October 15, 2012, Aetna expects to
issue approximately 52,224,888 Aetna common shares to Coventry stockholders pursuant to the merger. The actual number of Aetna common
shares to be issued pursuant to the merger will be determined at completion of the merger based on the exchange ratio of 0.3885 and the number
of shares of Coventry common stock (including restricted shares) outstanding at that time. Based on the number of shares of Coventry common
stock (including restricted shares) outstanding as of October 15, 2012, and the number of Aetna common shares outstanding as of October 15,
2012, it is expected that, immediately after completion of the merger, former Coventry stockholders will own approximately 13.5% of the
outstanding Aetna common shares.

Aetna Shareholder Approval Is Not Required

Aetna shareholders are not required to adopt the merger agreement or approve the merger or the issuance of the Aetna common shares in
connection with the merger.

Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger (See Page 120)

In considering the recommendation of the Coventry board of directors to adopt the merger agreement, Coventry stockholders should be aware

that Coventry s directors and executive officers have interests in the merger that may be different from, or in addition to, the interests of Coventry
stockholders generally. The Coventry board of directors was aware of these interests and considered them, among other matters, in evaluating

and negotiating the merger agreement, in reaching its decision to approve the merger agreement and in recommending to the stockholders that

the merger agreement be adopted.

These interests and arrangements include:

executive officers of Coventry continuing as officers or employees of the surviving corporation or Aetna following completion of the
merger, until they terminate their service with the surviving corporation or Aetna or are replaced by Aetna;

Coventry executive officers eligibility to receive certain severance and other benefits upon a qualifying termination of their
employment following completion of the merger;

until the end of the calendar year in which the merger occurs, Aetna has agreed to maintain for Coventry employees (including the
executive officers) who continue as employees of the surviving corporation following completion of the merger compensation and
benefits that are in the aggregate no less favorable than the compensation and benefits provided to those employees immediately
prior to completion of the merger;

Coventry executive officers eligibility to receive a retention payment pursuant to a $5 million retention pool that Coventry is
permitted to establish;

each executive officer of Coventry currently holds equity awards consisting of or relating to shares of Coventry common stock and
will receive (i) the merger consideration for restricted shares of Coventry
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common stock and (ii) the equity award cash consideration for in-the-money options and cashed-out units (minus the applicable
exercise price for in-the-money options); and

rights to continuing indemnification and directors and officers liability insurance.
Listing of Aetna Common Shares and Delisting and Deregistration of Coventry Common Stock (See Page 92)

Aetna will apply to have the Aetna common shares to be issued in the merger approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange, where
Aetna common shares are currently traded. If the merger is completed, Coventry shares will no longer be listed on the New York Stock
Exchange and will be deregistered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which is referred to in this proxy
statement/prospectus as the Exchange Act.

Appraisal Rights Available (See Page 87)

Under Delaware law, if the merger is completed, record holders of Coventry common stock who do not vote in favor of the adoption of the
merger agreement and who otherwise properly assert their appraisal rights will be entitled to seek appraisal for, and obtain payment in cash for
the judicially determined fair value of, their shares of Coventry common stock, in lieu of receiving the merger consideration. This value could be
more than, the same as, or less than the value of the merger consideration. The relevant provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State
of Delaware (which is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the DGCL) are included as Annex C to this proxy statement/prospectus.
You are encouraged to read these provisions carefully and in their entirety. Moreover, due to the complexity of the procedures for exercising the
right to seek appraisal, Coventry stockholders who are considering exercising that right are encouraged to seek the advice of legal counsel.
Failure to comply strictly with these provisions will result in loss of the right of appraisal.

Completion of the Merger Is Subject to Certain Conditions (See Page 100)

As more fully described in this proxy statement/prospectus and in the merger agreement, the obligation of each of Aetna and Merger Sub, on the
one hand, and Coventry, on the other hand, to complete the merger is subject to the satisfaction (or, to the extent permitted by applicable law,
waiver) of a number of conditions, including the following:

adoption of the merger agreement by holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Coventry common stock;

absence of any applicable law (including any order) being in effect that prohibits completion of the merger;

effectiveness of, and absence of any stop order with respect to, the registration statement on Form S-4 of which this proxy
statement/prospectus forms a part;

approval for the listing on the New York Stock Exchange of the Aetna common shares to be issued in the merger;

accuracy of the representations and warranties made in the merger agreement by the other party, subject to certain materiality
thresholds; and

performance in all material respects by the other party of the covenants and agreements required to be performed by it at or prior to
completion of the merger.
In addition, the obligations of Aetna and Merger Sub to complete the merger are subject to the satisfaction (or, to the extent permitted by
applicable law, waiver) of certain additional conditions, including (i) expiration or early termination of the waiting period relating to the merger
under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder, which is referred to in
this
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proxy statement/prospectus as the HSR Act, and (ii) certain actions by or in respect of, and filings with, certain governmental authorities, which
are referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the required governmental authorizations, having been made or obtained and being in full
force and effect, without the imposition of any term or condition that would have or would reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the
aggregate, a regulatory material adverse effect on Aetna or Coventry (see The Merger Agreement Reasonable Best Efforts Covenant beginning
on page 109 of this proxy statement/prospectus for a definition of regulatory material adverse effect).

In addition, the obligation of Coventry to complete the merger is subject to the satisfaction (or, to the extent permitted by applicable law, waiver)
of certain additional conditions, including (i) expiration or early termination of the waiting period relating to the merger under the HSR Act and
(ii) the required governmental authorizations having been made or obtained and being in full force and effect.

Aetna and Coventry cannot be certain when, or if, the conditions to the merger will be satisfied or waived, or that the merger will be completed.
The Merger May Not Be Completed Without All Required Regulatory Approvals (See Page 86)

Completion of the merger is conditioned upon the expiration or early termination of the waiting period relating to the merger under the HSR Act
and the required governmental authorizations having been made or obtained and being in full force and effect.

Under the HSR Act, certain transactions, including the merger, may not be completed unless certain waiting period requirements have expired or
been terminated. The HSR Act provides that each party must file a pre-merger notification with the Federal Trade Commission, which is
referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the FTC, and the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice, which is referred to in this
proxy statement/prospectus as the DOJ. A transaction notifiable under the HSR Act may not be completed until the expiration of a
30-calendar-day waiting period following the parties filings of their respective HSR Act notification forms or the early termination of that
waiting period. If the DOJ or the FTC issues a Request for Additional Information and Documentary Material prior to the expiration of the initial
waiting period, the parties must observe a second 30-calendar-day waiting period, which would begin to run only after both parties have
substantially complied with the request for additional information, unless the waiting period is terminated earlier. Aetna and Coventry each filed
its required HSR Act notification and report with respect to the merger on September 5, 2012. As a part of Aetna s and Coventry s continuing
cooperation with the DOJ and in order to provide the DOJ with additional time for review, Aetna re-filed its required HSR Act notification and
report with respect to the merger on October 9, 2012. The waiting period under the HSR Act will expire on November 8, 2012, unless it is
extended by a request for further information or terminated earlier.

Pursuant to the insurance laws and regulations and, in some instances, the healthcare laws and regulations of certain states, and pursuant to

certain licenses and contracts of certain of Coventry s subsidiaries, applicable state regulatory authorities must approve, or be notified of, Aetna s
acquisition of control of Coventry s health maintenance organizations, insurance companies and other regulated entities. To obtain these
approvals and provide such notices, Aetna, or the applicable Aetna subsidiary, and in some instances Coventry, or the applicable Coventry
regulated entity, as the case may be, has filed or will file acquisition of control and material modification or similar statements, notices or
applications, as required by the insurance and healthcare laws and regulations of each applicable state or the Coventry regulated entities licenses
and contracts. As of the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, Aetna, or the applicable Aetna subsidiary, has filed all material applications
required for state regulatory approval of the merger.

Neither Aetna nor Coventry is aware of any material governmental approvals or actions that are required for completion of the merger other than
those described above. It is presently contemplated that if any such additional material governmental approvals or actions are required, those
approvals or actions will be sought.
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Aetna and Coventry have agreed to use their respective reasonable best efforts to obtain all regulatory approvals required to complete the
merger, which reasonable best efforts may include contesting any proceeding brought by a governmental authority seeking to prohibit
completion of the merger or seeking damages or to impose any terms or conditions in connection with the merger. Except as described in the
preceding sentence, in using its reasonable best efforts, under the terms of the merger agreement, Aetna is required to take all actions and do all
things necessary, proper or advisable to complete the merger in connection with (i) the expiration or early termination of the waiting period
relating to the merger under the HSR Act, (ii) any other antitrust law or (iii) the required governmental authorizations, except that Aetna is not
required to take any action or agree to any term or condition in connection with those matters if that action, term or condition would have or
would reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a regulatory material adverse effect on Aetna or on Coventry. In
addition, in connection with obtaining the regulatory approvals required to complete the merger, (x) neither Aetna nor Coventry is required to
take any action or agree to any term or condition that is not conditioned upon completion of the merger and (y) Coventry is not permitted to take
any action or agree to any term or condition without Aetna s consent.

Financing (See Page 93)

The merger agreement is not subject to a financing condition. On September 24, 2012, Aetna entered into a 364-day senior unsecured bridge
credit agreement, which is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the bridge credit agreement, with a group of thirteen lenders, who are
collectively referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the bridge lenders, to finance up to $2.0 billion of the cash consideration payable by
Aetna in connection with the merger to the extent that Aetna has not received $2.0 billion of net cash proceeds from the issuance of senior notes
or from certain other transactions at or prior to completion of the merger. The bridge lenders obligation to fund the bridge loan is subject to
several conditions as set forth in the bridge credit agreement, including, among others, completion of the merger, the non-occurrence of a

material adverse effect on Coventry, the accuracy of certain representations and warranties related to both Aetna and Coventry, the absence of
certain defaults by Aetna, Aetna s satisfaction of a maximum ratio of consolidated total indebtedness to adjusted consolidated capitalization,
Aetna having obtained public credit ratings of Aetna s senior unsecured debt taking into account the merger, Aetna s delivery of certain financial
statements, the termination of Coventry s existing credit agreement dated as of June 22, 2011, Aetna having used commercially reasonable efforts
to cause the senior notes to be issued and other conditions to completion. For a more complete description of Aetna s debt financing for the
merger, see Proposal I: The Merger Description of Debt Financing beginning on page 93 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

The Merger Is Expected to be Completed in Mid-2013 (See Page 97)

The merger will occur within two business days after the conditions to its completion have been satisfied or, to the extent permitted by
applicable law, waived, unless otherwise mutually agreed by the parties. As of the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, the merger is
expected to be completed in mid-2013. However, there can be no assurance as to when, or if, the merger will occur.

No Solicitation by Coventry (See Page 107)

As more fully described in this proxy statement/prospectus and in the merger agreement, and subject to the exceptions described below,
Coventry has agreed not to, among other things, (i) solicit, initiate or take any action to knowingly facilitate or knowingly encourage the
submission of any competing acquisition proposal from any third party, (ii) enter into or participate in any discussions or negotiations with any
third party that is seeking to make, or has made, a competing acquisition proposal or (iii) withdraw or modify in a manner adverse to Aetna the
recommendation of the Coventry board of directors that Coventry stockholders adopt the merger agreement.
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However, at any time prior to the adoption of the merger agreement by Coventry stockholders, subject to the terms and conditions described in
the merger agreement, Coventry is permitted to:

engage in negotiations or discussions with any third party that has made after the date of the merger agreement a superior acquisition
proposal or a competing acquisition proposal that is reasonably likely to lead to a superior acquisition proposal;

following receipt of a superior acquisition proposal after the date of the merger agreement, (a) withdraw or modify in a manner
adverse to Aetna the recommendation of the Coventry board of directors that Coventry stockholders adopt the merger agreement
and/or (b) subject to payment to Aetna of the termination fee as more fully described below, terminate the merger agreement to enter
into a definitive agreement providing for that superior acquisition proposal; and

withdraw or modify in a manner adverse to Aetna the recommendation of the Coventry board of directors that Coventry stockholders

adopt the merger agreement in response to certain events (other than receipt of a superior acquisition proposal).
Coventry is only permitted to take the actions described above if Coventry s board of directors determines that the failure to take that action
would be reasonably likely to be inconsistent with its fiduciary duties to Coventry stockholders under applicable law. In addition, Coventry is
not permitted to withdraw or modify the recommendation of the Coventry board of directors that Coventry stockholders adopt the merger
agreement (or terminate the merger agreement to enter into a definitive agreement providing for a superior acquisition proposal) unless, before
taking that action, Coventry notifies Aetna that it intends to take that action and, if requested by Aetna, negotiates in good faith with Aetna for
certain periods of time regarding any proposal by Aetna to amend the terms of the merger agreement.

Termination of the Merger Agreement (See Page 115)

As more fully described in this proxy statement/prospectus and in the merger agreement, and subject to the terms and conditions described in the
merger agreement, the merger agreement may be terminated at any time before completion of the merger in any of the following ways:

by mutual written consent of Aetna and Coventry;

by either Aetna or Coventry, if:

the merger has not been completed on or before August 19, 2013, which is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as
the initial end date, unless all conditions to completion have been satisfied on the initial end date other than the regulatory
approvals condition and either Aetna or Coventry elects to extend the initial end date to November 19, 2013, which together
with the initial end date is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the end date, in which case the merger agreement
may be terminated by either Aetna or Coventry if the merger has not been completed on or before November 19, 2013;

there is in effect any final and non-appealable order of any governmental authority that prohibits completion of the merger;

Coventry stockholders fail to adopt the merger agreement upon a vote taken on a proposal to adopt the merger agreement; or

there has been a breach of any representation or warranty made by, or failure to perform any covenant or agreement to be
performed by, the other party, in each case that would cause the failure of the condition to completion related to accuracy of
representations and warranties or performance of covenants and agreements, and that breach or failure to perform either is
incapable of being cured or has not been cured within 30 days following notice to the breaching or failing-to-perform party;
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by Aetna, if:

Coventry s board of directors withdraws or modifies in a manner adverse to Aetna its recommendation that Coventry
stockholders adopt the merger agreement or fails to publicly confirm that recommendation within seven business days of a
request to do so from Aetna; or

Coventry has breached in any material respect any of its obligations described under The Merger Agreement No Solicitation
by Coventry beginning on page 107 of this proxy statement/prospectus or its obligations to call and hold a meeting of its
stockholders for purposes of voting on a proposal to adopt the merger agreement; or

by Coventry:

prior to Coventry stockholders adopting the merger agreement, in order to enter into a definitive agreement providing for a
superior acquisition proposal; or

if (i) there is in effect any order in respect of certain regulatory matters that prohibits completion of the merger, which order

has not become final and non-appealable, (ii) within 30 days of that order taking effect, Aetna has not instituted appropriate

proceedings seeking to have that order terminated and (iii) Aetna s failure to institute appropriate proceedings has not been

cured within 10 days following notice to Aetna from Coventry of Coventry s intent to terminate the merger agreement.
Termination Fees (See Page 117)

As more fully described in this proxy statement/prospectus and in the merger agreement, and subject to the terms and conditions described in the
merger agreement, Coventry has agreed to pay Aetna a termination fee of $167.5 million if the merger agreement is terminated under any of the
following circumstances:

by Aetna because Coventry s board of directors withdraws or modifies in a manner adverse to Aetna its recommendation that
Coventry stockholders adopt the merger agreement or fails to publicly confirm that recommendation within seven business days of a
request to do so from Aetna;

by Aetna because Coventry has breached in any material respect any of its obligations described under The Merger Agreement No
Solicitation by Coventry beginning on page 107 of this proxy statement/prospectus or its obligations to call and hold a meeting of its
stockholders for purposes of voting on a proposal to adopt the merger agreement;

by Aetna or Coventry because Coventry stockholders fail to adopt the merger agreement upon a vote taken on a proposal to adopt the
merger agreement at a Coventry stockholders meeting and Coventry s board of directors has withdrawn or modified in a manner
adverse to Aetna its recommendation that Coventry stockholders adopt the merger agreement;

by Aetna or Coventry because Coventry stockholders fail to adopt the merger agreement upon a vote taken on a proposal to adopt the
merger agreement at a Coventry stockholders meeting and (i) Coventry s board of directors has not withdrawn or modified in a
manner adverse to Aetna its recommendation that Coventry stockholders adopt the merger agreement and (ii) a competing
acquisition proposal has been publicly announced before the Coventry stockholders meeting, except that Coventry initially will only
be required to pay Aetna 25% of the $167.5 million termination fee upon termination of the merger agreement under these
circumstances, with the remaining 75% of the termination fee payable to Aetna if Coventry accepts a competing acquisition proposal
within 12 months of termination; or
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by Coventry prior to Coventry stockholders adopting the merger agreement, in order to enter into a definitive agreement providing
for a superior acquisition proposal.
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As more fully described in this proxy statement/prospectus and in the merger agreement, and subject to the terms and conditions described in the
merger agreement, Aetna has agreed to pay Coventry a termination fee of $450.0 million if both (x) the merger agreement is terminated under
any the following circumstances:

by Coventry or Aetna because the merger has not been completed on or before the end date;

by Coventry or Aetna because there is in effect any final and non-appealable order in respect of certain regulatory matters that
prohibits completion of the merger; or

by Coventry because (i) there is in effect any order in respect of certain regulatory matters that prohibits completion of the merger,
which order has not become final and non-appealable, (ii) within 30 days of that order taking effect, Aetna has not instituted
appropriate proceedings seeking to have that order terminated and (iii) Aetna s failure to institute appropriate proceedings has not
been cured within 10 days following notice to Aetna from Coventry of Coventry s intent to terminate the merger agreement;
and (y) at the time of termination of the merger agreement, all of the conditions to Aetna s and Merger Sub s obligations to complete the merger
are satisfied other than (i) the regulatory approvals condition and (ii) the condition requiring the absence of any applicable law being in effect
that prohibits completion of the merger (but only if that condition is not satisfied solely due to a final and non-appealable order in respect of
certain regulatory matters).

Except in the case of fraud, if either party receives a termination fee in accordance with the provisions of the merger agreement, the receipt of
the termination fee will be the receiving party s sole and exclusive remedy against the paying party.

See The Merger Agreement Termination Fee and Expenses beginning on page 117 of this proxy statement/prospectus for a more complete
description of the circumstances under which Coventry or Aetna will be required to pay a termination fee.

Specific Performance; Remedies (See Page 118)

Under the merger agreement, each of Aetna and Coventry is entitled to seek an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of the merger
agreement or to enforce specifically the terms and provisions of the merger agreement, in addition to any other remedy to which that party may
be entitled at law or in equity.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences (See Page 90)

In general, U.S. holders (as defined under Proposal I: The Merger Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences beginning on page 90 of this
proxy statement/prospectus) will recognize capital gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes on the exchange of their Coventry common
stock for Aetna common shares and cash in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between (i) the sum of the fair market value of the Aetna
common shares on the date of the exchange and cash received (including cash received in lieu of a fractional Aetna common share) and (ii) the

U.S. holder s adjusted tax basis in the Coventry common stock surrendered in the exchange.

The U.S. federal income tax consequences described above may not apply to all holders of Coventry common stock, including certain
holders specifically referred to on page 90 of this proxy statement/prospectus. Your tax consequences will depend on your own situation.
You should consult your tax advisor to determine the particular tax consequences of the merger to you.
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could restrict the flow of users visiting Answers.com specifically. In fact. we have previously experienced decreases in
traffic. and consequently in revenue. in response to such search engine action. Thus., we expend resources quarding and
improving the volume of this traffic. The industry commonly refers to such efforts as search engine optimization, or SEO.
We often refer to traffic from search engines as SEO traffic. We also focus on the “quality” of our Q&A database, since a
potential result of poor quality content may be a negative impact on our SEO traffic.

Seasonality

Our results of operations have historically been affected by seasonal traffic patterns and advertising demand. Many of our
users are students who utilize our Web properties as reference sources. Our traffic fluctuates with the academic school
year, rising from January through May. falling to lower levels during the summer months. rising again in September
through November. and falling again in December. coinciding with school breaks and the holiday season. We expect
traffic to our Web properties to continue to fluctuate seasonally in the future. This seasonal fluctuation in traffic results in
a fluctuation in our quarterly revenues. since lower traffic to Answers.com translates into fewer users clicking on or
viewing the advertisements we display. Our current seasonal patterns may become more pronounced or may change as
we grow domestically.

Monetization

Advertising Revenue. We earn practically all of our revenue from advertising. There are two primary categories of Internet
advertising: pay-per-performance, also known as cost-per-click (“CPC”). and pay-per-impression display ads or cost per
1.000 impressions (“CPM”) In the CPC model. we earn revenue based on the number of clicks associated with an ad; in the
CPM model. we derive revenue from the display of ads. The overwhelming majority of our advertising revenue is earned
from CPC advertising. We obtain all of our CPC. and most of our CPM advertisements from third-party ad networks. These
ad networks compensate us by paying us a portion of the revenue they earn from advertisers for our provision of
promotional space on our Web propetrties.

Our primary third party ad network, Google AdSense. accounted for approximately 88% of our total revenue in 2009. as
compared to approximately 82% of our total revenue in 2008. We obtain practically all our CPC ads from Google. In
addition to Google. we utilize the services of other third party ad networks that provide us with CPM ads. We expect that
for the foreseeable future, CPC ads will continue to generate the overwhelming majority of our revenue. and we have no
plans to reduce our reliance on CPC ads.

Our relationship with Google is governed by our Google Services Agreement, or GSA. which was recently renewed for a
two-year period ending January 31. 2012. We participate in two Google AdSense programs. “Adsense for Search” or “AFS”
and “Adsense for Content” or “AFC”. AFS is the online service for distributing relevant ads from Google’s advertisers for
search results on Google Network members’ sites. AFC. on the other hand. is Google’s online service for distributing ads
from its advertisers that are relevant to content on its Network members’ web sites. Under this program. Google uses
automated technology to analyze the meaning of the content on the web page and serve relevant ads based on the
meaning of such content. Queries resulting in WikiAnswers pages are almost always monetized via AFC ads. while
gueries triggering ReferenceAnswers pages are mostly monetized via AFS ads.

For a full discussion explaining our monetization and traffic metrics, please refer to the first section in this Annual Report,
titled “References to Web Property Usage Measurements™.
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Direct Ad Sales. In the second quarter of 2008. we decided to suspend our direct ad sales efforts and to instead focus on
selling ads through third-party advertising networks. primarily Google AdSense. In the second and third quarter of 2008
we terminated all of our direct ad sales employees. This decision allowed us to focus on our core competency — growing
the community. growing our traffic and monetizing via Google and other ad networks. Notwithstanding the lack of a direct
ad sales team. we are occasionally approached directly by advertisers who wish to advertise on Answers.com. and we
often facilitate such requests. Direct ads represented an immaterial portion of our total 2009 revenue.

Licensing Revenue. We earn a negligible portion of our revenues from partners that pay us for providing them with our
answer-based services that they then use in their own products. via co-branded Web pages.

Costs and Expenses

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists of compensation, travel and overhead costs relating to personnel who are engaged in
production operations. content editing and integration. fees to third parties to license and translate content. data center
costs. including depreciation of information technology assets. Web search service fees. ad serving fees. amortization of
the cost of acquired software used in our products. and contractual revenue sharing fees to various Web property
operators for visitors directed to our Web propetrties. or traffic acquisition costs. We expect our cost of revenue, as a
percentage of revenue. to increase in 2010 because of the various initiatives we are planning. including translation of
significantly more English-language content into foreign languages.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist of compensation. travel and overhead costs of personnel conducting
research and development of our products and services. and consulting costs. Our research and development team
works primarily on projects to improve and enhance product functionality. quality. performance. scalability. user
interface. and monetization. In the long term, we expect that our research and development expenses will decline as a
percentage of revenue as we grow our revenue. However. since we expect to grow our research and development team
significantly in 2010, we expect our research and development expenses. as a percentage of revenue, to increase in 2010.
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Community Development, Sales and Marketing Expenses

Community development, sales and marketing expenses consist of compensation, travel and overhead costs of
personnel in charge of developing and encouraging the WikiAnswers community of users asking and answering
guestions and volunteer supervisors. sales and marketing. product management. marketing and market information
services. public relations and promotional costs. As a result of our termination of direct ad sales in 2008. we expect that
the primary future growth in this expense line item will be in the area of WikiAnswers community development. In the long
term we expect that our community development, sales and marketing expenses will decline as a percentage of revenue
as we grow our revenue, however we may not experience that improvement in 2010.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation, travel and overhead costs for general executive,
financial, legal. human resources, and other administrative personnel. professional services, including investor relations.
legal, accounting. payroll and other consulting services, insurance fees. amortization of domain names. and other general
corporate expenses. We generally expect that our general and administrative expenses will decline as a percentage of
revenue as we grow our revenue.

Overhead Costs

Overhead costs consist primarily of rent, telecommunications, utilities and depreciation expenses.

Stock-Based Compensation

New employees typically receive stock option awards within three months of their start date. We also grant additional
stock option awards to existing employees and directors. We account for stock-based awards under Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) 718. “Compensation — Stock Compensation” . which requires measurement of compensation
cost for all stock-based awards at fair value on date of grant and recognition of compensation over the service period
awards are expected to vest. Costs resulting from stock-based compensation are part of our compensation expense and
are included in the operating expense categories in our Statements of Operations.
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Impact of Foreign Currency Fluctuations

The dollar cost of our operations is heavily influenced by changes in the value of the dollar in relation to the New Israeli
Shekel (“NIS”). mostly due to the NIS-based salaries of our Israel-based employees. Close to half of our operating
expenses, excluding non-cash items such as stock-based compensation, are denominated in New Israel Shekels. We
enter into forward contracts to hedge some of our NIS-based expenses. Prior to May 2009. these derivatives were not
designated as hedging instruments under the rules of ASC 815. “Derivatives and Hedging”, and therefore. the net gains
(losses) arising from these derivatives were recognized in operating expenses as they occurred. Starting May 2009, we
designated all of our currency hedging activity as cash flow hedges as they were all eligible. Thus, the change in those
hedges are recorded as other comprehensive income (loss). and are reclassified to earnings as the forward contracts
mature or if. and to the extent that the hedging relationship is deemed ineffective.

In 2009. compensation. excluding stock-based compensation (thereafter, “Cash-Based Compensation”). to employees
amounted to $7.134 thousand compared to $7.071 thousand during the same period in 2008. a net increase of $63
thousand. As a result of the strengthening of the dollar as compared to the NIS and the effect of foreign currency
derivatives, Cash-Based Compensation in 2009 declined approximately $495 thousand as compared to 2008; however
such decline was offset by other compensation changes. including increases in headcount and raises. amounting to $558
thousand.

Our period-over-period discussion regarding operating expenses includes the impact of foreign currency on such
expenses. We expect our NIS-based expenses in 2010. to be in excess of 2009 levels. thus, if the dollar continues to
fluctuate as compared to the NIS. we will experience further fluctuation in the dollar amount of our NIS-based expenses.
Termination fees and write-off of cost relating to the terminated Lexico acquisition and abandoned follow-on offering

In the first quarter of 2008. our planned acquisition of Lexico Publishing Group LLC and the related planned offering of
securities were terminated due to unfavorable market conditions. As a result. we recorded a charge to our statement of
operations. amounting to approximately $2.54 million.

Interest Expense. Net

Interest expense. net, is comprised of interest income earned on cash. cash equivalents and marketable securities,

interest expense on capital leases. transaction costs we incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series B
Warrants in June 2009 and amortization of deferred costs we incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series B Unit

Warrant. in June 2008.

Other Income, Net

Other income, net, is comprised of foreign currency gains and losses.

Loss Resulting from Fair Value Adjustment of Warrants

The Series A Warrants. the Series B Warrants and the Series B Unit Warrant (prior to exercise), which are components of
transactions with Redpoint Omega. L.P. and Redpoint Omega Associates. LLC (collectively, “Redpoint”) are revalued each
reporting date. Any change to their fair value is recorded as a gain or loss in the Statement of Operations. Background
regarding the transaction with Redpoint follows. Redpoint Financings On June 16. 2008, pursuant to a private placement

Purchase Warrants exercisable for 666.667 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.95 per share (“Series A

” i« ” G

Tabrces,” “Off Balance Sheet Arrangements,” “Critical Accounting Estimates” and “Quarterly Results”. Thd8Genera



Edgar Filing: AETNA INC /PA/ - Form S-4/A

Warrants”). In conjunction therewith, Redpoint also received a warrant, referred to as the “Series B Unit Warrant”,
exercisable until June 16, 2009. to purchase units of up to $7 million of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (70.000
shares) and Common Stock Purchase Warrants exercisable for 636.364 shares of common stock (“Series B Warrants”). The
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock is initially convertible into 1.272.727 shares of common stock at an initial conversion
price of $5.50 per share. The Series B Warrants have an exercise price of $6.05 per share. On June 10. 2009, Redpoint

exercised the Series B Unit Warrant, in full.
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After deducting placement agent fees and legal expenses. our net proceeds from the private placement, in June 2008,
were $5.38 million, while our net proceeds from the exercise of the Series B Unit warrant, in June 2009, were $6.48 million.
The transaction that took place on June 16, 2008 is referred to as the “Series A Financing”. The transaction that took place
on June 10. 2009 is referred to as the “Series B Financing”. The two transactions. in aggregate. are collectively referred to
as the “Redpoint Financings”. The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, the
Series A Warrants and the Series B Warrants are collectively referred to as the “Redpoint Securities”. The Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock has the rights and preferences set forth in our Certificate of Designations. Number, Voting
Powers. Preferences and Rights of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. which, as of its date of filing on June 16, 2008,
amended our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation. The Series B Convertible Preferred Stock has the rights
and preferences set forth in the Company’s Certificate of Designations, which amended the Company’s Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation on June 9. 2009. For a detailed description of the rights and preferences of the
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. we refer you to the notes to the
financial statements contained in this annual report. In connection with the Redpoint Financings, Redpoint received and
exercised their right to appoint two individuals to serve as voting members of our board of directors. In connection with
the Redpoint Financings we entered into a registration rights agreement with Redpoint. pursuant to which we agreed to
register with the SEC for resale the common stock underlying the Redpoint Securities. In connection with the registration
rights agreement, we agreed to pay a penalty of 1.0% per month. on a daily pro rata basis. up to a maximum of 8.0%. of
the aggregate purchase price. as partial liquidated damages. for certain default events and subject to certain
circumstances. The partial liquidated damages may trigger if the registration statements covering the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, which we filed on July 30. 2008 and June 15. 2009,
respectively, and which were declared effective by the SEC on September 16. 2008 and July 28. 2009. respectively. cease
to remain continuously effective.

Income Tax Benefit (Expense), Net

Our effective tax rate differs from the statutory federal rate primarily due to differences between income and expense
recognition prescribed by income tax regulations and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. We utilize different
methods and useful lives for depreciating and amortizing property. equipment and intangible assets and different
methods and timing for certain expenses. Furthermore., permanent differences arise from certain income and expense
items recorded for financial reporting purposes but not recognizable for income tax purposes. and from certain income
and expense items recorded for income tax purposes financial but not recognizable for reporting purposes. In addition,
our income tax expense has been adjusted for the effect of state and local taxes and foreign income from our wholly
owned subsidiary. At December 31. 2009. our deferred tax assets were almost entirely offset by a valuation allowance.
Despite the fact that we had income in 2009. we experienced a cumulative loss in recent years and view this as a
significant piece of negative evidence that makes it difficult to support a conclusion that expected taxable income from
future operations justifies recognition of deferred tax assets.

Our Israeli subsidiary had net income in 2008 and 2009. resulting from services we received from the Israeli subsidiary.
The Israeli subsidiary charges us for research & development it provides us. plus a profit margin. currently 8.3%.
However, the subsidiary operates primarily through plans recognized as “approved enterprises” (and a “beneficiary
enterprise” as later amended in amendment No. 60 to the Investment Law) under Israeli law, which means that income
arising from the subsidiary’s approved research & development activities. is subject to zero percent tax under the
“alternative benefit” path for a period of ten years. Currently. the subsidiary operates under two separate “approved
enterprise” plans. ending December 31. 2009 and December 31. 2014, respectively. and a “beneficiary enterprise” plan
ending December 31. 2017. After the close of the first approved enterprise plan in 2009. the subsidiary will have to pay
taxes at the reqular corporate income tax rate on the relative proportion of taxable income attributable to the first
approved enterprise plan.

Additionally, the Israeli subsidiary provides Answers Corporation with certain management services plus a profit margin,
currently 8.3%. Income derived from such services are taxable at the Israeli corporate tax rate in effect at the time (27%
and 26% in 2008 and 2009, respectively).

In the event of distributions by our Israeli subsidiary to Answers Corporation, the Israeli subsidiary would have to pay a
10% corporate tax on the amount distributed, and Answers Corporation would have to pay a 15% tax to be withheld at
source on the amounts of such distributions received. Furthermore. Answers Corporation would be subject to a 35%
federal tax on dividends received. before applying any credits possibly allowed for NOL carryforwards or by the income
tax treaty between the United States and Israel. At present, we do not plan on having the subsidiary distribute a dividend
to Answers Corporation.
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Results of Operations
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Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 Change
($ - in thousands)

WiAnswers advertising revenue7.524 14,454 6.930
ReferenceAnswers advertising revenue6.622 6.230 (392

Licensing revenue81 71 (10

14,227 20.755 6,528

Revenue

Revenue increased $6.528 thousand, or 46%. from $14.227 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2008 to $20.755
thousand for the year ended December 31. 2009.

WikiAnswers advertising revenue in 2009 increased $6.930 thousand. or 92%. compared to the preceding year. due to
increases in traffic. offset to some extent by decreased RPM. WikiAnswers average daily page views in the year ended
December 31. 2009 were 6.496.000. an increase of 123% compared to the average daily page views of 2.916.000 in 2008.
We believe that the traffic growth that WikiAnswers has experienced in the year ended December 31, 2009 as compared to
the same period in 2008 is primarily due to the dynamics of the property. As our database of questions and answers
grows, we draw new traffic, primarily from SEO. which in turn results in the creation of new questions and answers. or
new content, which in turn drives additional growth. The growth in revenue from the aforesaid traffic growth was partially
offset by a decrease in our RPM. The average WikiAnswers RPM in the year ended December 31, 2009 was $6.10. a
decrease of 14% compared to the average RPM of $7.07 in 2008. Google AdSense comprised 89% of our WikiAnswers ad
revenue in 2009, thus. the decrease in RPM resulted mostly from a decrease in the RPM we earn from Google AdSense.
We believe the decline in Google AdSense RPM may be attributed to any of a number of possible factors. or a
combination of several such factors. including. changes we made to the site. changes that Google may have made to the
AdSense algorithm that connects advertisers and publishers and changes in how advertisers may have managed their
advertising costs in response to uncertain economic conditions.

ReferenceAnswers advertising revenue in 2009 decreased $392 thousand. or 6%. compared to the preceding year. due to
lower RPM. ReferenceAnswers RPM in the year ended December 31, 2009 was $5.92. a decrease of 6%, compared to the
RPM of $6.28 in 2008. We attribute the decline mostly due to the elimination of direct ad sales in the third guarter of 2008.
Unlike WikiAnswers, the ReferenceAnswers Google RPM d|d not decline in 2009. as compared to 2008. notwithstanding
our belief that the possible factors discussed above with respect to the Google AdSense RPM on WikiAnswers are the
same factors that may have played a role in determining ReferenceAnswers’ Google AdSense RPM. ReferenceAnswers
average daily page views in 2009 were 2.884.000. which approximates our average daily page views of 2.889.000 in 2008.
As described in further detail above. in September 2009, we announced the launch of the new Answers.com, in
recognition of our integration of WikiAnswers and ReferenceAnswers. The product strategy guiding such integration was
our desire to give users a common address for the best answers to all types of questions — be they community-generated
from WikiAnswers. or editorially licensed from ReferenceAnswers. In September 2009, we took our final step in this
integration by creating a hew unified Answers.com home page and login. integrating features from both properties. and
making other changes in our user interface to strengthen our positioning as having one dominant product and brand.
Answers.com, comprised by two properties. WikiAnswers and ReferenceAnswers. Since the new unified Answers.com
home page was designed to give prominence to WikiAnswers and to encourage users to enter their questions into the
site’s query bar, beginning September 2009, visits to that page. which on average approximate 175.000 per day. are being
recorded as a WikiAnswers page-view rather than a ReferenceAnswers page-view. contrary to the previous practice.
Traffic and Revenue Trends
The following table illustrates the historical trends of our two Web properties’ revenues. average daily page views and

RPMs, by quarter, beginning the first quarter of 2008.
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2008 2009
2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Ad Revenue($ - in thousands)

WikiAnswers1,185 1.500 1.960 2.879 3.162 3.400 3.422 4.470
ReferenceAnswers1.828 1.485 1.579 1.730 1.567 1.585 1.548 1.530
Total3.013 2.985 3.539 4.609 4.729 4,985 4.970 6.000

WikiAnswers39% 50% 55% 62% 67% 68% 69% 75%
ReferenceAnswers61% 50% 45% 38% 33% 32% 31% 25%
Total100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

TrafficAverage Daily Page Views
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WikiAnswers1.885.000 2.318.000 3.094.000 4.350.000 5.337.000 6.082.000 6.336.000 8.199.000
ReferenceAnswers3.225.000 2.641.000 2.666.000 3.027.000 2.982.000 2,965.000 2.857.000 2.737,000
Total5.110.000 4,959.000 5.760,000 7.377.000 8.319.000 9.047.000 9.193.000 10.936.000

WikiAnswers37% 47% 54% 59% 64% 67% 69% 75%
ReferenceAnswers63% 53% 46% 41% 36% 33% 31% 25%
Total100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

RPM
WikiAnswers$6.91 $7.11 $6.89 $7.19 $6.58 $6.14 $5.87 $5.93
ReferenceAnswers$6.23 $6.18 $6.44 $6.21 $5.84 $5.87 $5.89 $6.08

Traffic Trends The traffic and RPM trend discussion that follows pertains to our Answers.com English site and not the
FIGS sites that are currently in their infancy and are immaterial. Since we purchased WikiAnswers in November 2006, the
Web property has grown significantly. both in terms of traffic and revenue. We believe that the growth that WikiAnswers
has experienced is primarily due to the dynamics of the property. As our database of questions and answers grows, we
draw new traffic, primarily from SEO, which in turn results in the creation of new questions and answers. or new content,
which drives additional growth. This is a self-reinforcing growth model that we consider a “virtuous cycle of growth”.
Notwithstanding this cycle of growth, WikiAnswers’ growth has. over time decelerated, and we believe that. as
WikiAnswers grows further and gets larger, its rate of growth will decelerate further. In addition. the integration of our two
Web properties may further decelerate the growth of WikiAnswers as compared to past periods. Beginning the third
quarter of 2007, when we experienced a drop in our traffic to ReferenceAnswers due to a search engine algorithm
adjustment by Google. through the first quarter of 2009, ReferenceAnswers average daily page views in every quarter has
declined. compared to the same quarter in the immediately preceding year. In the second and third quarters of 2009,
ReferenceAnswers average daily page views were 12% and 7% higher, respectively. than the average daily page views for
the same periods in 2008. However. ReferenceAnswers experienced traffic declines in the months of September and
October 2009, as compared to the same months in 2008. Finally, in the fourth quarter of 2009, ReferenceAnswers stopped
receiving traffic from the Google Definition Link. We are presently not able to identify a predictable traffic trend for this
property. RPM Trends As noted earlier, 88% of our 2009 revenue was earned via Google AdSense. Since we are not
planning to change this dependence anytime in the near future., our RPM will largely be a function of the revenue we earn
from Google AdSense. We renewed our GSA in October 2009. extending the agreement through January 2012, at financial
terms that are slightly less favorable than the terms we had for the two-year period ending January 31, 2010. therefore we
expect a slightly lower Google AdSense RPM. Further. we believe that there are many other factors. any one of which or a
combination thereof, that may impact our Google AdSense revenue, including changes we make to the site, positioning of
ads, the geographic mix of our traffic, the growing percentage of returning visitors and changes that Google may make to
the algorithm that connects advertisers and publishers. In addition. advertisers may lower or increase their bids for
keywords in response to how much they are able to make per paid click. As a result of the multiple possible factors. many
of which are not in our control, we cannot predict whether the RPM declines we saw in 2009 will continue in 2010.
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Costs and Expenses
Cost of Revenue

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 Change

($ - in thousands)

C_ost of revenue4.641 4.796 155

Cost of revenue increased $155 thousand. or 3%. from $4.641 thousand in 2008, to $4.796 thousand in 2009.. The change
in cost of revenue was due primarily to an increase of $275 thousand in compensation costs. excluding stock based

compensation, and an increase of $150 thousand in content licensing costs. Additionally. in 2009 we started translatin

WikiAnswers into four languages. which resulted in translation expenses of $132 thousand. an expense we did not incur
in 2008. The aforesaid increases were patrtially offset by decreases of $35 thousand in stock-based compensation. and
$358 thousand in amortization expense from intangible technology assets we purchased in connection with the
Brainboost acquisition that took place in December 2005. As we wrote off the Brainboost Answer Engine on May 25. 2008,
there was no amortization recorded subsequent to such date.

Research and Development Expenses

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 Change

($ - in thousands)

Research and development3.482 3.608 126
Research and development expenses increased $126 thousand. or 4%. from $3.482 thousand in 2008, to $3.608 thousand

in 2009. The change in research and development expenses was due primarily to an increase of $49 thousand in
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compensation related expenses. excluding stock based compensation. and increases in travel and overhead of $52
thousand and $46 thousand. respectively. Such increases were offset. to some extent. by a decrease in stock based
compensation of $34 thousand.
Community Development, Sales and Marketing Expenses
Year Ended December 31
2008 2009 Change
($ - in thousands)
Community development, sales and marketing2,734 2.459 (275)
Community development, sales and marketing expenses decreased $275 thousand. or 10%. from $2.734 thousand in
2008, to $2.459 thousand. in 2009. The primary factor that caused this decrease was that compensation related expenses,
excluding stock based compensation. decreased $312 thousand, and stock based compensation decreased $75
thousand. mostly due to the termination of our direct ad sales team in the second and third quarters of 2008. At the end of
the second quarter of 2008 we decided to abandon direct ad sales. and terminated most of our direct ad sales staff.
Further, as a result of such decision we recorded a net charge of $90 thousand. in 2008, to account for the termination of
certain service contracts relating to our abandoned direct ad sales efforts. Finally, there was also a decrease of $62
housand in overhead expenses in 2009 as comgared to 2008 The aforesaid decreases were partially offset by i |ncreases

in consulting and other services of $64 thousand.
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General and Administrative Expenses
Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 Change
($ - in thousands)

General and administrative4.799 4.899 100

General and administrative expenses increased $100 thousand. or 2%. from $4.799 thousand in 2008, to $4.899 thousand
in 2009. The change in general and administrative expenses was due primarily to the following factors: Compensation
costs. excluding stock based compensation. increased by $51 thousand. travel and conference expenses increased by
$104 thousand, consulting fees increased by $57 thousand and non-income related taxes increased by $73 thousand. The
aforesaid increases were partially offset by decreases of $115 thousand in accounting and legal fees. $22 thousand in
stock based compensation. and $30 thousand in overhead expenses.

Write-off of the Brainboost Answer Engine

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 Change

($ - in thousands)

Write-off of the Brainboost Answer Engine3.138 - (3.138)

As a result of our decision to effectively abandon our use of the Brainboost Answer Engine, the net book value of the
Brainboost Answer Engine. as of May 25. 2008, in the amount of $3.138 thousand, was written off and the resulting charge
was included in our statement of operations for 2008.

Termination Fees and Write-off of Costs Relating to the Terminated Lexico Acquisition and Abandoned Follow-on Offering
Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 Change

($ - in thousands)

Termination fees and write-off of costs relating to the terminated Lexico acquisition and abandoned follow-on

offering2.543 - (2,543)

In 2008 we recorded a charge of $2.543 thousand for various costs and fees we incurred in connection with the terminated
acquisition of Lexico and the abandoned follow-on offering of securities. Interest Expense. Net

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 Change

($ - in thousands)

Rrest expense. net(55) (440) (385)

Interest expense. net. rose $(385) thousand. from $(55) thousand expense. net. in 2008, to $(440) thousand expense. het

in 2009. The change in interest expense. net. resulted mostly from the following matters: Firstly, in 2009. we recorded
$1 66 thousand of amortlzatlon relating to §363 thousand of transacllon costs that we incurred in connection WIth the

recorded a $290 thousand charge relating to the Series B Warrants transaction costs we |ncurred in June 2009. Finally,
interest earned from our cash balance in 2009 was $25 thousand. compared to $148 thousand in 2008. The reduction in

interest income earned on our cash balances was the result of lower short-term interest rates.
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Other Income, Net

Year Ended December 31
2008 2009 Change

($ - in thousands)

Other income, net19 6 (13)

Other income,. net, declined $13 thousand. from $19 thousand in 2008. to $6 thousand. net. in 2009. Other income, net
results from foreign currency net gains and losses.

Loss Resulting from Fair Value Adjustments of Warrants

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 Change

($ - in thousands)

Loss resulting from fair value adjustment of warrants(5.187) (2.634) 2.553

The Series A Warrants and Series B Warrants are revalued each reporting date, and any change to their fair value is
recorded in the statement of operations. The Warrant to Purchase Units of Series B Preferred Stock and Warrants was. up
1o its exercise in June 2009, also revalued each reporting period and the change in its fair value was recorded in the
statement of operations.

The primary reason for the change in value of the aforesaid warrants is the market price of our common stock on the
measurement dates. An increase in the price of our common stock increases the value of the warrants and thus results in
a loss on our statement of operations. Conversely. a decline in the price of our common stock decreases the value of the
warrants and thus results in a gain on our statement of operations.

Income Tax Benefit (Expense), Net

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 Change

($ - in thousands)

rcome tax benefit (expense). net82 (165) (247)

Income tax benefit (expense). net, changed b 247) thousand. from 2008 to 2009. The tax benefit for the year ended
December 31, 2008 was primarily the result of the recognition of $147 thousand of tax benefits relating to closed tax
ears. which was partially offset by Israeli income taxes amounting to approximately $53 thousand. The tax expense for
the year ended December 31, 2009 was primarily the result of $190 thousand related to estimated income taxes for U.S.
federal, state and local. and Israeli income taxes. partially offset by $36 thousand of net deferred tax assets recorded by
the subsidiary.
We have net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards for federal income tax purposes of approximately $53 million at
December 31. 2009. The federal NOLs will expire if not utilized on various dates from 2021 through 2028. Section 382 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (“Section 382”) generally imposes an annual limitation on the amount of NOL
carryforwards that may be used to offset taxable income where a corporation has undergone significant changes in its
tock ownershlg We estimate two ownershlp changes. as deflned under Section 382, have occurred, that would trigger

NOL is scheduled to expire. The SubSIdlar has capital loss carr forwards of approximately $789 thousand. which can be
applied to future capital gains for an unlimited period of time under current tax rules.
We file U.S. federal, various state and local and foreign income tax returns. We are no longer subject to U.S. federal
income tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2005 and New York State and City income tax examinations
for years prior to 2006. Our Israeli subsidiary is no longer subject to tax examinations by the Israeli income tax authorities
for years prior to 2007.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Historically. our principal sources of liquidity were our cash inflows from revenues and funds that were raised through
various financing events that took place through June 2008. Beginning the last quarter of 2008. our principal source of
liquidity has been our cash inflows from operations. and we expect that going forward. cash flow from operations will
continue to be our principal source of liquidity. Notwithstanding. as a result of Redpoint’s exercise of their Series B Unit

Year Ended December 31
2008 2009

($ - in thousands)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities(299) 6.799
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities82 (2,333
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Net cash provided by financing activities5.196 6.047

Operating Activities

Despite a net loss of $12.251 thousand in 2008, net cash used in operations was $299 thousand. The adjustments to
reconcile the two amounts. including changes to the balances of our various operating assets and liabilities. are noted in
detail on the accompanying statement of cash flows. The largest reconciling items are the loss resulting from the fair
value adjustment of the Series B Unit Warrant of $5.187 thousand, the write-off of the Brainboost Answers Engine of
$3.138 thousand. stock-based compensation of $1.719 thousand. and depreciation and amortization of $1.329 thousand.
Although net income in 2009 was $1.760 thousand in 2009, the net cash provided by operations was $6.799 thousand. The
adjustments to reconcile the two amounts. including changes to the balances of our various operating assets and
liabilities, are noted in detail on the accompanying statement of cash flows. The largest reconciling items are the loss
resulting from the fair value adjustment of the warrants of $2.634 thousand. stock-based compensation of $1.553
thousand. and depreciation and amortization of $1.185 thousand.

Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activities of $82 thousand. in 2008, is attributable to the proceeds from the sale of
marketable securities of $700 thousand. less cash used to increase long-term deposits of $60 thousand and cash used for
capital expenditures of $558 thousand.

Net cash used in investing activities of $2.333 thousand. in 2009, is attributable to cash used for capital expenditures of
$1.515 thousand, cash used to purchase marketable securities of $799 thousand. and cash used to increase long-term
deposits of $19 thousand. Most of our capital expenditures resulted from the establishment of our second colocation
facility. We expect capital expenditures in 2010 will continue to grow as we continue to invest in various areas including
our existing colocation facilities and office facilities.

Financing Activities Net cash flow from financing activities in 2008 and 2009 were mostly the result of the Redpoint
Financings. less dividends paid to Redpoint. Future Operations

Based on our current cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and expected cash flow from operations, we

believe we have sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet our working capital and operating requirements for at least
the next twelve months.
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We assess acquisition opportunities as they arise. Financing in excess of our current cash and cash equivalents may be
required if we decide to make additional acquisitions. There can be no assurance. however, that any such opportunities
may arise. or that any such acquisitions may be consummated. Additional financing may not be available on satisfactory
terms when required. To the extent that we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities. our stockholders may

request redemption. at any time on or after June 16. 2014, of all or any part of their stock.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31. 2009. there were no off-balance sheet arrangements.

Critical Accounting Estimates

While our significant accounting policies are more fully described in the notes to our audited consolidated financial
statements for the years ended December 31. 2008 and 2009, we believe the following accounting policies to be the most
critical in understanding the judgments and estimates we use in preparing our consolidated financial statements.
Goodwill, Intangibles and Other Long-Lived Assets

We account for our purchases of acquired companies in accordance with ASC 805, “Business Combinations” )formerly
SFAS 141(, and for goodwill and other identifiable definite and indefinite-lived acquired intangible assets in accordance
with ASC 350, “Intangibles — Goodwill and Other” (formerly SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”). Additionally,
we review our long-lived assets for recoverability in accordance with ASC 360. “Property, Plant and Equipment” (formerly
SEAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”).

The identification and valuation of intangible assets and the determination of the estimated useful lives at the time of
acquisition are based on various valuation methodologies including reviews of projected future cash flows. The use of
alternative estimates and assumptions could increase or decrease the estimated fair value of our goodwill and other
intangible assets. and potentially result in a different impact to our results of operations. Further, changes in business
strategy and/or market conditions may significantly impact these judgments thereby impacting the fair value of these
assets. which could result in an impairment of the goodwill and acquired intangible assets.

We evaluate our long-lived tangible and intangible assets for impairment in accordance with ASC 350. with the annual
goodwill impairment testing date set at September 30. Further, in accordance with ASC 360 and ASC 350, we also
evaluate our long-lived tangible and intangible assets. respectively. for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If such assets are considered to be
impaired. the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds the fair value of the assets. While we use available information to prepare our estimates and to perform
impairment evaluations. the completion of annual impairment tests requires significant management judgments and
estimates.

As of December 31. 2009. we determined that there was no impairment of goodwill and that there were no events or
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changes in circumstances indicating that the carrying amount of our intangible and other long-lived assets may not be
recoverable; therefore. there was no need to evaluate the recoverability or compute impairment of any of the aforesaid
assets.

Accounting for Stock-based Compensation

We account for stock-based awards under ASC 718. “Compensation — Stock Compensation” (formerly SFAS 123R,
“Share-Based Payment”). which requires measurement of compensation cost for stock-based awards at fair value on date
of grant and recognition of compensation over the service period awards are expected to vest. The estimation of
stock-based awards that will ultimately vest requires judgment. and to the extent actual results differ from our estimates.
such amounts will be recorded as a cumulative adjustment in the period estimates are revised. We consider various

factors when estimating expected forfeitures. including historical experience. Actual results may differ substantially from
these estimates.
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We determine the fair value of stock options granted to employees and directors using the Black-Scholes valuation
model, which requires significant assumptions regarding the expected stock price volatility, the risk-free interest rate and
the dividend yield. and the estimated period of time option grants will be outstanding before they are ultimately exercised.
We estimate our expected stock volatility based on our own historical stock volatility rates. Had we made different

assumptions about our stock price volatility or the estimated time option and warrant grants will be outstanding before
they are ultimately exercised. the related stock based compensation expense. and our net income (loss) and net earnings
loss) per share amounts could have been significantly different. in 2009 and 2008.
Accounting for Income Taxes
As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements. we are required to estimate our income taxes in
each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves management estimating our actual current tax
exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and
accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities. which are included within our
consolidated balance sheet. We must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future
taxable income and. to the extent we believe that recovery is not more likely than not. we must establish a valuation
allowance. Significant management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes. our deferred tax
assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded against our net deferred tax assets. At December 31. 2009. we
have fully offset our U.S. net deferred tax asset with a valuation allowance. Despite the fact that we had income in 2009,
we experienced a cumulative loss in recent years and view this as a significant piece of negative evidence that makes it
difficult to support a conclusion that expected taxable income from future operations justifies recognition of deferred tax
assets.
ASC 740. “Income Taxes” (formerly FASB Interpretation No. 48. “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
Interpretation of FASB Statement 109”), prescribes how a company should recognize. measure, present and disclose in its
financial statements uncertain tax positions that the company has taken or expects to take on a tax return. Additionally.
for tax positions to qualify for deferred tax benefit recognition under ASC 740. the position must have at least a “more
likely than not” chance of being sustained upon challenge by the respective taxing authorities., and whether or not it
means that criteria is a matter if significant judgment.
We have not provided U.S. and Israeli income taxes and withholding taxes on the undistributed earnings of our Israeli
subsidiary as of December 31. 2009 because we intend to permanently reinvest such earnings outside the U.S. As of
December 31. 2009, the cumulative amount of earnings upon which U.S. income taxes have not been provided is
approximately $4.4 million. We make an evaluation at the end of each reporting period as to whether or not the
undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiary are permanently reinvested. While, to date. we have concluded that such
undistributed earnings are permanently reinvested. facts and circumstances may change in the future. Changes in facts
and circumstances may include a change in the estimated capital nheeds of our foreign subsidiaries. or a change in our
corporate liquidity requirements. Such changes could result in our management determining that some or all of such
undistributed earnings are no longer permanently reinvested. In that event. we would be required to recognize income tax
liabilities on the assumption that our foreign undistributed earnings will be distributed to the U.S.
Accounting for Redpoint Financings
In accounting for the Series A Financing. the proceeds were first allocated to the Series B Unit Warrant. which was
classified as a current liability, based on its fair value, and the residual amount was allocated among the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock and the Series A Warrants based on their relative fair values, all in accordance with the
guidance in ASC 480, “Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity” (formerly SFAS 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity”), ASC 815, “Derivatives and Hedging” (formerly SFAS 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”) and ASC 815-40. “Derivatives and hedging — Contracts in
Entity’s Own Equity” (formerly EITF 00-19. ”Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to. and Potentially
Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock™). The Series B Unit Warrant has been revalued at each reporting date. since its
inception until it was exercised on June 10, 2009. The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock has been classified as
temporary equity. in accordance with the guidance in ASC 480-10-S99A (formerly EITF D-98. “Classification and
Measurement of Redeemable Securities™).and, prior to January 1, 2009, the Series A Warrants were classified in permanent

equity.
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In June 2008, the FASB ratified the consensus of EITF 07-5. “Determining Whether an Instrument (or Embedded Feature) Is
Indexed to an Entity’s Own Stock” (incorporated in ASC 815-40). ASC 815-40 responded to practice questions about
whether an instrument or embedded feature is indexed to the reporting company’s own stock by establishing a framework
for the determinations and by nullifying some previous requirements. The adoption of ASC 815-40’s requirements affects
issuers’ accounting for warrants and many convertible instruments with provisions that protect holders from declines in
the stock price (“Down-Round” provisions). Warrants with such provisions are no longer recorded in equity. and many
convertible instruments with such provisions require “bifurcation” with the conversion option separately accounted for as a
derivative under ASC 815. As a result of ASC 815-40. effective January 1. 2009. and due to the Down-Round Protection of
the Series A Warrants, such warrants are separately accounted for as a derivative under ASC 815 and are no longer
recorded in equity but rather as a liability to be revalued at each reporting date.
On June 10, 2009, Redpoint exercised. in full, the Series B Unit Warrant, which was valued at approximately $10.8 million
on such date. thus extinguishing this liability from the Company’s balance sheet through a corresponding increase to
additional paid-in capital. In accounting for the Series B Financing, the proceeds were first allocated to the Series B
Warrants which were classified as a liability, based on its fair value, and the residual amount was allocated to the Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock. all in accordance with the guidance in ASC 480, ASC 815 and ASC 815-40. The Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock has been classified as temporary equity, in accordance with the guidance in
ASC 480-10-S99A.
We used various valuation models and techniques to determine the individual values of the various components in the
Redpoint Financings, including Monte Carlo and Black-Scholes. Inputs used in the models include our stock price and
risk- free lnterest rate Addltlonally, significant assumgtlons used in applymg these technlgues included redemgtlon

and expected volatility of our stock price. While we believe we applied appropriate judgment in the aforesaid
assumptions, variations in judgment could have materially affected the valuation results, and thus. our financial
statements. We continue to use the Black-Scholes valuation model in our periodic fair value adjustments.
The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock issued as part of the Redpoint
Financings contain an embedded conversion option which could potentially require separate accounting under ASC 815.
According to ASC 815-15 (formerly paragraph 12(a) of SFAS 133), in order to determine whether separate accounting is
required. one has to evaluate whether the economic characteristics and risks of the conversion option are closely related
to the host contract. and the nature of the host contract. We exercised judgment and evaluated this matter in accordance
with ASC 815-10 (formerly EITF Topic D-109. "Determining the Nature of a Host Contract Related to a Hybrid Financial
Instrument Issued in the Form of a Share under FASB Statement No.133"). ASC 815-10 conveys the SEC staff's views on
determining whether the characteristics of a host contract in a hybrid financial instrument issued in the form of a share is
more akin to debt or equity. In evaluating an embedded derivative feature for separation under ASC 815. the consideration
of the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract should not ignore the stated or implied substantive terms
and features of the hybrid financial instrument. We considered various factors including redemption provisions. stated
rate. voting rights. whether returns are discretionary or mandatory. collateral requirements. participation in residual
earnings and liquidation preferences. in making our determination that the host contract was more akin to equity. The
most important factor that led us to the conclusion that the host contract was more akin to equity was the fact that the
redemption feature was not mandatory or likely to occur. Had we determined that the host contract was more akin to debt
and not equity it would have impacted the accounting for the host contract and the embedded conversion option and
could have had a material impact on our financial statements.
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Quarterly Results
The following table sets forth our historical quarterly consolidated statement of operations data and certain non-GAAP
financial measures beginning with the first quarter of 2008. You should read this information together with our
consolidated financial statements and the related notes appearing elsewhere in our filings. The results of historical
periods are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations for a full year or any future period.

Quarter Ended
Mar. 31, 2008 Jun. 30, 2008 Sep. 30, 2008 Dec. 31, 2008 Mar. 31, 2009 Jun. 30, 2009 Sep. 30, 2009 Dec. 31, 2009

(in thousands. except page views and RPM data)

Revenues:

Advertising revenue$3.013 $2.985 $3.539 $4.609 $4.729 $4.985 4.970 $6.000
Answers services licensing18 18 24 21 18 19 17 17

3.031 3.003 3.563 4.630 4.747 5.004 4.987 6.017

Costs and expenses:
Cost of revenue1.393 1.416 945 887 1.059 1.166 1.264 1,307
Research and development875 929 866 812 873 817 921 997

Community development, sales and marketing762 933 563 476 499 558 621 781
General and administrative1,131 1,198 1.311 1.159 1,219 1.248 1.201 1.231
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Termination fees and write-off of costs relating to the terminated Lexico acquisition and abandoned follow-on
offering2,543 — — — — — — —

Total operating expenses6.704 7.614 3.685 3.334 3.650 3.789 4.007 4.316

Operating income (loss)(3.673) (4.611) (131) 1.296 1.097 1.215 980 1.701

Interest income (expense), net55 18 (43) (86) (87) (362) 4 5

Other income (expense). net(38) (11) 11 57 15 (9)(5) 5
Gain (loss) resulting from fair value adjustment of warrants— — (2.056) (3.131) 2.010 (4.385) (999) 740

Income (loss) before income taxes(3.655) (4.604) (2.210) (1.864) 3.035 (3.541) (20) 2.451
Income tax benefit (expense), net(11) (15) 91 17 6 (78) (50) (43
Net income (loss)$(3.667) $(4.619) $(2.119) $(1.847) $3.041 $(3.619) $(70) $2.408

Other Data:
Adjusted EBITDA(1)$(181) $(670) $520 $1.950 $1.744 $1.895 $1.708 $2.389

WikiAnswers average daily page views1.885.000 2.318.000 3.094.000 4.350.000 5.337.000 6.082.000 6,336,000 8.199.000
ReferenceAnswers average daily
page views3.225.000 2.641.000 2,666,000 3.027.000 2.982.000 2.965.000 2.857.000 2.737.000

WikiAnswers RPM$6.91 $7.11 $6.89 $7.19 $6.58 $6.14 $5.87 $5.93
ReferenceAnswers RPM$6.23 $6.18 $6.44 $6.21 $5.84 $5.87 $5.89 $6.08

We define Adjusted EBITDA as net earnings before interest, taxes. depreciation. amortization. gain (loss) resultin

from fair value adjustment of Series A Warrants, Series B Warrants and warrant to purchase units of Series B preferred
stock and warrants. stock-based compensation. foreign currency exchange rate differences and certain hon-recurring
expenses.

We use Adjusted EBITDA as an additional measure of our overall performance for purposes of business decision-making.
developing budgets and managing expenditures. It is useful because it removes the impact of our capital structure
(interest expense and gain (loss) resulting from fair value adjustment of Series A Warrants. Series B Warrants and warrant
to purchase units of Series B preferred stock and warrants). asset base (amortization and depreciation). stock-based
compensation expenses, taxes. foreign currency exchange rate differences and certain hon-recurring expenses from our
results of operations. We believe that the presentation of Adjusted EBITDA provides useful information to investors in
their analysis of our results of operations for reasons similar to the reasons why we find it useful and because these
measures enhance their overall understanding of the financial performance and prospects of our ongoing business
operations. By reporting Adjusted EBITDA. we provide a basis for comparison of our business operations between
current. past and future periods. and peer companies in our industry.
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More specmcall)(= we belleve that removmg these |mpacts is lmportant for several reasons:

amortization. and the write-off, of acgwred technology from the acquisition of Brainboost Technology. LLC. developer of the

Brainboost Answer Engine in December 2005; and (b) amortization of intangible assets resulting from the acquisition of
WikiAnswers and other related assets in November 2006. These acquisitions resulted in operating expenses that would not
otherwise have been incurred. We believe that excluding such expenses is significant to investors. due to the fact that they derive
from prior acquisition decisions and are not necessarily indicative of future cash operating costs. In addition, we believe that the
amount of such expenses in any specific period may not directly correlate to the underlying performance of our business
operations. While we exclude the aforesaid expenses from Adjusted EBITDA we do not exclude revenues derived as a result of
such acquisitions. The amount of revenue that resulted from the acquisition of WikiAnswers and other related assets is disclosed in
the revenue discussion of this Item 2. The amount of revenue that resulted from the acquisition of technology from Brainboost is not
quantifiable due to the nature of its integration.
¢ Stock-based Compensation Expense. Adjusted EBITDA disregards expenses associated with stock-based compensation, a
non-cash expense arising from the grant of stock-based awards to employees and directors. We believe that, because of the
variety of equity awards used by companies. the varying methodologies for determining stock-based compensation expense. and
the subjective assumptions involved in those determinations. excluding stock-based compensation from Adjusted EBITDA
enhances the ability of management and investors to compare financial results over multiple periods.
¢ Depreciation, Interest, Gain (Loss) Resulting from Fair Value Adjustment of Series A Warrants, Series B Warrants and Warrant to
Purchase Units of Series B Preferred Stock and Warrants, Taxes and Exchange Rate Differences. We believe that, excluding these
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items from the Adjusted EBITDA measure Qrowdes investors with addltlonal information to measure our Qerformance, by excludlng

our terminated acquisition of Lexico and the cancellation of our follow-on offering. We believe that, excluding these costs provides
investors with additional information to measure our performance. by excluding events that are of a non-recurring nature. Adjusted
EBITDA is not a measure of liquidity or financial performance under generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP,
and should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for. a measure of financial performance prepared in
accordance with GAAP. Investors are cautioned that there are inherent limitations associated with the use of Adjusted
EBITDA as an analytical tool. Some of these limitations are:

¢ Non-GAAP financial measures are not based on a comprehensive set of accounting rules or principles;

¢ Many of the adjustments to Adjusted EBITDA reflect the exclusion of items that are recurring and will be reflected in our financial
results for the foreseeable future;

¢ Other companies, including other companies in our industry, may calculate Adjusted EBITDA differently than us, thus limiting its
usefulness as a comparative tool;

¢ Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the periodic costs of certain tanqgible and intanqgible assets used in generating revenues in our
business:

¢ Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect interest income from our investments in cash and investment securities;

eAdjusted EBITDA does not reflect foreign exchange net gains and losses:

¢ Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect interest expense and other cost relating to financing our business, including gains and losses
resulting from fair value adjustment of Redpoint Venture's Series A Warrants, Series B Warrants and their Warrant to Purchase
Units of Series B Preferred Stock and Warrants:

¢ Adjusted EBITDA excludes taxes. which are an integral cost of doing business: and

¢ Because Adjusted EBITDA does not include stock-based compensation. it does not reflect the cost of granting employees equity
awards. a key factor in management’s ability to hire and retain employees.
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We compensate for these limitations by providing specific information in the reconciliation to the GAAP amounts
excluded from Adjusted EBITDA., as follows:

Quarter Ended
Mar. 31. 2008 Jun. 30, 2008 Sep. 30, 2008 Dec. 31, 2008 Mar. 31, 2009 Jun. 30, 2009 Sep. 30. 2009 Dec. 31, 2009

(in thousands)

Net income (loss)$(3.667) $(4.619) $(2.119) $(1.847) $3.041 $(3.619) $(70) $2.408

Interest (income) expense. net(55) (18) 43 86 87 362 (4) (5

Foreign currency (gains) losses38 11 (11) (57) (15)9 5 (5
Income tax (benefit) expense, net11 15 (91) (17) (6) 78 50 43
Depreciation and amortization448 383 250 248 261 299 328 302
Stock-based compensation501 420 392 406 386 381 400 386

Termination fees and write-off of costs relating to the terminated Lexico acquisition and abandoned follow-on
offering2,543 — — — — — — —

(Gain) loss resulting from fair value adjustment of warrants— — 2,056 3.131 (2.010) 4,385 999 (740)

Adjusted EBITDA$(181) $(670) $520 $1.950 $1.744 $1.895 $1.708 $2.389

Our 2010 Outlook

We see our business consisting of core platform plus product extensions. We plan to invest in our core platform and
product extensions in 2010.

The core platform is Answers.com in English. comprised of WikiAnswers and ReferenceAnswers. We will continue to
invest resources in our core platform in areas such as content quality. maintaining and improving search engine
optimization, performance, scalability. and usability. In particular, we see content quality as the single biggest opportunity
and challenge of WikiAnswers. To date. the essential driving force behind the growth of traffic continues to be the
expansion of our database of Questions and Answers. Content quality plays a crucial role in our search engine rankings
as well as user experience. This fundamental relationship drives our product and community directions.

There are four product extension areas that we have already bequn or are planning.

In the third quarter of 2009 we launched our French., Italian. German and Spanish. or “FIGS”. language versions of
WikiAnswers. In 2010 we plan to continue our investment in the FIGS versions of WikiAnswers. Our strategy will capitalize
on the needs of users around the globe who are searching for answers online and will leverage our core strengths:
community building and Q&A space. We plan on leveraging our large and dvnamic English lanquage database to

our foreign language versions. by selectively translating some of the 7.3 million answered questions we have in our
WikiAnswers English language database. Our largest competitor already has successful international sites and receives
much of its traffic from those sites. thus we view this area as critical to our future growth.

The other three product extensions we are planning in 2010 are in the realm of mobile, social media and video. Users are
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not always in front of a desktop or laptop when they need answers, and market research. as well as recent
announcements by Apple. Google. RIM and others. point to the expected growth of handheld Internet access devices. We
think that mobile Answers.com access could add usage. greater engagement. and brand recognition. In terms of
connecting more aggressively to social media, we’ve already taken the first step. in the form of our Facebook Connect
solution announced in January 2010. Users can now log into Answers.com using their Facebook. Twitter. Yahoo or
Google identity. Our goal is to further address the social answers space by more tightly integrating the
guestion-answering process with popular social networks. Lastly. video is another natural extension of our Web-based
text solution, and we intend to enter this space to enrich the types of answers we serve our user base.

None of the four product extensions we are planning to begin in 2010 are likely to produce significant amounts of revenue
in 2010.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplemental data.

The following are our consolidated financial statements and notes to financial statements. and of our consolidated
subsidiary. which are filed as part of this Annual Report.

Answers Corporationindex to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Financial Statements: Consolidated Balance

Sheets Consolidated Statements of Operations Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity and
Comprehensive Income (Loss) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm To the Board of Directors and Stockholdersof Answers
Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Answers Corporation and Subsidiary (collectively
referred to as “the Company”) as of December 31, 2008 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss). and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year
period ended December 31. 2009. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining. on a test basis. evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects. the financial
position of Answers Corporation and Subsidiary as of December 31. 2008 and 2009. and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2009. in conformity with US
denerally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. the Company has applied the new accounting and
disclosure requirements issued by the FASB as of January 1. 2008. with respect to its assets and liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis. With respect to nonfinancial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
non-recurring basis, the Company has adopted the new requirements as of January 1. 2009.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of evaluating
other-than-temporary impairments of marketable securities due to the adoption of new accounting requirements issued
by the FASB, as of April 1, 2009.

As discussed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method for accounting for its
Redpoint warrants due to the adoption of new accounting requirements issued by the FASB. as of January 1. 2009.

/s/ Somekh Chaikin Somekh ChaikinCertified Public Accountants (Israel)A member firm of KPMG International

Jerusalem, IsraelMarch 8. 2010
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Answers Corporation and SubsidiaryConsolidated Balance Sheets (in thousands except share and per share data)
December 31 December 31
2008 2009
$3

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents11.739 22.234
Marketable securities- 795

Accounts receivable1.680 2.350
Prepaid expenses and other current assets818 907
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Deferred tax asset- 34
Total current assets14.237 26.320

Long-term deposits (restricted)257 276

D_egosits in respect of employee severance obligations1.337 1.756

Property and equipment. net1.234 1.858

m

Intanqgible assets, net994 797
Goodwill437 437
Prepaid expenses. long-term. and other assets220 167

Deferred tax asset, long-term- 14
Total other assets1.651 1.415

Total assets18.716 31,625

Liabilities and stockholders' equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable537 403

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities767 774

Accrued compensation628 1.009

Warrant to purchase units of Series B preferred stock and warrants8.698 -

Capital lease obligations — current portion78 82
Total current liabilities10.708 2.268

Long-term liabilities:

Liability in respect of employee severance obligations1.534 1,838
_Capital lease obligations. net of current portion106 24

Deferred tax liability26 38

Series A and Series B Warrants- 8.008

Total long-term liabilities1.666 9.908
a)mmitments and contingencies

Series A and Series B convertible preferred stock: $0.01 par value; stated value and liquidation preference of $101.76 per share for

the Series A and $100 per share for the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock: 6% cumulative annual dividend; 60.000 and 130,000
shares authorized. issued and outstanding as of December 31. 2008 and 2009, respectively624 2.381
§ockho|ders‘ equity:

Preferred stock: $0.01 par value; 940.000 and 870.000 shares authorized as of December 31, 2008 and 2009, respectively, none

issued- -

Common stock: $0.001 par value; 100.000.000 shares authorized; 7.870.538 and 7.951.329 shares issued and outstanding as of
December 31. 2008 and 2009, respectively8 8

Additional paid-in capital77.091 88.539

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)(28) 28

Accumulated deficit(71.353) (71.507)

Total stockholders' equity5.718 17.068

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity18.716 31.625

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Answers Corporation and SubsidiaryConsolidated Statements of Operations (in thousands except share and per share
data)

Year ended December 31
2008 2009

$$

Revenues:
Advertising revenue -
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WikiAnswers7.524 14.454
ReferenceAnswers6.622 6.230

Answers service licensing81 71
14,227 20.755

Costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue4.641 4.796

Research and development3.482 3.608

Community development, sales and marketing2.734 2.459

General and administrative4.799 4.899

Write-off of the Brainboost Answer Engine3.138 -

Termination fees and write-off of costs relating to the terminated Lexico acquisition and abandoned follow-on offering2.543 -
Total operating expenses21.337 15.762

Operating income (loss)(7.110) 4.993

Interest expense. net(55) (440)

Other income, net19 6

Loss resulting from fair value adjustments of warrants. net(5.187) (2.634)
Income (loss) before income taxes(12.333) 1.925

Income tax benefit (expense). net82 (165)

Net income (loss)(12.251) 1.760

Basic and diluted net loss per common share(1.65) (0.07)

Weighted average number of shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per common share7.863.917 7.909.353

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Answers Corporation and SubsidiaryConsolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensive
Income (Loss) (in thousands except shares

Common stock Additional paid-in capital Accumulated other comprehensive loss Accumulated deficit Total stockholders’
equity Comprehensive income (loss)

Shares Amount ($) $$$$$

Balance as of December 31, 20077.859.890 8 73.893 (28) (59.102) 14,771

Issuance of common stock in connection with exercise of vested stock options10.648 - 10 - - 10 -
Stock-based compensation to employees and Directors- - 1,719 - - 1,719 -

Dividends on preferred stock, $3.30 per share- - (198) - - (198) -

Discount to temporary equity resulting from beneficial conversion feature in the Redpoint Financing (Series
A)- - 1768 - - 1,768 -

Discount to temporary equity resulting from the issuance of the Series A Warrants in the Redpoint Financing- - 464 - - 464 -

Amortization of discounts resulting from Redpoint Financing- - (518) - - (518) -
Stock reqistration cost- - (47) - - (47) -

Net loss for year- - - - (12,251) (12.251) (12.251

Comprehensive loss (12.251)

Balance as of December 31, 20087.870.538 8 77.091 (28) (71.353) 5,718

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (see note 9)- - (1.657) (1.914) (3.571) -

Issuance of common stock in connection with exercise of vested stock options80.791 - 247 - - 247 -

Stock-based compensation to employees and directors- - 1,553 - - 1,553 -
Dividends on Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. $6.10 per share- - (366) - - (366) -

Dividends on Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. $3.37 per share- - (236) - - (236) -
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Amortization of discounts resulting from Redpoint Financing- - (1.740) - - (1.740) -

Discount to temporary equity resulting from beneficial conversion feature in the Redpoint Financing (Series
B)- - 2.867 - - 2.867 -

Exercise of the Series B Unit Warrant- - 10,780 - - 10.780 -

Unrealized gains on derivative and hedging activity, net- - - 60 - 60 60

Unrealized loss on marketable securities- - - (4) - (4) (4

Net income for year- - - - 1,760 1.760 1.760

Comprehensive income 1,816

Balance as of December 31, 20097.951.329 8 88.539 28 (71.507) 17.068 _

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Answers Corporation and SubsidiaryConsolidated Statements of Cash Flows (in thousands)
_Year ended December 31

2008 2009

$3

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income (loss)(12.251) 1,760

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization1.329 1.185

Increase in deposits in respect of employee severance obligations(105) (407)

Increase in liability in respect of employee severance obligations304 288

Stock-based compensation to employees and directors1.719 1,553

Increase in deferred tax asset- (48

Increase in deferred tax liability12 12

Write-off of the Brainboost Answer Engine3.138 -

Write-off of amounts paid in prior periods. relating to the terminated Lexico acquisition and abandoned follow on offering663 -
Fair value adjustments of warrants, net5.187 2.634

Loss on disposal of property and equipment7 73

Loss from foreign exchange rate forward contracts10 -

Exchange rate losses10 6

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in accounts receivable, and prepaid expenses and other current assets(212) (410
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses. long-term, and other assets39 49

Decrease in accounts payable(214) (307)

Increase in accrued expenses. accrued compensation and other current liabilities65 411
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities(299) 6.799

Cash flows from investing activities:

Capital expenditures(558) (1.515)

Increase in long-term deposits (restricted)(60) (19
Purchases of marketable securities- (799)

Proceeds from sale of marketable securities700 -

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities82 (2.333

Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayment of capital lease obligation(55) (78)

Stock reqistration costs(47) -

Redpoint financing. net of issuance cost5.380 6.480
Dividends paid(92) (602)

Exercise of common stock options and warrants10 247
Net cash provided by financing activities5.196 6.047

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents(18) (18
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents4.961 10.495

aash and cash equivalents at beginning of year6.778 11.739
aash and cash equivalents at end of year11.739 22.234
§Jgglemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Income taxes paid- 171

Interest paid on capital lease obligations7 9

L] ” G

Tabrces,” “Off Balance Sheet Arrangements,” “Critical Accounting Estimates” and “Quarterly Results”. Thé2Genera



Edgar Filing: AETNA INC /PA/ - Form S-4/A

Non-cash investing activities:

Acquisition of assets through capital lease obligation239 -
_Capital expenditures on account127 170

Non-cash financing activities:

Increase in accrued dividends(106) -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ANSWERS CORPORATIONNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UbSIdIar ’) that engages primarily in research and development services to the Parent. are collectively referred to as “the
Company.” The Parent is a public company and trades on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “ANSW”. The
Company provides answer-based search services to users primarily through its website Answers.com®, which includes
WikiAnswers® and ReferenceAnswersTM. In the Company’s reports prior to its quarterly report for the second quarter of
2009. it referred to ReferenceAnswers as Answers.com. Beginning with the quarterly report for the second quarter of 2009
it refers to that property as ReferenceAnswers or ReferenceAnswers.com. In the first guarter of 2008, the Company’s
planned acquisition of Lexico Publishing Group LLC and the related planned offering of securities were terminated due to
unfavorable market conditions. As a result, the Company recorded a charge to its statement of operations, amounting to
approximately $2.54 million. On June 16, 2008, the Company raised $6 million. before related fees and costs. in a private
placement offering. and on June 10. 2009 the Company raised an additional $7 million, before related fees and costs. from
the exercise of the second tranche warrant of such private placement offering. See Note 9 for further details. As of
December 31, 2009, approximately $678 thousand of the Company’s net assets were located outside of the United States.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Answers Corporation and its Subsidiary
and are presented in accordance with accounting prlncmles dgenerally accegted |n the Unlted Slates of Amerlca (“U. S

Board (FASB) became effective. The ASC has become the source of authoritative U.S. GAAP recognized by the FASB to
be applied by nongovernmental entities. The ASC does not change U.S. GAAP and., therefore, does not have any impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. All references to GAAP in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements use the new codification numbering system.

Foreign Currency Translation

The currency of the primary economic environment in which the operations of the Company are conducted is the U.S.
dollar (“dollar”), therefore, the dollar has been determined to be the Company’s functional currency. Transactions in foreign
currency (substantially all in New Israeli Shekels — “NIS”) are recorded at the exchange rate as of the transaction date.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated on the basis of the representative rate of
exchange at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are stated at
historical exchange rates. All exchange gains and losses from remeasurement of monetary balance sheet items
denominated in non-dollar currencies are reflected in the statement of operations as they arise.
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ANSWERS CORPORATIONNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Continued)

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported results of operations during the
reporting periods. The current economic environment has increased the degree of uncertainty inherent in those estimates
and assumptions. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Marketable Securities

All highly liquid investments with stated maturities of three months or less from date of purchase are classified as cash
equivalents.

All highly liquid investments with stated maturities of greater than three months are classified as marketable securities.
The Company determines the appropriate classification of its investments in marketable securities at the time of
purchase. The Company’s marketable securities have been classified and accounted for as available-for-sale. After
consideration of its risk versus reward objectives. as well as its liquidity requirements. the Company may sell these
securities prior to their stated maturities. As these securities are viewed by the Company as available to support current
operations, securities with maturities beyond 12 months are classified as current assets under the caption marketable
securities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. These securities are carried at fair value. with the unrealized
gains and losses reported as a component of stockholders’ equity. except for unrealized losses determined to be other
than temporary which are recorded as other income (expense). het. Any realized gains or losses on the sale of marketable
securities are determined on a specific identification method. and such gains and losses are reflected as a component of
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other income (expense). het.
In Aprll 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124- 2, Recognltlon and Presentatlon of Other-Than- Temgorary

for OTTI on debt and equity securities. When an other-than-temporary impairment has occurred. the amount of the
other-than-temporary impairment recognized in earnings depends on whether the Company intends to sell the security or
more likely than not will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current-period
credit loss. If the Company intends to sell the security or more likely than not will be required to sell the security before
recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current-period credit loss, the other-than-temporary impairment is
recognized in earnings equal to the entire difference between the investment’s amortized cost basis and its fair value at
the balance sheet date. If the Company does not intend to sell the security and it is not more likely than not that the
Company will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current-period credit
loss. the other-than-temporary impairment is separated into the amount representing the credit loss and the amount
related to all other factors. The amount of the other-than-temporary impairment related to the credit loss is recognized in
earnings. The amount of the other-than-temporary impairment related to other factors is recognized in other
comprehensive income. net of applicable income taxes.

The Company considers all available information relevant to the collectibility of the security. including past events,
current conditions. and reasonable and supportable forecasts when developing estimate of cash flows expected to be
collected. Evidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons for the impairment. the severity and duration of
the impairment. changes in value subsequent to year-end. forecasted performance of the investee, and the general market
condition in the geographic area or industry the investee operates in. 41Table of Contents

ANSWERS CORPORATIONNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Continued)

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded when earned and do not bear interest. If necessary. the Company records an allowance
for doubtful accounts to reflect the Company's best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the Company's
existing accounts receivable. As of the balance sheet dates such allowance was not significant.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Annual depreciation rates are as follows:

%

Computer equipment33

Furniture and fixtures7 - 20

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the expected life of the lease.
Revenue Recognition

The Company, through its website Answers.com, generates revenues via advertising in the form of pay-per-performance
ads and paid-for-impression advertising. In the pay-per-performance model. the Company earns revenue based on the
number of clicks associated with such ads. In the paid-for-impression model, the Company’s revenue is derived from the
display of ads.

Almost all of the Company’s advertising revenue is obtained through the efforts of third parties rather than through direct
contracts with advertisers. The third party is obligated to pay the Company a portion of the revenue it receives from
advertisers, as compensation for the Company’s sale of promotional space on its Internet properties. Amounts received
from such third parties are reflected as revenue in the period in which such advertising services are provided.

The Company also earns an immaterial amount of revenue from partners that pay the Company for providing them with
answer-based services that they then use in their own products. via co-branded web pages.

Research and Development The Company expenses research and development costs as incurred. Certain internal use
software and website development costs are capitalized in accordance with the FASB’s authoritative guidance on
accounting for intangibles.
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Stock-Based Compensation

The fair value of stock options granted to employees and directors. is estimated at the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. which takes into consideration the share price at the date of grant, the exercise price
of the option. the expected life of the option, expected interest rates and the expected volatility. The value of stock
options. as noted, is recognized as compensation expense on a straight-line basis. over the requisite service period of the
entire award. net of estimated forfeitures.

Beginning in 2008, as the Company accumulated its own volatility history. the estimates of the expected stock volatility
are based on the Company’s own historical stock volatility rates.

The fair value for each stock option granted to employees and directors during the years ended December 31. 2008 and
2009, was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, assuming no dividends and the

following average assumptions:
Year ended December 31
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2008 2009

Expected risk-free interest rate2.80% 1.97%

Expected life (in years)4.08 4.08

Expected volatility84.66% 72.7%

The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for periods corresponding
with the expected life of the option.

The expected life represents the average period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The
Company estimates the expected life of outstanding options by taking the average of the vesting term and the contractual
term of the option. in accordance with the SEC’s non-authoritative guidance (the “Simplified Method”). The Company uses
the Simplified Method as adequate historical experience is not available to provide a reasonable estimate of the expected

life for stock option grants. and it will continue to apply the Simplified Method until enough historical experience is
available.
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ANSWERS CORPORATIONNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Continued)

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change
in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

In assessing the need for a valuation allowance. the Company looks at cumulative losses in recent years. estimates of
future taxable earnings. feasibility of on-going tax planning strategies. the realizability of tax benefit carryforwards. and
other relevant information. Valuation allowances related to deferred tax assets can be impacted by changes to tax laws,
changes to statutory tax rates and future taxable earnings. Ultimately. the actual tax benefits to be realized will be based
upon future taxable earnings levels. which are very difficult to predict. In the event that actual results differ from these
estimates in future periods. the Company will be required to adjust the valuation allowance.

Significant judgment is required in evaluating the Company's federal, state and foreign tax positions and in the
determination of its tax provision. Despite management's belief that the Company's liability for unrecognized tax benefits
is adequate. it is often difficult to predict the final outcome or the timing of the resolution of any particular tax matters.
The Company may adjust these reserves as relevant circumstances evolve. such as guidance from the relevant tax
authority, its tax advisors. or resolution of issues in the courts. The Company's tax expense includes the impact of
reserve provisions and changes to reserves that it considers appropriate, as well as related interest and penalties. These
adjustments are recognized as a component of income tax expense entirely in the period in which they are identified.
Impairment of Property and Equipment, Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company reviews property and equipment and intangible assets. excluding goodwill, for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of
these assets is measured by comparison of carrying amounts to the future undiscounted cash flows the assets are
expected to generate. If property and equipment and intangible assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to
be recognized equals the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair market value.

Additionally, the Company tests its goodwill for impairment at least annually, in accordance with the provisions of

FASB ASC Topic 350, “Intangibles - Goodwill and Other”, with the annual impairment testing date set at September 30. or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that this asset may be impaired. There was no impairment
in any of the years presented.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income represents net income (loss) plus any revenue, expenses. gains and losses that are specifically
excluded from net income (loss) and recognized directly as a component of shareholders’ equity.
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ANSWERS CORPORATIONNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Continued)

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Net Loss per Share

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss for the period by the weighted average humber of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss for the period,
adjusted with the Redpoint dividends and amortizations of discounts. by the weighted average humber of shares of
common stock and potentially dilutive common stock outstanding during the period. The dilutive effect of outstanding
options and warrants is reflected in diluted earnings per share by application of the treasury stock method. The dilutive
effect of the issued and outstanding Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
(collectively. the “Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock™) is reflected in diluted earnings per share by
application of the if-converted method. The calculation of diluted net loss per share excludes all anti-dilutive shares. The
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diluted net loss per share for the years ended December 31. 2008 and 2009 is the same as basic net loss per share as the
inclusion of the Company’s common stock equivalents would be anti-dilutive.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share for the periods indicated:
Year ended December 31

2008 2009
$ (in thousands. except share and per share amounts)

Basic and diluted net loss per common share computation

Numerator:

Net income (loss)(12.251) 1,760

Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock dividends(198) (602)

Amortization of Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock discounts(518) (1.740)
Net loss attributable to common shares(12.967) (582)

Denominator:
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period7.863.917 7.909.353

Basic and diluted net loss per common share(1.65) (0.07)

Common stock equivalents excluded because their effect would have been anti-dilutive784.041 2.912.635
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Derivatives and Hedging

To mitigate the potential impact of adverse fluctuations in cash flows resulting from forecasted new Israeli shekels (NIS)
exchange rates. the Subsidiary hedges portions of its forecasted expenses denominated in NIS with currency forwards
and options. The Subsidiary does not speculate in these hedging instruments in order to profit from foreign currency
exchanges. nor does it enter into trades for which there are no underlying exposures.

The Company recognizes all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. If the derivatives meet the definition of a hedge
and are so designated, depending on the nature of the hedge, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is
reported as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods
during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. The ineffective portion of a derivative’s change in fair value, if any,
is recognized in earnings. Gains (losses) from a derivative’s change in fair value that are not designated as hedges are
recognized in earnings.

Through April 2009, the Subsidiary’s currency forwards and options were not designated as hedging instruments and,
therefore, the net gains (losses) that resulted from such derivatives were recognized in earnings as they occurred.
Starting May 2009, the Subsidiary designated all of its currency hedging activity. which currently consists only of forward
contracts. as cash flow hedges. as they were all eligible. The Company documents all relationships between the hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective for undertaking these hedging transactions. The
Company also formally assesses, both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis., whether or not each
derivative is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value of the hedged items.

Gains (losses) from forward and option contracts are included in operating expenses, as follows:

Year ended December 31
2008 2009

$ (in thousands)

Cost of revenue(1) -

Research and development(5) 15
Sales and marketing- 1

General and administrative(4) 4
(10) 20

The net gain for the year ended December 31, 2009 of $20 thousand. is comprised by $110 thousand of gains from
contracts that were designated as hedging instruments. less $90 thousand of losses from contracts that were not
designated as hedging instruments.

As of December 31, 2009, the notlonal amount of the Subsidiary’s outstanding forward contracts was approximately

other current assets as the foreign exchange forward contracts mature through September 29, 2010, and the change in
fair value has been recorded as other comprehensive income (loss). The amounts recorded as accumulated other
comprehensive income will be reclassified to earnings as the forward contracts mature or if, and to the extent that the
heddging relationship is deemed ineffective. 46Table of Contents
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ANSWERS CORPORATIONNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Continued)

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Fair Value Measurements

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”. included
in ASC Topic 820. “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”. for fair value measurements of financial assets and financial
liabilities and for fair value measurements of nonfinancial items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the
financial statements on a recurring basis. Statement 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. ASC
Topic 820 (Statement 157) also establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements (see Note 10). On January 1, 2009. the Company adopted the provisions of ASC Topic 820 (Statement 157)
to fair value measurements of nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value
in the financial statements on a nonrecurring basis. 47Table of Contents
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Note 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following (in thousands):

2008 2009

$3

In US dollars:

_Cash218 890

_Cash equivalents (money market funds)10.948 20,885

_Cash235 57

Cash equivalents338 402

11,739 22,234

Note 4 — Marketable Securities The Company’s marketable securities are invested in debt instruments of the

U.S. government.

Gross unrealized losses on marketable securities for which other-than-temporary impairments have not been recognized,
and the fair values of those securities. at December 31. 2009, were as follows (in thousands):

Agaregate cost basis Other than temporary impairment Unrealized loss Fair value
$$%9%

Available for sale
U.S. government securities799 - 4 795

Note 5 - Long-term Deposits (Restricted)

Long-term deposits are comprised of a restricted deposit with a bank in the amount of $140 thousand to secure a bank
guarantee and other long-term deposits with vendors and credit card companies. During 2008 and 2009, the long-term
deposits earned immaterial amounts of interest.
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ANSWERS CORPORATIONNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Continued)

Note 6 - Property and Equipment. Net
Property and equipment as of December 31, 2008 and 2009 consisted of the following (in thousands):
2008 2009

$$

Computer equipment(1)2.965 3.951

Furniture and fixtures177 186
Leasehold improvements175 185

3317 4,322

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization(1)(2.083) (2.464)

1.034 1.858

(1) Includes leased equipment of $239 thousand. less accumulated depreciation of $58 thousand and $138 thousand as of
December 31. 2008 and 2009. respectively.

As of December 31. 2008 and 2009. approximately $338 thousand and $285 thousand of the aggreqgate value of the
Company’s net book value of property and equipment, respectively, were located in Israel.

During the years 2008 and 2009. the Company recorded $695 thousand. and $968 thousand of depreciation expense,
respectively.
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ANSWERS CORPORATIONNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Continued)

Note 7 — Intangible Assets. Net

The following table summarizes the Company’s intangible assets as of December 31, 2008 and 2009 (in thousands):
December 31, 2008 December 31, 2009

_Cross carrying amount Accumulated amortization Net Gross carrying amount Accumulated amortization Net

$3589%$

WikiAnswers
Technology30 (13)17 30 (19) 11
Q&A Database207 (189) 18 207 (207) -
Domain Names1.068 (231) 837 1.068 (338) 730
Covenant Not to Compete (“CNC”)280 (202) 78 - - -

Capitalized software development costs98 (98) - 49 (49) -
Domain names80 (36) 44 100 (44) 56

1.763 (769) 994 1.454 (657) 797

During the years 2008 and 2009, the Company recorded $634 thousand and $217 thousand of amortization expense of

intangible assets, respectively. Additionally, in May 2008, the Company wrote off the net book value of the Brainboost
Answer Engine, in the amount of $3.14 million.

Amortization of intangible assets. net. in each of the succeeding five vears and thereafter is estimated as follows (in

thousands):
Year ending December 31 $

2010 123
2011 122
2012 117
2013 117
2014 113
Thereafter 205

797
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Note 7 — Intangible Assets. Net (cont’d)
Brainboost Answer Engine

In December 2005, the Company acquired Brainboost Technology. LLC. developer of the Brainboost Answer Engine
“BAE” an artificial |nteII| ence technolo enablln natural Ian uage question-and-answer search on the Web. As

In the second quarter of 2008. the Company decided to focus its efforts in the realm of questions-and- answers, solely
user-generated questions-and-answers. and effectively abandoned its use of the BAE. This decision was lmglemented on
May 25. 2008. when changes were made to Answers.com, virtually eliminating the use of the BAE. Additionally. the
Company no longer has any staff assigned to this project. has no plans to reinstate the use of the BAE and considers it to
have no further service potential.

As a result of the Company’s deC|3|on to effectlvely abandon its use of the BAE, the net book value of the BAE as of May

expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008.

WikiAnswers

All assets related to the WikiAnswers acquisition. except for the goodwill, are being amortized over their estimated useful
lives as follows: Technology — 5 years:; Database of questions and answers — 3 years (accelerated); Domain Names — 10
years; CNC — 3 years. Technology and Database of questions and answers are being amortized to cost of revenue, and
Domain Names and CNC to general and administrative. In 2008, the Company recorded $61 thousand and $200 thousand
of such amortization to cost of revenue and general and administrative expenses. respectively. In 2009. the Company
recorded $23 thousand and $185 thousand of such amortization to cost of revenue and general and administrative
expenses. respectively. The goodwill, although not amortized for accounting purposes. and all other assets relating to the
WikiAnswers acquisition. are deductible for tax purposes over a fifteen year period.

Note 8 — Deposits and Liability in Respect of Employee Severance Obligations
The Subsidiary’s liability for severance pay for most employees is calculated pursuant to Israeli Severance Pay Law based
on its employees’ most recent monthly salaries, multiplied by the nhumber of years of their employment. or a portion
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thereof. as of the balance sheet date. As of December 31. 2008 and 2009. this liability is fully provided for by monthly
deposits in insurance policies and by an accrual. The deposited funds may be withdrawn by the Company only upon the
fulfiliment of the obligation pursuant to Israeli Severance Pay Law or labor agreements.
Beginning November 2008, the Subsidiary’s agreements with newly hired employees are generally in accordance with
section 14 of the Israeli Severance Pay Law. whereas, the Company’s contributions for severance pay shall fulfill its
severance liability. Upon a monthly contribution of an amount equal to 8.33% of the employee’s monthly salary. and
release of the policy to the employee, no additional payments shall be made by the Company to the employee upon the
employee’s termination. Further. the related obligation and amounts deposited on behalf of such obligation are not stated
on the balance sheet. as the Subsidiary is legally released from obligation to employees once the deposited amounts
have been deposited in insurance policies.
51Table of Contents
ANSWERS CORPORATIONNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Continued)
Note 9 — Redpoint Financing General On June 16. 2008 (the “Initial Closing Date”). pursuant to a private placement of the
omgany s securities, Redgomt Omega. L. P and Redpoint Omega Assomates= LLC (collectlvely “Redgomt”) Qurchase $6

shares of common stock at a conversion price of $4.50 per share (the “Series A Convertible Preferred Stock”). and common
stock purchase warrants exercisable for 666.667 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.95 per share (the
“Series A Warrants”). Redpoint also received a warrant (the “Series B Unit Warrant”). exercisable until June 16, 2009, to
purchase units of up to $7 million of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and common stock purchase warrants. After

deducting placement agent fees and legal expenses. the Company’s net proceeds from the private placement on June 16
008 were approximately $5. 38 million. On June 10, 2009, Redpoint exercised lts Serles B Unlt Warrant and urchased

shares of common stock at a conversion price of $5.50 per share (the “Series B Convertible Preferred Stock”), and common
stock purchase warrants exercisable for 636.364 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $6.05 per share (the
“Serles B Warrants”) After deductlng placement agent fees and legal expenses, the Company'’s net proceeds from the

basis. based on the amounts allocated to each of the components of the transaction. Transaction costs relating to the
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock have been reflected as a reduction to
the proceeds from the issuance of such instruments. Transaction costs relating to the Series B Unit Warrant were

deferred and amortized to interest expense over one year. which was the life of the unit warrant. Transaction costs

relating to the Series A Warrants were initially reflected as a reduction to the proceeds from the issuance of such
instrument and then written off to retained earnings upon adoption of EITF Issue 07-5. “Determining Whether an

nstrument (or Embedded Feature) Is Indexed to an Entity’s Own Stock” (now |ncorporated in ASC 815-40, “Derivatives and

included in the statement of operations as interest exgense for the year ended December 31. 2009. The Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock. the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. the Series A Warrants and the Series B Warrants

are collectively referred to as the “Redpoint Securities”. The two transactions, in aggregate. are collectively referred to as
the “Redpoint Financings”.
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Note 9 — Redpoint Financing (cont’d) The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock has the rights and preferences set forth in
the Company’s Certificate of Designations, which amended the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation on June 16, 2008. The Series B Convertible Preferred Stock has the rights and preferences set forth in the
Company’s Certificate of Designations, which amended the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
on June 9. 2009. In connection with the Redpoint Financings the Company entered into a registration rights agreement
with Redpoint, pursuant to which the Company agreed to register with the SEC for resale the common stock underlying
the Redpoint Securities. In connection with the registration rights agreements, the Company agreed to pay a penalty of
1.0% per month. on a daily pro rata basis. up to a maximum of 8.0%. of the aggregate purchase price, as partial liquidated
damages. for certain default events and subject to certain circumstances. The partial liguidated damages may trigger if
the applicable registration statement ceases to remain continuously effective. On July 30, 2008, following the Series A
Financing, the Company filed a registration statement for the registration of shares of common stock issuable upon
conversion of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, and shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the Series A
Warrants. which was declared effective by the SEC on September 16. 2008. On June 15, 2009. following the Series B
Financing, the Company filed a registration statement for the registration of shares of common stock issuable upon
conversion of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the Series B
Warrants. and shares of common stock that may be issued as dividends pursuant to the terms of the Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock and the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, which was declared effective by the SEC on July 28,

2009. In connectlon with the Redpoint Financings. Redgomt received and exermsed thelr rlght to appomt two |nd|V|duaI

proceeds from the Series A Financing. were first allocated to the Serles B Unit Warrant, which was classified as a liability,
based on its fair value, and the residual amount was allocated among the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and the
Series A Warrants based on their relative fair values. all in accordance with the guidance in ASC 480. “Distinguishing
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Liabilities from Equity” (formerly SFAS 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both
Liabilities and Equity”). and ASC 815-40, “Derivatives and hedging — Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity” (formerly EITF 00-19,
”Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock”). The
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock has been classified as temporary equity. in accordance with the guidance in

ASC 480-10-S99A (formerly EITF D-98. “Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities”). and. prior to January 1,
2009, the Series A Warrants were classified in permanent equity. In June 2008, the FASB ratified the consensus of EITF

07-5 (incorporated in ASC 815-40). ASC 815-40 responded to practice questions about whether an instrument or embedded

feature is indexed to the reporting company’s own stock by establishing a framework for the determinations and by
nullifying some previous requirements. The adoption of EITF 07-5 (incorporated in ASC 815—-40) requirements affects

issuers’ accounting for warrants and many convertible instruments with provisions that protect holders from declines in
the stock price (“Down-Round” provisions). Warrants with such provisions are no longer recorded in equity. and many
convertible instruments with such provisions require “bifurcation” with the conversion option separately accounted for as a
derivative under ASC 815 (formerly SFAS 133).
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Note 9 — Redpoint Financing (cont

d) Accounting for Series A Financing (cont’d) As a result of the adoption of ASC 815-40,
effective January 1. 2009, and due to the Down-Round Protection of the Series A Warrants, such warrants are separately
accounted for as a derivative under ASC 815 (formerly SFAS 133) and are no longer recorded in equity but rather as a
liability, initially valued at fair value to be revalued at each reporting date at fair value. ASC 815-40 was initially applied by
recording a cumulative-effect adjustment to opening retained earnings as of January 1. 2009. to effect the accounting for
the Series A Warrants as a liability. The following table summarizes the allocation of the Series A Financing had the
Company been subject to the provisions of ASC 815-40 at the Initial Closing Date:

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock Series A Warrants Series B Unit Warrant Total

$ (in thousands)

Nlocated amount661 1.828 3.511 6.000
Less: Transaction costs(69) (188) (363) (620

592 1.640 3.148 5.380
On January 1, 2009, the Company recorded a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle as reflected in the
following table:
December 31. 2008 Effect ofAdoption of EITF 07-5 January 1. 2009
$ (in thousands)

Additional paid-in capital77.091 (1.657)(1) 75.434
Accumulated deficit(71.353) (1.726)(2) (73.267

(188)(3)
Long-term liability — Series A Warrants- 3.554 (4) 3.554
Series A convertible preferred stock624 17 (5) 641

(1) Reflects the re-allocation of the Series A Warrants from equity to liabilities and the reduction of the discount relating to the
Beneficial Conversion Feature.

(2) Reflects the cumulative change in the fair value of the Series A Warrants between June 16, 2008 and December 31. 2008
(3) Reflects the deferred charges attributable to the Series A Warrants that would have been expensed at the Redpoint Closing
Date

(4) Reflects the fair value of the Series A Warrants as of December 31, 2008

(5) Reflects the increased amortization due to change in discounts. On December 31, 2009, the Company assessed the fair
value of the Series A Warrants as compared to their value as of December 31, 2008. The change in fair value has been
included in the statement of operations as loss resulting from fair value adjustment of Series A Warrants. and amounted
$446 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2009.
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Note 9 — Redpoint Financing (cont’d) Accounting for Series B Financing The Series B Unit Warrant that was issued on June
16. 2008, was recorded as a liability, with a corresponding discount to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. and was

stock and warrants. The change in value of the Series B Unit Warrant from January 1. 2009 through June 10. 2009, has
been included in the 2009 statement of operations as loss resulting from fair value adjustment of warrant to purchase
units of Series B preferred stock and warrants. and amounted to $2.08 million. On June 10, 2009. Redpoint exercised. in

full, the Series B Unit Warrant, which was valued at approximately $10.8 million on such date. thus extinquishing this
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liability from the Company’s balance sheet through a corresponding increase to additional paid-in capital.

The $7 million of proceeds from the Series B Financing. were first allocated to the Series B Warrants which were
classified as a liability. recorded at fair value, and the residual amount was allocated to the Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock. all in accordance with the gmdance in ASC 815 (formerly SFAS 133), ASC 480 (formerly SFAS 150) and ASC 815-40

accordance with the gmdance in ASC 480-10-S99A (formerly EITF D-98).
Resulting from the allocation of the proceeds as described above, and in comparison to the fair market value of the
Company’s common stock on the date of issuance, the effective conversion rate of the Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock= regresents an additional beneflmal conversion value Thus= the Company recorded an addltlonal dlscount to the

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock to zero. In accordance with ASC 470-20, “Debt with Conversmn and Other Options”
(formerly EITF 00-27, “Application of Issue No. 98-5 to Certain Convertible Instruments”). the aforesaid discount is
amortized to paid-in capital over five years from the date of issuance, the earliest redemption date of the stock.

The following table summarizes the allocation of the Series B Financing:

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock Series B Warrants Total

$ (in thousands)

Allocated amount3.098 3.902 7.000
Less: Transaction costs(230) (290) (520)

2.868 3.612 6.480
On December 31, 2009. the Company assessed the fair value of the Series B Warrants as compared to their value on June
10. 2009. The change in fair value has been included in the statement of operations as a loss resulting from fair value
adjustment of Series B Warrants. and amounted $106 thousand. 55Table of Contents
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Note 10 — Fair Value Measurements The Company measures fair value in accordance with ASC 820-10, “Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures” (formerly SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements”). ASC 820-10 clarifies that fair value is an
exit price. representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants. As such. fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined
based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or a liability. As a basis for considering

such assumptlons= ASC 820-10 establishes a three-tier value hierarchy. which prioritizes the inputs used in the valuation
methodologies in measuring fair value: Level 1 - Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical

assets or liabilities in active markets.Level 2 - Include other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the
marketplace.Level 3 - Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity.
The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.
The Company measures its cash equivalents, marketable securities. foreign currency derivative contracts and Series A
and B Warrants at fair value. In accordance with ASC 820-10. the Company’s cash equivalents and marketable securities
are classified within Level 1. This is because the cash equivalents and the marketable securities are valued using quoted
active market prices. The Company’s foreign currency derivative contracts are classified within Level 2, because they are
valued utilizing market observable inputs. The Series A and B Warrants are classified within Level 3 because they are
valued using the Black-Scholes model which utilizes significant inputs that are unobservable in the market such as
expected stock price volatility. risk-free interest rate and the dividend yield. and remaining period of time the warrants will
be outstanding before they expire.
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Note 10 — Fair Value Measurements (cont’d)
The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of
December 31, 2008 and 2009. aggregated by the level in the fair-value hierarchy within which those measurements fall:

Fair value measurement at reporting date using

Description December 31.2008 Quoted Prices inActive Markets forldentical Assets(Level
1) Significant OtherObservable Inputs(Level 2) SignificantUnobservablelnputs(Level 3)

$ (in thousands)
Assets

Cash Equivalents 11,286 11.286 - -

Foreign currency derivative contracts 26 - 26 -
Total Assets 11,312 11.286 26 -

Liabilities
Series B Unit Warrant 8,698 - - 8.698
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Fair value measurement at reporting date using
Description December 31.2009 Quoted Prices inActive Markets forldentical Assets(Level
1) Significant OtherObservable Inputs(Level 2) SignificantUnobservablelnputs(Level 3)
$ (in thousands)
Assets
Cash Equivalents 21,287 21.287 - -
Marketable Securities 795 795 - -

Foreign currency derivative contracts 60 - 60 -
Total Assets 22,142 22.082 60 -

Liabilities
Series A Warrants 4.000 - - 4,000
Series B Warrants 4.008 - - 4,008
Total Liabilities 8,008 - - 8.008
In addition to the above. the Company's financial instruments at December 31. 2008 and 2009. consisted of cash,
accounts receivable. long term deposits, accrued expenses, accrued compensation and related liabilities. The carrying
amounts of all the aforementioned financial instruments. approximate fair value.
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Note 10 — Fair Value Measurements (cont’d)
The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s liabilities measured at fair value using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3). during the years ended December 31. 2008 and 2009:
Level 3

$ (in thousands)

Series B Unit Warrant Series A and B Warrants Total

B_alance at December 31, 2007- - -
Wal valuation of warrant to purchase units of Series B preferred stock and warrants on June 16, 20083.511 - 3.511
Fair value adjustments included in Statement of Operations5.187 - 5.187

December 31, 20088698 - 8.698

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — adoption of EITF 07-5 (incorporated in ASC 815 — 40)- 3.554 3.554
Fair value adjustments included in Statement of Operations2.082 552 2.634
Exercise of the Series B Unit Warrant(10.780) - (10.780)

Issuance of series B warrants- 3.902 3.902

December 31, 2009- 8,008 8,008
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Note 11 - Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (Redeemable)

The following table summarizes the changes in Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred

Stock (collectively. the “Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock”) during the years ending December 31, 2008
and 2009:

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock Series B Convertible Preferred Stock Total

$ (in thousands)

Issuance of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock6.000 - 6,000

Issuance costs(204) - (204

Discount resulting from the issuance of the Series A Warrants(517) - (517)
Discount resulting from the issuance of the Series B Unit Warrant(3.511) - (3.511)
Discount resulting from the Beneficial Conversion Feature(1.768) - (1.768)
Amortizations of discounts during the period518 - 518

Dividends paid in kind106 - 106

December 31, 2008624 - 624

Issuance of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock- 7.000 7.000
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Issuance costs- (230) (230

Discount resulting from the issuance of the Series B Warrants- (3.902) (3.902)
Discount resulting from the Beneficial Conversion Feature- (2.868) (2.868)
Amortizations of discounts during the period989 751 1.740

December 31, 20091.630 751 2.381

The Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock accrue cumulative dividends at a rate of 6% per annum whether or
not dividends have been declared by the Company’s Board of Directors and whether or not there are profits. surplus or
other funds available for the payment of such dividends. Due to the Company’s decision to pay Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock dividends accrued through September 30, 2008, in the form of additional shares of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, the dividend accrual through such date is reflected as an increase in the stated value of the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock from $100 per share to $101.76 per share, with a corresponding decrease in the additional
paid-in capital. All dividends on Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock subsequent to September 30. 2008,
were paid in cash.

As a result of the Redpoint Financings (see Note 9). the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
has been amended to provide for the issuance of up to 60.000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and 70.000
shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. with a stated value of $100 per share (the “Stated Value”) pursuant to the
Certificate of Designations. Number, Voting Powers. Preferences and Rights of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock filed
with the State of Delaware on June 16, 2008 and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock filed with the State of Delaware on
July 28. 2009 (the “Certificate of Designations™).
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Note 11 - Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (Redeemable) (cont’d)

The Certificate of Designations provides for the following rights and preferences:

Dividends

The Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock will accrue cumulative dividends at a rate of 6% per annum
whether or not dividends have been declared by the Board of Directors and whether or not there are profits. surplus or
other funds available for the payment of such dividends. Dividends may be payable in kind at the option of the Company
upon satisfaction of certain conditions.

Voting Rights

The Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock shall vote on an as converted basis with the Company’s common
stock. So long as any shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock or Series B Convertible Preferred Stock are
outstanding. the Company shall not, without the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of the Series A
and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock then outstanding (each holder of Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock. a “Holder” and collectively, the “Holders”). (a) alter or change adversely the powers. preferences or rights given to the
Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock or alter or amend the Certificate of Designations (whether by merger.
consolidation or otherwise). (b) authorize or create any class of stock ranking as to dividends. redemption or distribution
of assets upon a Liquidation senior to or otherwise pari passu with the Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock,
except for any series of Preferred Stock issued to the Holders. (c) amend its certificate of incorporation or other charter
documents (whether by merger. consolidation or otherwise) so as to affect adversely any rights of the Holders

(d) increase or decrease the authorized number of shares of Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, or

(e) enter into any agreement with respect to the foregoing.

Liquidation

receive out of the assets of the Company. whether such assets are capital or surplus, for each share of Series A and
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock an amount equal to greater of (i) the Stated Value per share plus any accrued and
unpaid dividends thereon and any other fees or liquidated damages owing thereon before any distribution or payment
shall be made to the holders of any junior securities or (ii) such amount per share as would have been payable had all
shares of Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock been upon any such Liquidation converted to common stock
immediately prior to such Liquidation. in any case, and if the assets of the Company shall be insufficient to pay in full
such amounts. then the entire assets to be distributed to the Holders shall be distributed among the Holders ratably in
accordance with the respective amounts that would be payable on such shares if all amounts payable thereon were paid
in full.

Conversion at Option of Holder

Each share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock shall be convertible into that number of shares of common stock
determined by dividing the Stated Value plus any accrued but unpaid dividends thereon (to the extent not already
included in the Stated Value) of such share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock by $4.50 (the “Series A Conversion
Price”). at the option of the Holder, at any time and from time to time.

Each share of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock shall be convertible into that number of shares of common stock

determined by dividing the Stated Value plus any accrued but unpaid dividends thereon (to the extent not already
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included in the Stated Value) of such share of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock by $5.50 (the “Series B Conversion
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Note 11 - Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (Redeemable) (cont’d)

Mandatory Conversion

With respect to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, beginning December 16. 2009. provided certain conditions are
atlsfled= if the closing prlce of the common stock equals an average of $13.50 (sub|ect to ad|ustment for stock spllts=

1o the Automatic Conversion Notice Date (as defined below). and average daily volume of the common stock on The
NASDAQ Capital Market averages at least $1 million during such measurement period. unless the Holder is prohibited
from converting the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock pursuant to certain limitations set forth in the Certificate of
Designations, the Company shall have the right to deliver a notice to the Series A Holder (a Series A Automatic
Conversion Notice), to convert any portion of the shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock then held by the holder

into shares of common stock at the then-effective Conversion Price.
With respect to the Serles B Convertlble Preferred Stock, beginning December 10, 201 0, prowded the certain condltlon

to the Automatic Conversion Notice Date (as defined below). and average daily volume of the common stock on The
NASDAQ Capital Market averages at least $1 million during such measurement period. unless the Holder is prohibited
from converting the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock pursuant to certain limitations set forth in the Certificate of
Designations, the Company shall have the right to deliver a notice to the Series B Holder (a Series B Automatic
Conversion Notice). to convert any portion of the shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock then held by the holder
into shares of common stock at the then-effective Conversion Price.

Redemption

At anytime on or after June 16, 2014, upon written request by the majority of the Holders. the Company shall redeem all or
any portion of the then outstanding Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, for an amount in cash equal to the
sum of (i) 100% of the aggregate Stated Value then outstanding and (ii) accrued but unpaid dividends (to the extent not
already included in Stated Value) and (iii) all liquidated damages and other amounts due in respect of the Series A and
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. Upon the lapse 4.5 years from December 31, 2009, approximately $13.1 million will
be redeemable.

Subsequent Equity Sales

If the Company, at any time while the Series A and the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding, shall sell or
drant any option to purchase or otherwise dispose of or issue any common stock or common stock equivalents entitling
any person to acquire shares of common stock, at an effective price per share less than the then effective Conversion
Price. then, the Conversion Price shall be adjusted on a broad weighted average basis. as defined in the Redpoint
Financings agreement.

Participation Rights

At any time while Serles A and or Series B Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding (or the common stock lssuable or

and or Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (or the common stock issuable or issued upon conversion thereof)
purchased by the Holders. each Holder shall have a right to participate pro rata with respect to the issuance or possible
issuance by the Company of any future equity or equity-linked securities or debt which is convertible into or exercisable
or exchangeable for equity or in which there is an equity component on the same terms and conditions as offered by the
Company to the other purchasers of such securities.
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Note 12 — Stockholders’ Equity Common Stock During 2008, the Company issued a total of 10.648 shares of common stock
due to the exercise of 10.648 outstanding stock options. for a total consideration of approximately $10 thousand.
During 2009. the Company issued a total of 80.791 shares of common stock due to the exercise of 80.791 outstanding
stock options. for a total consideration of approximately $247 thousand.
Stock Warrants

As of December 31, 2009, there were 1.155.591 outstandlng stock warrants with a weighted average exerC|se price of

will expire on January 30. 2011, if not exerclsed by then.

Redpoint Warrants

In connection with the Redpoint Financings (see Note 9). the Company issued to Redpoint Series A Warrants, exercisable
for 666,667 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.95 per share. and Series B Warrants, exercisable for
636.364 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $6.05 per share. The Series A and the Series B Warrants are
exercisable immediately and. if not exercised. they will expire on June 16. 2014 and June 10. 2015, respectively.

Stock Compensation Plans
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The Company provides for direct grants or sales of common stock, and common stock options to employees and
non-employees through the following: the 1999 Stock Option Plan (the 1999 Plan). the 2000 Stock Option Plan (the 2000
Plan) and the 2003 Stock Option Plan (the 2003 Plan) (thereafter collectively “Prior Option Plans”). the 2004 Stock Option
Plan (the 2004 Plan) and the 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan (the 2005 Plan). In addition, prior to 2005, the Company
had granted stock options outside of its stock options plans. to certain individuals and entities.
The 2005 Plan was approved by the Company’s stockholders in July 2005, following the earlier adoption by the Company’s
board of directors. Under the 2005 Plan, the Company may grant stock options. stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock. deferred stock. other stock-related awards and performance awards to officers. directors, employees. consultants
and other persons who provide services to the Company. The total number of Company shares of common stock allowed
for under the 2005 Plan was set at 850.000. upon its adoption. and was increased by 250,000 on each of the dates June 21,
2006, September 9, 2008 and September 9, 2009. following the approval of the Company’s stockholders.
Under all of the Company’s option plans. options generally vest 25%. with respect to the number granted. upon the first
anniversary date of the option grant, and the remainder vest in equal monthly installments over the 36 months thereafter.
Vested options are exercisable immediately. The Company issues new shares upon share option exercises.
The options generally expire between six to ten years after grant date. Except for grants to certain executives. employee
options are generally forfeited. if not exercised. within three months of termination of employment or service to the
Company.
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Note 12 — Stockholders’ Equity (cont’d)
Stock Options
During 2009. the Company granted a total of 369.750 stock options under its 2005 and 2004 Plans.
The following table summarizes the Company'’s stock option activity during 2009:

Number of stock options Weighted average exercise price

B_alance as of December 31, 20082.102.135 $8.75

Granted369.750 7.95

Exercised(80.791) 3.06
Forfeited(75.006) 9.66

Outstanding as of December 31. 20092.316.088 $8.80

The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during 2008 and 2009 was $2.71 and $4.42. respectively.
The aqgreqgate intrinsic value of options exercised during 2008 and 2009, was approximately $36 thousand. and $362
thousand. respectively. at the date of exercise.

As of December 31. 2008. 424.651 options were available for grant under the 2005 and 2004 Plans. As of December 31.
2009, 379.255 options were available for grant under the 2005 and 2004 Plans. All Prior Option Plans are closed for future
grants.
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Note 12 — Stockholders’ Equity (cont’d)

Stock Options (cont’d)

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2009:
Options outstanding Options exercisable

Range of exercise price Numberoutstanding Weightedaverageremainingcontractual
life(years) Weightedaverageexerciseprice Numberoutstanding Weightedaverageremainingcontractual

life(years) Weightedaverageexerciseprice

$0.69 —5.00 312,631 4.10 $3.43 162.295 3.71 $2.82
5.06 —9.71 1.086.065 4.65 6.60 589,696 4.07 5.89

10.54 — 14.49 788.692 2.60 12.77 693.151 2.53 12.88
15.35 —16.93 128.700 5.47 15.97 128.700 5.47 15.97

December 31, 2009 2,316,088 3.92 $8.80 1.573.842 3.47 $9.48

exercise price of the underlymg awards and the quoted erce of the Company’s common stock as of the reporting date.
The total fair value of stock options that vested during 2008 and 2009 amount to $1.72 million and $1.55 million,
respectively. and was recorded as stock-based compensation expense.
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As of December 31, 2009, there was $2.77 million of unrecognized compensation cost. net of estimated forfeitures of $10
thousand. related to nonvested stock options granted under the Company’s 2005 and 2004 stock option plans. That cost is
expected to be recognized as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31 $

2010 1.116
2011 784
2012 585
2013 282

2.767
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Note 13 - Income Taxes

The components of income (loss) before income taxes were (in thousands):
Years ended December 31
2008 2009

$$

U.S. (13.954) 1,383
Non-U.S. 1,621 542

(12.333) 1,925

Current Deferred Total

$3$8
Year ended December 31, 2008:

Us.- 12 12
Non-U.S.(94) - (94)

(94) 12 (82)

Y_ear ended December 31, 2009:
U.S.177 12 189

Non-U.S.19 (43) (24)
196 (31) 165
As of December 31. 2009, income tax refunds receivable from U.S. federal, foreign, state and local jurisdictions amounted
to approximately $15 thousand. As of that same date. income taxes payable to such jurisdictions amounted to
approximately $38 thousand.
65Table of Contents
ANSWERS CORPORATIONNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Continued)
Note 13 - Income Taxes (cont’d)
The income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009, differed from the amounts computed
by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 34% to pretax income as a result of the following (in thousands):
_Years ended December 31
2008 2009
$3
Computed “expected” tax benefit(4,.193) 654
Effect of State and Local taxes(320) 161
Income tax rate adjustment for State & Local taxes49 62
Foreign tax rate differential(113) (38)
Tax benefit of “Approved Enterprise”/“Beneficiary Enterprise” tax holiday(532
Change in valuation allowance1.474 (3.380)
Non-deductible expenses2.754 1,509
Adjustment to prior year's NOLs and other items799 1.367

Actual income tax expense (benefit)(82) 165

The types of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the Company’s deferred tax assets and
liabilities are set out below (in thousands):

Years ended December 31
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2008 2009

$3

Deferred tax assets:

Miscellaneous accrued expensesi143 170
Intangible assets165 188

Property and equipment27 54

Deferred stock compensation327 358
Foreign capital loss carryforwards191 197
Other4 4

Net operating loss22.957 19.517
T_otal gross deferred tax assets23.814 20.488

L_ess: Valuation allowance(23.814) (20.440)

N_et deferred tax assets- 48

Deferred tax liability:
Goodwill(26) (38)

Net deferred tax asset (liability)(26) 10

At December 31. 2009. the Parent’s deferred tax assets were entirely offset by a valuation allowance. Despite the fact that
the Parent had income in 2009. it experienced a cumulative loss in recent years and views this as a significant piece of
negative evidence that makes it difficult to support a conclusion that expected taxable income from future operations
justifies recognition of deferred tax assets. A valuation allowance has not been established for the Subsidiary’s deferred
tax assets of approximately $48 thousand because the Company believes that it is more likely than not that the results of
future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred tax assets.

The net change in the total valuation allowance for the years ended December 31. 2008 and 2009 was an increase of
$1.451 thousand and a decrease of $3.374 thousand. respectively.
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Note 13 - Income Taxes (cont’d)

Subsequently recognized tax benefits related to the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2009
will be allocated as follows (in thousands):

3

I_ncome tax benefits that would be reported in the consolidated statement of earnings20.344
Non-current intangible assets-
Additional Paid in Capital96

20.440

The Company has net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards for federal income tax purposes of approximately $53 million at

December 31, 2009. The federal NOLs will expire if not utilized on various dates from 2021 through 2028. Section 382 of

the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (“Section 382”) generally imposes an annual limitation on the amount of NOL

carryforwards that may be used to offset taxable income where a corporation has undergone significant changes in its
stock ownership. The Company estimates two ownership changes. as defined under Section 382, have occurred, that

would trlgger thls limitation. Based on current estlmates and assumptlons= the Company may currently use aggroxmately

the Company's restricted NOL is available for use in future years until such NOL is scheduled to expire. The Subsidiary
has capital loss carryforwards of approximately $789 thousand. which can be applied to future capital gains for an
unlimited period of time under current tax rules.

During the year 2000. the Subsidiary was granted "Approved Enterprise" status under the Israeli Law for the
Encouragement of Capital Investments - 1959 (the “Investment Law”) under the "alternative benefits" path. As an "Approved
Enterprise” the Subsidiary is entitled to receive future tax benefits, which are limited to a period of ten years from the first
year that taxable income is generated from the approved assets. In addition, the benefits must be utilized within: the
earlier of 12 years of the year of implementation (as defined) of the investment program or 14 years of the year that
approval is granted. The Subsidiary began claiming benefits in the 2000 tax year. The effect of the tax holiday on the basic
and diluted loss per share is $0.06 and $0.04. for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009. respectively.

Under its "Approved Enterprise” status. income arising from the Subsidiary's approved activities is subject to zero tax
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under the "alternative benefits” path for a period of ten years. In the event of distributions by the Subsidiary to the Parent,
the Subsidiary would have to pay a 10% corporate tax on the amount distributed. and the recipient would have to pay a
15% tax (to be withheld at source) on the amounts of such distribution received. Should the Subsidiary derive income
from sources other than the Approved Enterprise during the relevant period of benefits, such income would be taxable in
Israel at the tax rate in effect at that time (26% being the rate in effect during 2009).

undistributed earnings. It is impracticable at this time to determine the amount of additional taxes payable when these
earnings are remitted.

During 2003. the Subsidiary filed a completion report on its first investment program. Final approval of the program was
received from the Investment Center in March 2004. In December 2006. the Subsidiary filed a completion report on its
second (expansion) investment program and final approval of the program was received from the Investment Center in
October 2008. Under its Approved Enterprise status. the Subsidiary must maintain certain conditions. Failure to comply

with the conditions of the Approved Enterprise status could cause the Subsidiary to lose previously accumulated tax
benefits.
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Note 13 - Income Taxes (cont’d)
On April 1, 2005. amendment No. 60 to the Investment Law came into effect (the “Amendment”) and has changed several
provisions of the Investment Law, mainly in respect of the "alternative benefits" track. The Amendment sets forth the
scope of enterprises which may qualify as a “Beneficiary Enterprise” - under the Amendment, the designation is “Beneficiary
Enterprise” rather than “Approved Enterprise” - by setting forth criteria for qualification of a company. Additionally, the
Amendment enacted that companies operating under the "alternative benefits" track no longer require Investment Center
approval in order to qualify for tax benefits. Instead. this position will be incorporated as part of the reqular tax audits of
the Israeli Tax Authorities (the “ITA”).
Under the Amendment, the year in which a company elects to commence its tax benefits is designated as the year of
election (“Year of Election”). A company may choose its Year of Election by notifying the ITA in its annual tax return or
within twelve months after the end of the Year of Election. whichever is earlier. or by requesting a pre-ruling from the ITA
no later than six months after the end of the Year of Election. However. the Investment Law provides that terms and
benefits included in any letter of approval which was granted prior to the effective date of the Amendment, will remain
subject to the provisions of the law as they were on the date of such approval. Therefore, the Subsidiary’s existing
Approved Enterprise status will generally not be subject to the provisions of the Amendment, while in order to receive
further benefits. the Subsidiary will have to meet the Amendment's requirements. The Company elected 2008 as its Year
of Election for its second expansion under the Amendment to the Investment Law. The Subsidiary currently has three
capital investment programs, two of which were granted Approved Enterprise status under the Investment Law prior to
the Amendment. ending December 31, 2009 and December 31. 2014, respectively. and one Beneficiary Enterprise
pursuant to the Amendment. ending December 31, 2017. As of the balance sheet dates. the Subsidiary believes that it is in
compliance with both, the conditions of the Approved Enterprise and Beneficiary Enterprise programs.
The Company accounts for its income tax uncertainties in accordance with ASC Subtopic 740-10 which clarifies the
accounting for uncertainties in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are recognized as a
component of income tax expense.
The Company did not record any unrecognized tax benefits in 2008 and 2009. and does not expect this amount to change
significantly within the next twelve months.
The Parent and its Subsidiary. collectively. file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various state & local and
foreign jurisdictions. The Parent is no longer subject to U.S. federal and state & local income tax examinations by tax
authorities for years prior to 2006. The Subsidiary is no longer subject to foreign income tax examinations by tax
authorities for years prior to 2007. 68Table of Contents
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and Contingencies

a)The Parent rents its offices under an operating lease agreement expiring in June 2010, and is actively seeking new office space
with a view towards expanding its U.S. headquarters.
The Subsidiary rents its offices under an operating lease agreement with an initial term expiring in July 2010, and an
option to extend the term for an additional 5 years. The Subsidiary’s current plan is to locate and lease additional space or
alternative space for expanding its research and development operations in advance of the expiration of this lease.
The remaining minimum lease payments under the non-cancelable operating leases for office space through the end of
their respective terms in 2010 were $234 thousand as of December 31, 2009.
Rent expenses for the office space operating leases for the years ended December 31. 2008. and 2009 were approximately
$404 thousand. and $399 thousand. respectively.

(b)The Subsidiary leases its motor vehicles under cancelable operating lease agreements. The minimum payment under these
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operating leases. upon cancellation of these lease agreements amounted to $35 thousand as of December 31, 2009.

Future minimum lease payments under hon-cancelable operating leases for motor vehicles. as of December 31, 2009, are
as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31 $

2010 142
2011 110
2012 57

309

Lease expenses for the motor vehicles operating leases for the years ended December 31. 2008. and 2009 were
approximately $206 thousand. and $173 thousand. respectively.

(c)Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable capital leases for computer equipment. as of December 31. 2009. are

as follows:

Principal Interest
Year ending December 31 $ (in thousands

201082 3
201124 1

106 4

(d) A bank guarantee given to the Subsidiary’s landlord. is secured by a lien on some of the Subsidiary’s bank deposits. As of
December 31, 2009, such deposits amounted to $816 thousand. including a restricted long-term deposit of $140 thousand.

(e) The Subsidiary’s hedqging activity is secured by a lien on one of its bank deposits in an amount of up to $150 thousand.
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Note 14 - Commitments and Contingencies (cont’d)

(f) In connection with the Redpoint Financings the Company entered into registration rights agreements with Redpoint, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to register with the SEC for resale the common stock underlying the Redpoint Securities. In connection
with the reqistration rights agreements, the Company agreed to pay a penalty of 1.0% per month. on a daily pro rata basis, up to a
maximum of 8.0%, of the agaregate purchase price. as partial liquidated damages. for certain default events and subject to certain
circumstances. The partial liguidated damages may trigger if the reqistration statements. which the Company filed on July 30. 2008
and June 15, 2009, and which were declared effective by the SEC on September 16, 2008 and July 28, 2009. respectively, cease
to remain continuously effective.

() In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into various arrangements with vendors and other business partners,
principally for content, web-hosting. marketing and various consulting arrangements. As of December 31, 2009, the total future
commitments under these arrangements amounted to approximately $963 thousand.

(h) In the ordinary course of business. the Company may provide indemnifications of varying scope and terms to customers,
vendors. lessors, business partners. and other parties with respect to certain matters. including. but not limited to. losses arising out
of its breach of agreements. services to be provided by it. or from intellectual property infringement claims made by third parties.
Additionally, the Company has indemnified its board members, officers. employees. and agents serving at the request of the
Company to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. It is not possible to determine the maximum potential amount of liability
under these indemnification agreements due to the limited history of prior indemnification claims and the unigue facts and
circumstances involved in each particular agreement. Such indemnification agreements may not be subject to maximum loss
M_mmww

abllltles related to such indemnification obllgatlons in its accomganylng flnan0|al statements

property infringement claims and claims of defamation and invasion of privacy. Although the results of claims cannot be predicted
with certainty, the Company believes the final outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on its financial
posmon= results of operations, or cash flows.

superior rights in the Company's reqistered trademark WikiAnswers®. and threatenlng to file a Petition with the U.S. Trademark
Office to cancel the Company's recently registered WikiAnswers trademark and possibly take other action. if the Company does not
abandon its registered mark for WikiAnswers and its application to register WikiAnswers.com and cease use of the WikiAnswers
trademark. In September 2009, Wikia also filed a notice of opposition with the Trade Marks and Design Registration Office of the
European Union with respect to our WikiAnswers Community Trade Mark application (“CTM”). Wikia has not followed up on its
threat made in July 2009, and in the beginning of 2010, the Company learned that it had withdrawn its opposition to the Company’s
WikiAnswers CTM application. Regardless of Wikia’s inaction since approaching the Company on this matter, the Company has
investigated Wikia's claims. believes the claims are without merit and intends to vigorously defend its rights in and to its U.S.
registered mark WikiAnswers and its CTM application. Notwithstanding the foregoing. there is no assurance that the Company will
obtain a favorable ruling. should litigation ensue. An adverse judgment forcing the Company to abandon its use of the WikiAnswers
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and/or WikiAnswers.com marks would have the potential of materially harming the Company’s business. Litigation could also be
costly for the Company and divert management attention.
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Note 15 — Interest Expense. Net

Interest expense. net. in 2008 is comprised of the amortization of the transaction costs relating to the Series B Unit
Warrant in the amount of $196 thousand and $7 thousand of interest expenses paid in connection with assets acquired
under several capital lease agreements. Such amounts have been reduced by interest income earned from cash and cash
equivalents and marketable securities in the amount of $148 thousand.

Interest expense. net. in 2009 is comprised of the amortization of the transaction costs relating to the Series B Unit
Warrant in the amount of $166 thousand, transaction costs relating to the issuance of the Series B Warrants in the
amount of $290 thousand and $9 thousand of interest expenses paid in connection with assets acquired under several
capital lease agreements. Such amounts have been reduced by interest income earned from cash and cash equivalents in
the amount of $25 thousand.

Note 16 — Other Income. Net

Other income, net, is comprised of foreign currency exchange gains and losses.

Note 17 — Risks and Uncertainties

(a) Most of the Company's revenue was generated through the efforts of third party suppliers (the “Monetization Partners”). In
2008 and 2009. the Company earned approximately 82% and 88% of its revenue, respectively. through one of its Monetization
Partners, Google Inc. (“Google”). The Company’s relationship with Google is governed by its Google Services Agreement, which
was renewed in the fourth quarter of 2009 for a two-year period ending January 31. 2012.

(b) Search engines serve as origination Web properties for users in search of information, and the Company’s Websites’ topic
pages often appear as one of the top links on the pages returned by search engines in response to users’ search queries. Thus. in
addition to the ads the Company receives through Google. its traffic is mostly driven by search engine traffic, mostly from the
Google search engine. In 2008 and 2009, according to the Company’s internal estimates, search engine traffic represented
approximately 82% and 86% of traffic, respectively. Search engines. at any time and for any reason, could change their algorithms
that direct queries to the Company’s Web properties or could specifically restrict the flow of users visiting the Company’s Web
properties. On occasion the Company’s Web properties have experienced decreases in traffic, and consequently in revenue, due to
these search engine actions. The Company cannot guarantee that it will successfully react to these actions in the future and
recover lost traffic. Accordingly. a change in algorithms that search engines use to identify Web pages towards which traffic will
ultimately be directed. or a restriction on the flow of users visiting the Company’s Web properties from search engines. could cause
a significant decrease in traffic and revenues.

(c) Close to half of the Company’s operating expenses. excluding non-cash items such as stock-based compensation. are
denominated in New Israel Shekels (NIS). The Company expects the amount of such NIS expenses to grow in the foreseeable
future. In recent years, the U.S. dollar-NIS exchange rate has been volatile. If the value of the U.S. dollar weakens against the
value of NIS, there will be a negative impact on the Company’s operating costs. In addition. to the extent the Company holds
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, the Company will be subject to the risk
of exchange rate fluctuations. The Company uses various hedging tools. including forward contracts. to lessen the effect of
currency fluctuations on its results of operations.

(d) The Series A Warrants and Series B Warrants are revalued each reporting date, and any change in their fair value is recorded
in the Statement of Operations. The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation model to determine the values of the warrants.
Inputs used in this model include our stock price and risk-free interest rate. The primary reason for the change in value of the
aforesaid warrants over the last year has been the change in the market value of our common stock on the measurement dates. To
the extent that the market value of our common stock rises or declines in future periods. the Company may continue to experience
significant gains or losses resulting from the fair value adjustments of Series A Warrants and Series B Warrants. 71Table of
Contents Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures.
Our management has evaluated, with the participation of our principal executive and principal financial officers, the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and of our internal control over financial reporting. as of

December 31, 2009. Based on their evaluation, our principal executive and principal financial officers have concluded
that, as of December 31. 2009. our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Disclosure controls and procedures are our controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded. processed,
summarized and reported. within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and
forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include. without limitation. controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated
and communicated to our management. including our principal executive and principal financial officers. as appropriate
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by
our principal executive and principal financial officers. under the supervision of our board. and effected by our
management and other personnel. to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
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and includes those policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail
accurately and fairly reflect our transactions and dispositions of assets. (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of our management and directors. and (3) and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of Answers Corporation (the “Company”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting was designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations,
internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management of the Company assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31. 2009. In making this assessment. it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment,
management concluded that. as of December 31, 2009, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective
based on those criteria.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the
Exchange Act) that occurred during the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 2009 that have materially affected
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
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In our annual report on form 10-K for the period ending December 31. 2007, we stated that we had fully remediated a
control deficiency with respect to access to. and changes in. the Company’s information technology financial applications
and underlying financial data, and that we were in the process of remediating a control deficiency with respect to the
authority of the officers of the Company to obligate the Company. We further explained that subsequent to December 31,
2007, the Board of Directors of the Company had adopted an approval policy limiting the authority of certain officers of
the Company to obligate the Company. Finally. we stated that it was our intention to further implement such approval
policy by notifying the Company’s banking institutions and causing the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary. GuruNet
Israel Ltd.. to establish a similar approval policy.

In July 2008 we completed the process of remediating the control deficiency with respect to the authority of the officers of
the Company to obligate the Company by notifying the Company’s banking institutions of the Company’s newly
established signatory rights and approval policies adopted by the Board of Directors and by causing the Company’s

wholly-owned subsidiary, GuruNet Israel Ltd., to establish the same approval policy as Answers Corporation. mutatis
mutandis.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our executive officers and directors as of December 31. 2009:
Name Age Position

Eecutive Officers

%bert S. Rosenschein 56 CEO. President and Chairman of the Board

Steven Steinberg 49 Chief Financial Officer

Jeff Schneiderman 46 Chief Technical Officer

Bruce D. Smith 48 Chief Strategic Officer

Caleb A. Chill 35 Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Directors

Mark A. Tebbe 49 Vice Chairman and Lead Director
Yehuda Sternlicht 55 Director

Mark B. Segall 47 Director

Lawrence S. Kramer 59 Director

W. Allen Beasley 42 Director

R. Thomas Dyal 44 Director
Executive Officers:

L] ” G

Tabrces,” “Off Balance Sheet Arrangements,” “Critical Accounting Estimates” and “Quarterly Results”. Th81Genera



Edgar Filing: AETNA INC /PA/ - Form S-4/A

Robert S. Rosenschein has been Chairman of our Board and President since he founded Answers Corporation in
December 1998. From December 1998 to April 2000 and since May 2001. Mr. Rosenschein has served as our Chief
Executive Officer. Prior to founding Answers. he was the Chief Executive Officer of Accent Software International Ltd.
formerly Kivun). a company that developed multi-linqual software tools. and from 1988 to 1997 and from 1997 to 1998. he
was the Chief Technical Officer. Mr. Rosenschein previously served as a software developer for Data General, American
Management Systems. the World Bank and Ashton Tate. Mr. Rosenschein graduated with a B.Sc. in Computer Science
from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and received the Prime Minister of Israel’s Award for Software
Achievement in 1997.
Steven Steinberg has been our Chief Financial Officer since January 2004. From December 2002 to December 2003,
Mr. Steinberg was our Vice President of Finance. From January 2001 to November 2002, he was the Vice President of
Finance at Percite Information Technologies. Ltd.. a supply-chain software company. From November 1998 to December
2000, he was the Controller at Albar Mimunit Services Ltd., a finance and leasing company. From October 1993 to July
1998. he held various positions with Health Partners. Inc. culminating with Chief Financial Officer of the New York
Operations. From August 1983 to October 1993. he held various positions with Coopers and Lybrand. an accounting firm,
culminating with audit manager at the New York offices. Mr. Steinberg graduated with a B.B.A. from Florida International
University.
Jeff Schneiderman has been our Chief Technical Officer since March 2003. From January 1999 to February 2003,
Mr. Schneiderman was our Vice President of Research and Development. Prior to joining Answers. he worked at Accent
Software International Ltd.. from November 1991 to December 1998 during which time he served as Vice President of
Engineering from October 1996 to March 1998 and Vice President of Product Development from March 1998 to December
1998. From June 1986 to June 1991, Mr. Schneiderman held various development positions at AT&T Bell Labs. a global
telecommunication organization, and the Whitewater Group. a firm specializing in object oriented technologies.
Mr. Schneiderman graduated with a B.S. in Computer Science from the University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign and a
M.S. in Computer Science from the lllinois Institute of Technology.
74 Table of Contents Bruce D. Smith has been our Chief Strategic Officer since June 2007. From July 2005 to June 2007,
Mr. Smith was our Vice President of Investor Relations and Strategic Development. In 2008 Mr. Smith assumed the
additional role of leader of the WikiAnswers Community Development Team. Prior to joining Answers. he was a Managing
Director at Archery Capital, a New York based investment firm from July 1999 to July 2005. From June 1998 to July 1999,
he was a sell side analyst at Jefferies & Company. where he was responsible for coverage of the Internet industry as well
as individual companies. From November 1995 to March 1998. Mr. Smith maintained coverage of the Internet industry at
Merrill Lynch & Co. From April 1994 to October 1995. he was a Security Analyst at Morgan Stanley Asset Management. a
division of Morgan Stanley & Co. Mr. Smith graduated with a B.B.A., Magna Cum Laude. from Bernard M. Baruch College,
City University of New York. He is a Chartered Financial Analyst and member of the New York Society of Security
Analysts.
Caleb A. Chill has been our Vice President. General Counsel and Corporate Secretary since January 2007. From January
2005 to January 2007, Mr. Chill was our In-House Counsel. From August 2002 to November 2004, he was an associate in
the Corporate Department of Sills Cummis & Gross P.C., based out of the firm’s New York office. His practice
concentrated on the structuring and negotiating of corporate transactions in high-tech and other industries. From August
1999 to Auqust 2001, Mr. Chill was an associate in the international department of Baratz. Horn & Co.. an Israeli corporate
law firm. Mr. Chill holds an LL.B. from Bar-llan University of Israel, has earned an M.B.A. from the same institution, and is
admitted to practice law in Israel and New York.
Board of Directors:
The following provides certain qualifications, attributes. skills and other biographical information with respect to our six
non-management directors currently serving on our board of directors:
Mark A. Tebbe has served as a director since December 1998 and as Vice Chairman and Lead Director since April 2007.
Mr. Tebbe currently serves as the chairman of our Compensation Committee and as a member of our Audit Committee.
Since February 2002, Mr. Tebbe has been Chairman of Techra Networks LLC. a technology-oriented consulting firm. From
August 1984 to January 2002, Mr. Tebbe served as Chairman of Lante Corporation, a technology consulting firm he
founded. Mr. Tebbe is also a board member of SBI Group. Elexos Corp. and Selective Search. Inc. and several non-profit
and civic organizations. Mr. Tebbe graduated with a B.S. in Computer Science from the University of lllinois at
Urbana/Champaign. As a co-founder of the Company, Mr. Tebbe was originally selected to serve as a director due to his
deep familiarity with our business. his extensive entrepreneurial background and many years of senior management
experience in the technology sector.
Yehuda Sternlicht has served as a director since June 2004 and currently serves as the chairman of our Audit Committee
and since July 2005 has also served as a member of our Financing Committee. Since 2004, Mr. Sternlicht has been an
independent financial consultant. Between 2004 and 2008. he served as the Chief Financial Officer of NanoVibronix Inc., a
medical device company. From 1992 to 2003, he was the Chief Financial Officer of Savient Pharmaceuticals. Inc. Prior to
1992 he served in several financial and accounting positions in public and private companies and in a large CPA firm in
Israel and in the United States. Mr. Sternlicht served as a member of the board of directors of Ubank Provident fund
management (2005) Ltd. Between June 2006 and January 2008. He also served as a member of the board of Lumus Ltd.
Between December 2003 and January 2006. Mr. Sternlicht graduated with a B.A. in Accounting and Economy from The
Hebrew University. He is qualified as a Certified Public Accountant in the State of Israel. Mr. Sternlicht brings to the board
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substantial financial and accounting experience due to the professional positions he has held over the course of his
career. Mr. Sternlicht qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” under SEC guidelines.

Mark B. Segall has served as a director since December 2004 and currently serves as the chairman of our Finance
Committee and as a member of our Audit Committee. Mr. Segall has been the Senior Managing Director of Kidron
Corporate Advisors. LLC. a New York based mergers and acquisitions corporate advisory boutique serving emerging
dgrowth companies primarily in the technology. consumer goods and financial services sectors. which he founded in 2003.
He is also a founder and managing member of Kidron's private equity fund. Kidron Opportunity Fund I, LLC. From 2001 to
2003. Mr. Seqgall was the Co-Chief Executive Officer of Investec. Inc., the U.S. investment banking operations of the
Investec Group. a South African based specialist bank. He served as head of investment banking and general counsel at
Investec Inc. between 1999 and 2001. From 1996 to 1999. he was a partner at the law firm of Kramer, Levin, Naftalis &
Frankel LLP. specializing in cross-border mergers and acquisitions and capital markets activities and between 1991 and
1995 he was an associate at the same firm. Mr. Segall currently serves as a director of Integrated Asset Management plc,
an alternative asset management company. and Ronson Europe N.V.. a Polish residential real estate development
company. Mr. Seqgall served as director of the Spectrum Group (formerly Escala) from 1999 to 2007 and of Cogo (formerly
the Comtech Group) from 2000 to 2006. Mr. Segall graduated with an A.B. from Columbia University and a J.D. from New
York University Law School. Mr. Segall brings significant business finance experience as well as his extensive
management expertise to the Company from his background as a chief executive officer in the corporate advisory and

investment banking industries. board member of several corporations and counsel to humerous technology company
clients.
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Lawrence S. Kramer has served as a director since May 2005 and currently serves as the chairman of our
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee and as a member of our Financing Committee. Mr. Kramer is Adjunct
Professor of Media Management at the Newhouse School at Syracuse University. He was a senior advisor to Polaris
Venture Partners from July 2007 until January 2010. From November 2006 until May 2007, he was an advisor to CBS. From
March 2005 to November 2006. he served as the first President of CBS Digital Media. From October 1997 to January 2005,
Mr. Kramer was the Chairman and CEO of MarketWatch. Inc.. a media company he founded. From February 1994 to
October 1997, he served as Vice President of News. Sports and Marketing at Data Broadcasting Corporation. For 20 years
prior to that, Mr. Kramer had a distinguished career in journalism as a reporter and top editor at the San Francisco
Examiner and the Washington Post. In 2009. Mr. Kramer joined the board of directors of American Media. Inc.. a
privately-held publishing company in the celebrity journalism and health & fitness categories. In 2008. Mr. Kramer became
a board member of Discovery Communications Inc. (NASDAQ: DISCA). Mr. Kramer has been awarded a National Press
Club Award. Gerald E. Loeb Award and Associated Press Awards for reporting. Mr. Kramer graduated with a B.S. in
Journalism and Political Science from Syracuse University and an M.B.A. from Harvard University and has been a Guest
Lecturer at the Harvard Business School for 10 years. Mr. Kramer’s many years of experience creating and managing
content. along with his strong background of service in the media industry and his past experience as a chairman and
chief executive officer of a public company. make him a valuable member of our board of directors who can assist in the
development of our growth strategy and business plans.

W. Allen Beasley has served as a director since June 2008 and currently serves as a member of our Compensation
Committee and our Financing Committee. Since October 1999. Mr. Beasley has been a partner with Redpoint Ventures.
From June 1998 to September 1999. Mr. Beasley was an associate with Institutional Venture Partners (IVP). Before joining
IVP, Allen worked in marketing and product management for Ipsilon Networks. a developer of IP switching technology
founded in 1994 and acquired by Nokia in 1997. Mr. Beasley focuses on infrastructure and media investments and
currently serves on the Boards of Directors of Buzz Media, Inc. and Obopay. Inc. Mr. Beasley holds a B.A. in Economics
from Stanford University and an M.B.A. from the Stanford Graduate School of Business. Because of his strong
background of investment activity in growth-stage companies and his focus on opportunities in the Internet sector. we
believe that Mr. Beasley provides a unique perspective and useful insight to our board as we strive to deliver on our
growth strategy and strategic initiatives.

R. Thomas Dyal has served as a director since June 2009. as a designee of the holders of the Company's Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock. and currently serves as a member of our Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee.
Since October 1999, Mr. Dyal has been a partner with Redpoint Ventures. From June 1997 to September 1999, Mr. Dyal
was a partner and associate with Institutional Venture Partners (IVP). Before joining IVP. Mr. Dyal spent ten years in
operating roles in the communications and networking industry. most recently at Bay Networks. Inc. At Bay Networks. he
ran product management for its network management software business. Mr. Dyal began his career as a systems
engineer with AT&T Bell Laboratories. Mr. Dyal focuses on a wide range of technology investment areas, including
infrastructure and application software. services and systems targeting the Internet, mobile and enterprise segments.
Currently. he is leading the firm's investments in Clearwell Systems. Inc. and NextG Networks. Inc. Mr. Dyal holds a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from the Georgia Institute of Technology and a M.S. in Electrical Engineering from Stanford
University. Mr. Dyal’s background. which includes investment activity in companies focused on opportunities in the
Internet. software and mobile industries. is complementary to the oversight of our business and his past operating roles
in the communications and networking industry bring additional value to our board.

There are no family relationships among directors. executive officers. or persons hominated or chosen to become
directors or executive officers.
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Board Classes

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation provides that the number of directors shall be not less than five or
no more than nine directors. Our board of directors is divided into three classes with only one class of directors being
elected in each year and each class serving a three-year term. We currently have no Class Il board members. The
following chart sets forth the term of office of each class of directors and which directors are assigned to each class:
ClassTermMembers

Class IExpires upon 2011 annual meetingMark A. Tebbe and Lawrence S. Kramer

Class lIExpires upon 2012 annual meetingN/A

Class llIExpires upon 2010 annual meetingRobert Rosenschein, Yehuda Sternlicht and Mark Segall
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W. Allen Beasley, the director designee of the holders of a majority of the Company’s outstanding Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, is not a member of a class. Mr. Beasley’s term as a director will expire at the 2010 annual meeting of
stockholders at which time he will be nominated to be reelected as a director provided that the holders of a majority of the
Company’s outstanding Series A Convertible Preferred Stock meet certain ownership requirements as set forth in the
Certificate of Designations. Number, Voting Powers. Preferences and Rights of Series A Preferred Stock.

R. Thomas Dyal. the director designee of the holders of a majority of outstanding Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. is
not a member of a class. Mr. Dyal’s term as a director expires at the 2010 Annual Meeting of stockholders at which time he
will be nominated to be reelected as a director provided that the holders of a majority of the Company’s outstanding

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock meet certain ownership requirements as set forth in the Certificate of Designations.
Number, Voting Powers, Preferences and Rights of Series B Preferred Stock.

Director Independence

The NASDAQ listing standards require that a majority of our board must be composed of “independent directors.” which is
defined generally as a person other than an officer or employee of the company or its subsidiaries or any other individual
having a relationship. which. in the opinion of the company’s board of directors would interfere with the director’s exercise
of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. Our board of directors has determined that its
members are currently “independent” in accordance with the applicable listing standards of NASDAQ as currently in effect,

with the exception of Messrs. Rosenschein. Beasley and Dyal.

Committees of the Board

The Company’s board of directors has adopted a written charter for each of the Audit Committee. Compensation
Committee and Nominations/ Corporate Governance Committee. Each charter is available on the Company’s website.
Audit Committee. In May 2004, the Company established an Audit Committee of the board of directors. The Audit
Committee consists of Mr. Sternlicht, Chairman. Mr. Segall and Mr. Tebbe, each of whom satisfy the current independence
standards as promulgated by the SEC and NASDAQ, as such standards apply specifically to members of audit

committees. The Audit Committee’s scope of authority, which is specified in our Audit Committee Charter. includes, but is
not limited to:

¢ Reviewing and discussing with management and the independent accountants our annual and quarterly financial statements and
discussing with management any earnings guidance provided to the market:

¢ Directly appointing. compensating. retaining. and overseeing the work of the independent auditor;

e Approving. in advance. the provision by the independent auditor of all audit and permissible non-audit services:

¢ Establishing procedures for the receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding accounting,
internal accounting controls. or auditing matters and the confidential, anonymous submissions by the Company’s employees of
concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters:

¢ Retaining independent legal and other advisors as the Audit Committee deems necessary or appropriate;

¢ Determining and receiving from the Company appropriate funding to compensate the independent accountants and any outside
advisors engaged by the Audit Committee; and

¢ Reviewing reports and disclosure of insider and affiliated party transactions. 77Table of Contents The Audit Committee will at
all times be composed exclusively of “super independent directors” who are “financially literate” as defined under the
NASDAQ listing standards. The NASDAQ listing standards define “financially literate’” as being able to read and understand
fundamental financial statements. including a company’s balance sheet. income statement and cash flow statement.

In addition, the Company must certify to NASDAQ that the committee has, and will continue to have, at least one member
who has past employment experience in finance or accounting. requisite professional certification in accounting. or other

expert,” as defined under rules and requlations of the SEC.

Compensation Committee. In May 2004, the Company established a Compensation Committee of the board of directors.
The Compensation Committee consists of Mr. Tebbe, Chairman, Mr. Beasley and Mr. Kramer. With the exception of Mr.
Beasley. each of the Compensation Committee members is an independent director under the current definition
promulgated by NASDAQ. The Compensation Committee reviews and approves the Company’s salary and benefits
policies. including the compensation of executive officers. The Compensation Committee also administers the Company’s
stock option plans and recommends and approves grants of stock options and/or other stock-based awards under the
plans.
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Nomlnatlng/CorQorate Governance Commlttee In May 2004, the Company establlshed a Nomlnatlng/CorQorat

Mr. Kramer, Chairman, Mr. Tebbe and Mr. Dyal. With the exception of Mr. Dyal, each of the Nominating Committee
members is an independent director under the current definition promulgated by NASDAQ. The purpose of the

Nominating Committee is to select. or recommend for the entire board’s selection. the individuals to stand for election as
directors at the annual meeting of stockholders and to oversee the selection and composition of committees of the board.
The committee’s duties, which are specified in the Nominating Committee Charter, include, but are not limited to:

¢ Establishing criteria for the selection of new directors;

¢ Recommending directors to serve on the committees of the board:

¢ Considering the adequacy of the Company’s corporate governance and proposing amendments accordingly:

¢ Overseeing and approving management continuity planning process; and

¢ Reporting reqularly to the board matters relating to the committee’s duties. Financing Committee. In July 2005. the Company
established a Financing Committee of the board of directors. The Financing Committee consists of Mr. Segall, Chairman,
Mr. Sternlicht and Mr. Kramer, each of whom is an independent director under the current definition promulgated by
NASDAQ. The purpose of the Financing Committee is to review and discuss with management financing opportunities
that the Company is considering. to evaluate the Company’s strategy on investing excess cash, to evaluate business
merits of all potential mergers and acquisitions and to provide the board of directors with a recommendation as to the
terms and conditions of any extraordinary transactions. in consultation with the management team. legal advisors and
financial consultants.

Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors and Lead Director. On April 12, 2007. Mark A. Tebbe was appointed
Vice-Chairman of the board of directors and Lead Director. In this capacity. Mr. Tebbe is authorized to call meetings of the
board. in consultation with the non-employee directors. advise the Chairman as to scheduling board meetings and
provide the Chairman with input regarding the agendas for the board meetings. preside at all meetings at which the
Chairman is not present including executive sessions of the non-employee directors and apprise the Chairman of the
issues considered, be available for consultation and direct communication with the Company’s major stockholders and
perform such other duties as the board may from time to time delegate.

78Table of Contents Code of Ethics

In May 2004, we adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that applies to all of our executive officers. directors and
employees. The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct codifies the business and ethical principles that govern all aspects
of our business. A copy of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct may be found on our website at
http://ir.answers.com.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act. Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our
officers and directors. and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of our equity securities, to file
reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Officers, directors and
gdreater than ten percent stockholders are required by SEC regulation to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms
they file. Based on a review of the copies of such forms received. we believe that during 2009, all filing requirements
applicable to our officers. directors and greater than ten percent beneficial owners were complied with. 79Table of
Contents

Item 11. Executive Compensation. Summary Compensation Table

The following table provides certain summary information concerning compensation awarded to. earned by or paid to our
Chief Executive Officer, and our two other highest paid executive officers for fiscal year 2009.

Name & Principal Position Year Salar: Bonus Option Awards ($)* All Other Compensation($)(4) Total

Robert S. Rosenschein(1) 2009 256.044(5)26.700 140.352 60.332(6)483.428
Chief Executive Officer 2008 257.020(5)— 102.483 58.211(7)417.714

and Chairman

Steven Steinberg(2) 2009 159.620(5)26.700 109.650 45.983(8)341.,953
Chief Financial Officer 2008 173.087(5)— 84.257 48.419(9)305.763

Bruce D. Smith(3) 2009 240.072 26.700 127.194 35.934(10)429.900
Chief Strateqgic Officer 2008 223,200 — 91.882 32.428(10)347.510

*

Amounts represent the aggregate grant date fair value in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718.
_(1 )Mr. Rosenschein founded our company and was appointed our Chief Executive Officer in May 2001.
_(2)Mr. Steinberq joined us in December 2002 and was appointed our Chief Financial Officer in January 2004.

_(S)Mr. Smith joined us as Vice President of Investor Relations and Strategic Development in July 2005 and was promoted to Chief
Strateqic Officer in June 2007.
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(4)With the exception of reimbursement of expenses incurred by our named executive officers during the scope of their

employment and unless expressly stated otherwise in a footnote below, none of the named executive officers received other
compensation. perquisites and/or personal benefits in excess of $10.000.

_(5)Does not include benefit associated with possession of company-leased vehicle.

_(6)Includes contributions to continued education fund (Keren Hishtalmut) in the amount of $3.595: contributions to retirement plan
feature of Managers’ Insurance (Kupat Gemel), statutory severance payments (Pitzuei Piturin) and contributions made for disability
insurance Ovdan Kosher Avoda) in the amount of $35.947: contributions towards statutory national insurance (Bituach Leumi) in
the amount of $8.755; and payments associated with possession of company-leased vehicle in the amount of $10.802.

_(7)Includes contributions to continued education fund (Keren Hishtalmut) in the amount of $3.940: contributions to retirement plan
feature of Managers’ Insurance (Kupat Gemel), statutory severance payments (Pitzuei Piturin) and contributions made for disability
insurance Ovdan Kosher Avoda) in the amount of $35.836: contributions towards statutory national insurance (Bituach Leumi) in
the amount of $6.431; and payments associated with possession of company-leased vehicle in the amount of $10.800.

_(8)Includes contributions to continued education fund (Keren Hishtalmut) in the amount of $3.595: contributions to retirement plan
feature of Managers’ Insurance (Kupat Gemel), statutory severance payments (Pitzuei Piturin) and contributions made for disability
insurance Ovdan Kosher Avoda) in the amount of $24.355: contributions towards statutory national insurance (Bituach Leumi) in
the amount of $7.332; and payments associated with possession of company-leased vehicle in the amount of $9.429.

_(9)Includes contributions to continued education fund (Keren Hishtalmut) in the amount of $3.940: contributions to retirement plan
feature of Managers’ Insurance (Kupat Gemel), statutory severance payments (Pitzuei Piturin) and contributions made for disability
insurance Ovdan Kosher Avoda) in the amount of $26.043: contributions towards statutory national insurance (Bituach Leumi) in
the amount of $6.431; and payments associated with possession of company-leased vehicle in the amount of $10.800.

_(1 0)Includes payments made on account of medical insurance, short and long term disability, life insurance and 4% contributions to
401(k) plan.
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Employment Contracts

Robert S. Rosenschein

Robert S. Rosenschein is employed as our President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to an employment agreement
that commenced on January 1. 2002 and was amended and restated as of January 8. 2004 and further amended on
November 27. 2006. November 6. 2007 and July 30. 2008. The term of the agreement expires on January 7. 2012 and will
automatically renew for successive two year periods unless the agreement is terminated earlier by the parties.

Mr. Rosenschein’s annual base salary was set at 1,049.400 NIS (New Israeli Shekel) throughout 2009.

According to his amended agreement. Mr. Rosenschein’s annual base salary is subject to a 10% annual increase and he is
eligible to receive an annual bonus based on his performance and as approved by our board of directors in its sole
discretion. We may voluntarily terminate the employment agreement by providing no less than ninety days’ prior written
notice.

If we terminate Mr. Rosenschein’s employment without cause, we shall extend the period during which Mr. Rosenschein
may exercise his options to the earlier of (i) one year from the date of termination or (ii) the expiration date of the options
dranted. Furthermore, if we terminate Mr. Rosenschein’s employment for any reason other than cause, we are required to
pay him the entire amount payable under the severance portion of his Manager’s Insurance Policy. In the event of a
change in control. we will accelerate the vesting of 50% of any options granted to Mr. Rosenschein that have not vested
as of the effective date of the change in control. If, within twelve months after such change in control. Mr. Rosenschein’s
employment is terminated without cause. 100% of Mr. Rosenschein’s unvested options would vest immediately upon the
effective date of the termination. Mr. Rosenschein has agreed to refrain from competing with us for a period of
twenty-four months following the termination of his employment.

A table describing the payments that would have been due to Mr. Rosenschein under his employment agreement had
Mr. Rosenschein’s employment with us been terminated at the end of 2009 under various circumstances appears under
“Potential Payments and Benefits upon Termination of Employment — Robert S. Rosenschein.” below.

Steven Steinberg

Steven Steinberg is employed as our Chief Financial Officer pursuant to an employment agreement that commenced on
April 1, 2004 and was amended on November 6. 2007. The agreement will remain in effect indefinitely unless it is
terminated earlier by the parties. Mr. Steinberg’s annual base salary was set at 664,800 NIS throughout 2009. We may
terminate Mr. Steinberg’s employment agreement without cause at any time upon three months notice.

If we terminate Mr. Steinberg’s employment without cause or due to death or disability. we shall extend the period during
which Mr. Steinberg may exercise his options granted after the date of his employment agreement by one year from the
effective date of Mr. Steinberg’s termination. In the event of a change in control, we will accelerate the vesting of 50% of
any options granted to Mr. Steinberg that have not vested as of the effective date of the change of control. If, within
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twelve months after such change in control. Mr. Steinberg’s employment is terminated without cause. Mr. Steinberg would
be entitled to four months written notice and any unvested options that were granted to Mr. Steinberg. subsequent to the
date of his employment agreement., would vest immediately upon the effective date of the termination. Mr. Steinberg has
agreed to refrain from competing with us for a period of twelve months following the termination of his employment.

A table describing the payments that would have been due to Mr. Steinberg under his employment agreement had

Mr. Steinberg’s employment with us been terminated at the end of 2009 under various circumstances appears under
“Potential Payments and Benefits upon Termination of Employment — Steve Steinberg.” below.
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Bruce D. Smith is employed as our Chief Strategic Officer pursuant to an employment agreement that commenced on
July 27. 2005 and was amended on November 6. 2007. Mr. Smith’s annual base salary was set at $237.600 throughout
2009. In addition to his base salary, Mr. Smith is eligible to receive an annual bonus as determined by the Compensation
Committee in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer based on certain stated performance goals. We may terminate
the employment agreement without cause at any time upon three months written notice.
If we terminate Mr. Smith’s employment without cause. we shall extend the period during which Mr. Smith may exercise
his options granted by one year from the effective date of Mr. Smith’s termination. In the event of a change in control, we
will accelerate the vesting of 50% of any options granted to Mr. Smith subsequent to his employment agreement that have
not vested as of the effective date of the change of control. If we terminate Mr. Smith’s employment without cause at any
time during the twelve months subsequent to a change in control. then, Mr. Smith will be entitled to three months written
notice and 100% of any options granted to Mr. Smith. subsequent to the date of his employment agreement. that have not
vested will immediately vest. Mr. Smith has agreed to refrain from competing with us following the termination of his
employment for a period of twelve months.
A table describing the payments that would have been due to Mr. Smith under his employment agreement had Mr. Smith’s
employment with us been terminated at the end of 2009 under various circumstances appears under “Potential Payments
and Benefits upon Termination of Employment — Bruce D. Smith.” below
Contributions to Israeli Employees
We make contributions on behalf of our Israeli employees. including on behalf of our Israeli named executive officers in
accordance with their employment agreements. to a fund known as Managers’ Insurance. This fund provides a
combination of retirement plan, insurance and severance pay benefits to the employee. giving the employee. or his or her
estate. payments upon retirement or death and securing the severance pay. if legally entitled. upon termination of
employment. Each full-time employee is entitled to participate in the plan. and each employee who participates
contributes an amount equal to 5% of his or her salary to the retirement plan. and we contribute between 13.33% and
15.83% of his or her salary (consisting of 5% to the retirement plan. 8.33% to secure severance payments and up to 2.5%
for disability insurance).
Under the retirement plan component of the Managers’ Insurance, both our 5% contribution and the 5% contribution made
by the employee are immediately vested and non-forfeitable upon contribution to the Managers’ Insurance. In some cases,
we substitute other retirement arrangements. such as provident funds (kupot gemel) for the retirement plan feature of the
Managers’ Insurance. The features of the provident funds are substantially similar to those of the retirement plan feature
of the Managers’ Insurance.
In addition, we make contributions on behalf of our Israeli employees. including all of our Israeli named executive officers,
in accordance with their employment agreements. to a fund known as a continued education fund (Keren Hishtalmut). We
contribute an amount equal to 7.5% of the employee’s salary and deduct 2.5% of the employee’s salary. Our contributions
to the continuing education fund are only up to the permissible tax-exempt salary ceiling according to the income tax
requlations in effect from time to time, which ceiling was 15.712 NIS monthly as of December 31, 2009.
Option Grant Practice

The Compensation Commlttee has delegated the authorlty to make initial option grants to new emgloyees (within an

approved range were granted quarterly, on March 30, June 29 and September 28. According to our practice. we execute
the grants on the 27th of the last month of each calendar quarter. If the 27th of the last month of a quarter falls on a
Friday. Saturday or Sunday (or a holiday). the meeting approving the grant is postponed to the following non-holiday
Monday. Options are granted at 100% of the closing sales price of our stock on the last market trading date prior to the
drant date.
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We did not have any initial hire grants that were above executive management’s approved range. In the event such a case
was to occur in the future, such grants would be approved by the Compensation Committee with the grant date being the
day after the first day of service and the exercise price being the closing sale price on the last market trading day prior to
the grant date. For annual option grants to all employees. the Compensation Committee must review and submit its
approval. It is the Board of Directors’ practice to approve the Compensation Committee’s option grants. In 2009. these
grants were made on September 9. 2009.

Mr. Rosenschein received an option grant to purchase 32.000 shares of our common stock on September 9. 2009, with an
exercise price of $7.91 per share, based on the NASDAQ closing price on September 8. 2009. Mr. Steinberg received an

option grant to purchase 25,000 shares of our common stock on September 9. 2009, with an exercise price of $7.91 per

share, based on the NASDAQ closing price on September 8. 2009. Mr. Smith received an option grant to purchase 29,000
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shares of our common stock on September 9. 2009. with an exercise price of $7.91 per share, based on the NASDAQ

closing price on September 8., 2009. 25% of the options granted to Messrs. Rosenschein, Steinberg and Smith will vest

after one year from the date of grant and 1/36th of the options vest in equal monthly instaliments thereafter. These

options were granted under the Company’s 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan.

We do not time the granting of our options with any favorable or unfavorable news released by us. The initial grants are

based on the timing of the quarterly pre-determined end-of-quarter dates. Proximity of any awards to an earnings

announcement or other market events is coincidental.

Performance-Based Compensation and Financial Restatement

We have not considered or implemented a policy regarding retroactive adjustments to any cash or equity-based incentive

compensation paid to our executives and other employees where such payments were predicated upon the achievement

of certain financial results that were subsequently the subject of a financial restatement.

Tax and Accounting Considerations

Compliance with Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m). Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. as
mended, restricts deductibility of executlve compensatlon paid to our Chief Executive Officer and each of the three other

compensation for deductibility under applicable tax Iaws to the extent practicable. Income related to stock options

granted under our 1999 Stock Option Plan, the 2000 Stock Plan, the 2003 Stock Plan, the 2004 Stock Plan and the 2005
Incentive Compensation Plan generally qualify for an exemption from these restrictions imposed by Section 162(m). In the
future. the Compensation Committee will continue to evaluate the advisability of qualifying its executive compensation for
full deductibility, in particular in light of the recent IRS Revenue Ruling 2008-13.

2009 Bonus Plan An aggregate bonus grant of $240.000. or 3% of $7.992.000 in Adjusted EBITDA (before bonus). was
approved by the Compensation Committee. Two thirds of such amount was distributed among members of the executive
management team and one third of such amount was allocated to other managers and employees of the company. Messrs
Rosenschein, Steinberg and Smith each received a bonus grant of $26.700.

Potential Payments and Benefits upon Termination of Employment

This section sets forth in tabular form quantitative disclosure regarding estimated payments and other benefits that
would have been received by our Israeli executive officers if their employment had been terminated on December 31. 2009
(the last business day of the fiscal year).

For a narrative description of the severance and change in control arrangements in the employment agreements of the
executive officers. see “Employment Contracts” above.

The amounts referenced in the tables below have been converted from New Israeli Shekels foreign currency. or NIS,

based on the US Dollar — Israeli NIS exchange rate recorded by the Bank of Israel on December 31, 2009.
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Robert S. Rosenschein

The following table describes the potential payments and benefits upon employment termination for Robert S.
Rosenschein, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to applicable law and the terms of his employment
agreement with us. as if his employment had terminated on December 31. 2009 (the last business day of the fiscal year
under the various scenarios described in the column headings as explained in the footnotes below:
Payments and Benefits InvoluntaryTermination(1) Terminationat Will(2) Death orDisability(3) Cause(4) Terminationfollowing a
Changeof Control(5)
Manager’s insurance(6) $114.005 $114.005 $114.005 $114.005 $114.005
Contractual severance — — $133.367 — —
Statutory severance(7) $250,529 $250.529 $250.529 $250.529 $250.529
Vacation(8) $40.606 $40.606 $40.606 $40.606 $40.606
Continuing education fund(9) $40.774 $40.774 $40.774 $40.774 $40.774

dvance notice(10) $66,683 $66,683 — — $66,683

wrltten consent, a material reduction in his dutles, position or responsibilities with us relative to his dutles, position or
responsibilities in effect immediately prior to such reduction. provided. however, that a reduction in duties. position or
esgonS|b|I|t|es solely by virtue of our belng acquired and made part of a Iarger entity. shaII not constitute an Involuntary

employment agreement by any successors.

(2)Pursuant to Mr. Rosenschein’s employment agreement, he may voluntarily terminate his employment with us upon no less than
ninety days’ prior written notice, for any reason. With respect to Termination at Will by Mr. Rosenschein. we are not legally required
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to release to Mr. Rosenschein the monies deposited in the fund which secure payment of statutory severance obligations. however,
it would be customary to release such funds.

mental disease or condition, to perform his normal duties of employment for 120 consecutive days or 180 days in any twelve-month
period. According to Mr. Rosenschein’s employment agreement, if his employment terminates due to death or Disability, he or his
heirs. as the case may be. will receive a lump-sum payment equal to six months of his annual base salary in effect at the time of
termination. If Mr. Rosenschein is terminated due to Death or Disability, he is entitled to both contractual and statutory severance.

(4)“Cause is deflned in Mr Rosenscheln S emgloyment as the occurrence of any one or more of the following:

ontendere in, a court of competent jurisdiction for any crime which constltutes a felony in the jurisdiction involved: or
(iii) Mr. Rosenschein’s gross negligence in the scope of his services.

(5)“Change in Control” is defined in Mr. Rosenschein’s employment agreement as (a) the consummation of a merger or
consolidation of us with or into another entity or any other corporate reorganization., if persons who are not our stockholders

immediately prior to such merger, consolidation or other reorganization own immediately after such merger. consolidation or other
eor anlzatlon 50% or more of the votln ower of the outstandln securltles of each of the (i) continuing or, surV|V|n entlt and

or substantially all of our assets.

6)Payments to Managers’ Insurance. a benefit customarily given to executives in Israel, though given by us to all our employees in

Israel, amount to up to 15.83% of Mr. Rosenschein’s base salary, consisting of 8.33% for payments made to a fund to secure
payment of statutory severance obligations. 5% towards pension and up to 2.5% for disability. The Manager’s Insurance fund
amounts reflected in the table represent only the 5% towards pension. These amounts do not include (i) the 8.33% payments to a
fund to secure payment of statutory severance obligations with respect to amounts paid prior to December 31, 2009, which funds
are reflected in the table under the “Statutory Severance” heading. and (ii) payments for disability.

_(7)Pursuant to Israeli law. employees terminated other than “for cause” receive statutory severance in the amount of one month’s
base salary for each year of work, according to their salary rate at the date of termination (see footnote 6 above).

_(8)As of December 31, 2009, Mr. Rosenschein was entitled to 33 annual vacation days. A maximum of 20 days of unused paid
vacation days may be carried over from year to year by Mr. Rosenschein. At the end of each calendar year. all unused vacation
days in excess of 20, are automatically forfeited.

(9)Pursuant to Mr. Rosenschein’s employment agreement, we must contribute an amount equal to 7.5% of Mr. Rosenschein’s base
salary to a continuing education fund, up to the permissible tax-exempt salary ceiling according to the income tax regulations in
effect from time to time. We make these deposits on a monthly basis. At December 31, 2009, the ceiling then in effect was NIS
15.712 (approximately $4.220). According to Israeli law. Mr. Rosenschein is entitled to redeem his continuing education fund once
every six years. independent of his status of employment with us and he has discretion over the type of fund in which the deposits
are invested. The amount set forth in the table reflects the total sum we deposited on behalf of Mr. Rosenschein since the
beqinning of his employment with us.

(10)Pursuant to Mr. Rosenschein’s employment agreement, he may voluntarily terminate his employment with us upon no less than
ninety days’ prior written notice, for any reason. We shall have the right to require Mr. Rosenschein to continue working during any

notice period.
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Steven Steinberg

The following table describes the potential payments and benefits upon employment termination for Steven Steinberg.
our Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to applicable law and the terms of his employment agreement with us. as if his
employment had terminated on December 31, 2009 (the last business day of the fiscal year) under the various scenarios
described in the column headings as explained in the footnotes below:

Payments and Benefits Termination(1) Terminationat Will(2) Death orDisability(3) Cause(4) Terminationfollowing a Changeof
Control(5)

Manager’s insurance(6) $51.007 $51.007 $51.007 $51.007 $51.007

Contractual severance (7) — — $42.571 — —
Statutory severance(8) $97.895 $97.895 $97.895 $97.895 $97.895

Vacation(9) $13.171 $13.171 $13.171 $13.171 $13.171
Continuing education fund(10) $26.433 $26.433 $26.433 $26.433 $26.433

Advance notice(11) $41.571 $41.571 — — $55,428
(1)According to Mr. Steinberg’s employment agreement, we may terminate his employment without cause, at any time, upon three
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months notice.

_(2)According to Mr. Steinberg’s employment agreement, he may terminate his employment, at any time. upon three months notice.
With respect to Termination at Will by Mr. Steinberg, we are not legally required to release to Mr. Steinberg the monies deposited in
the fund which secure payment of statutory severance obligations. however, it would be customary to release such funds.

disease or condition, to Qerform his normal duties of employment for 120 consecutive days or 180 days in any twelve-month period.
According to Mr. Steinberg’s employment agreement, if his employment terminates due to death or disability. he or his heirs. as the
case may be. will be entitled to continue to receive his annual salary for three months following his last day of employment. Such
amount shall be in addition to any payment he is entitled to receive pursuant to any statutory severance arrangement.

(5)“Change of Control” is defined in Mr. Steinberg’s employment agreement as (a) the consummation of a merger or consolidation
of us with or into another entity or any other corporate reorganization. if persons who were not our stockholders immediately prior to
such merger, consolldatron or other reorganlzatlon own immediately after such merger, consolldatron or other reorganlzatron 50%

arent corporation of such continuing or surviving entity; or (b) the sale, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of our

assets. According to Mr. Steinberg’s employment agreement, a “Change of Control” shall not be deemed to have occurred as a
consequence of the initial public offering of our securities.

6)Payments to Managers’ Insurance. a benefit customarily given to executives in Israel, though given by us to all our employees
amount to up to 15.83% of Mr. Steinberg’s base salary. consisting of 8.33% for payments made to a fund to secure payment of
statutory severance obligations. 5% towards pension and up to 2.5% for disability. The Manager’s Insurance fund amounts
reflected in the table represent only the 5% towards pension. These amounts do not include (i) the 8.33% payments to a fund to
secure payment of statutory severance obligations with respect to amounts paid prior to December 31, 2009. which funds are
reflected in the table under the “Statutory Severance” heading. and (ii) payments for disability.

_(7)According to Mr. Steinberg’s employment agreement, if his employment terminates due to death or disability, he or his heirs. as
the case may be. will be entitled to continue to receive his annual salary for three months following his last day of employment.
Except for the foregoing. Mr. Steinberg is not entitled to any other contractual severance amounts.

_(8)Pursuant to Israeli law. employees terminated other than “for cause” receive statutory severance in the amount of one month’s
base salary for each year of work, according to their salary rate at the date of termination (see footnote 6 above).

_9 As of December 31, 2009, Mr. Steinberg was entitled to 17.17 annual vacation days. A maximum of 20 days of unused paid
vacation days may be carried over from year to year by Mr. Steinberg. At the end of each calendar year, all unused vacation days
in excess of 20, are automatically forfeited.

(10)Pursuant to Mr. Steinberg’s employment agreement, we must contribute an amount equal to 7.5% of Mr. Steinberg’s base
salary to a continuing education fund, up to the permissible tax-exempt salary ceiling according to the income tax regulations in
effect from time to time. We make these deposits on a monthly basis. At December 31, 2009, the ceiling then in effect was NIS
15.712 (approximately $4.220). According to Israeli law, Mr. Steinberq is entitled to redeem his continuing education fund once
every six years, independent of his status of employment with us and he has discretion over the type of fund in which the deposits
are invested. The amount set forth in the table reflects the total sum we deposited on behalf of Mr. Steinberg since the beginning of
his employment with us.

_(1 1)Pursuant to Mr. Steinberg’s employment agreement, he may voluntarily terminate his employment with us upon no less than
ninety days’ prior written notice, for any reason. We shall have the right to require Mr. Steinberg to continue working during any
notice period. Should Mr. Steinberg’s employment be terminated without cause at any time during a period of 12 months

subsequent to the effective date of a Change of Control. he will be entitled to 4 months written notice.
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Bruce D. Smith

The following table describes the potential payments and benefits upon employment termination for Bruce D. Smith. our

Chief Strateqgic Officer, pursuant to applicable law and the terms of his employment agreement with us, as if his
employment had terminated on December 31, 2009 (the last business day of the fiscal year) under the various scenarios

described in the column headings as explained in the footnotes below:
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Payments and Benefits Termination(1) Terminationat Will(2) Death orDisability(3) Cause(4) Terminationfollowing a Changeof
Control(5

401(k)(6) $30.323 $30.323 $30.323 $30.323 $30.323
Vacation(7) $17.154 $17.154 $17.154 $17.154 $17.154

Advance notice(8) $59.400 $59.400 — — $59,400
(1)According to Mr. Smith’s employment agreement, we may terminate his employment without cause, at any time, upon three

months notice.

_(2)According to Mr. Smith’s employment agreement, he may terminate his employment. at any time, upon three months notice.

_(S)According to Mr. Smith’s employment agreement, we may terminate his employment if he has been unable to perform the
material duties of his employment due to a disability which (i) continues for more than 90 days and (ii) cannot be reasonably

accommodated.

the habitual neglect or gross failure by Mr. Smith to adequately perform the duties of his position. or of any other contractual or
leqgal fiduciary duty to us.

(5)“Change of Control” is defined in Mr. Smith’'s employment agreement as: (a) the consummation of a merger or consolidation of
us with or into another entity or any other corporate reorganization., if persons who were not our stockholders immediately prior to
such merger, consolldatron or other reorganlzatlon own immediately after such merger, consolldatron or other reorganlzatlon 50%

arent corporation of such continuing or surviving entity; or (b) the sale, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of our
assets. A Change of Control shall not be deemed to have occurred as a consequence of a secondary offering.

_(6)We provide all U.S. employees the opportunity to participate in a 401(k) plan. Under the 401 (k) plan we provide a contribution of

3%. The executive officers participate in the 401(k) plan on the same terms as other eligible employees.

_(7)As of December 31, 2009, Mr. Smith was entitled to 15.65 annual vacation days. A maximum of 20 days of unused paid vacation
days may be carried over from year to year by Mr. Smith. At the end of each calendar year, all unused vacation days in excess of
20, are automatically forfeited.

_(8)Pursuant to Mr. Smith’s employment agreement, he may voluntarily terminate his employment with us upon no less than ninety
days’ prior written notice, for any reason. We shall have the right to require Mr. Smith to continue working during any notice period.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End
The following table sets forth information for the named executive officers regarding the number of shares subject to both
exercisable and unexercisable stock options. as well as the exercise prices and expiration dates thereof. as of
December 31, 2009.
Name Number of Securities UnderlyingUnexercised Options (#)Exercisable Number of Securities UnderlyingUnexercised Options
(#)Unexercisable Option ExercisePrice ($/Sh) OptionExpiration Date
Robert S. Rosenschein 241,964 — 5.06 January 8. 2014

78,333 1,667 (1) 13.75 January 30, 2012

17.187 7.813 (2) 11.61 March 5. 2013

7.083 12,917 (3) 2.95 July 14. 2014

5,625 12,375 (4) 5.77 September 9. 2014

— 32,000 (5) 7.91 September 9. 2015

Steven Steinberg 10.861 — 11.51 August 5. 2013
13,186 — 2.76 August 5. 2013
26.353 — 5.25 November 9. 2014
53,854 1,146 (1) 13.75 January 30, 2012
14.781 6.719 (2) 11.61 March 5. 2013
6.375 11,625 (3) 2.95 July 14, 2014
4,375 9.625 (4) 5.77 September 9, 2014
— 25.000 (5) 7.91 September 9. 2015
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Bruce D. Smith 75.000 — 15.35 July 27, 2015

14,687 313 (1) 13.75 January 30. 2012

13.125 1.875 (6) 9.65 June 21. 2012

14.781 6.719 (2) 11.61 March 5. 2013

6.445 11,755 (3) 2.95 July 14, 2014

5.000 11,000 (4) 5.77 September 9. 2014

— 29.000(5) 7.91 September 9, 2015
(1) Continues to vest monthly in equal installments through January 30, 2010
(2) Continues to vest monthly in equal installments through March 5, 2011
(3) Continues to vest monthly in equal installments through July 14, 2012
(4) Continues to vest monthly in equal installments through September 9, 2012
(5) 25% of the grant will be exercisable on September 9, 2010; 1/36 of the remainder exercisable on each of the following 36
monthly anniversaries
(6) Continues to vest monthly in equal installments through June 21, 2010

Director Compensation

Name Fees Earned Option Awards(*) Total

Mark A. Tebbe (1) $29.056 $31.470 $60.526
Yehuda Sternlicht (2) $35.000 $31.470 $66.470
Mark B. Segall (3) $30.000 $31.470 $61.470
Lawrence S. Kramer (4) $25.778 $31.470 $57.248

W. Allen Beasley (5) $25.000 $31.470 $56.470

R. Thomas Dyal (6) $11.944 $163.577 $175.521

Edward G. Sim (7) $20.667 $33.647 $54.314

* Amounts represent the aggregate grant date fair value in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718.
(1)82.322 options were outstanding as of 12/31/09. of which 58.344 were exercisable as of December 31, 2009.
_(2)49,575 options were outstanding as of 12/31/09. of which 33.879 were exercisable as of December 31, 2009.
_(3)64,575 options were outstanding as of 12/31/09. of which 48.879 were exercisable as of December 31, 2009.
_(4)64,575 options were outstanding as of 12/31/09. of which 48.879 were exercisable as of December 31, 2009.
_(5)43,050 options were outstanding as of 12/31/09. of which 13.004 were exercisable as of December 31, 2009.

(6)Thomas R. Dyal was appointed as a board member on June 10. 2009; 35.875 options were outstanding as of 12/31/09. none of
which were exercisable as of December 31, 2009.

(7)Upon the departure of Mr. Sim from the board of directors on September 9. 2009. he received a benefit in the form of an
extension to the exercisability of his stock options. Mr. Sim’s Option Award amount for 2009 represents the fair value of the

modification to the exercise period associated with the company stock options held by Mr. Sim on September 9. 2009.
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Cash Compensation. Our non-employee directors receive an annual base fee of $20.000. with no additional fee rendered
for attendance at board meetings. In addition to their base fees. directors receive annual fees for membership on our
committees. pursuant to the fee schedule set forth below:

DirectorFee

Base AuditMembership CompensationMembership GovernanceMembership FinancingMembership AuditChair OtherChair Total

Mr. Tebbe20.000 5.000 2.500 2.500 — — 2,500 32,500
Mr. Sternlicht20.000 5.000 — — 2.500 7.500 — 35,000
Mr. Seqall20.000 5.000 — — 2.500 — 2.500 30,000
Mr. Kramer20.000 — 2.500 2,500 — — 2.500 27,500
Mr. Beasley20.000 — 2,500 — 2,500 — — 25,000

Mr. Dyal20.000 — — 2.500 — — — 22,500

Total$120.000 $15.000 $7.500 $7.500 $7.500 $7.500 $7.500 $172.500

We reimburse our hon-employee directors for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the performance of their
duties as directors. Employee directors are not compensated for board services in addition to their reqular employee
compensation.

Equity Compensation. During fiscal year 2009. each non-employee member of the board of directors was eligible to
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receive stock awards under the terms of our 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan. New non-employee directors receive an
initial option grant to purchase 28.700 shares of our common stock with 25% of the shares vesting after one year from the
date of grant and 1/36th of the shares vesting in equal monthly installments thereafter. Continuing non-employee
directors receive an annual option grant of 7.175 shares of common stock. These annual grants are effected on the date
of the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting, with 25% of the shares vesting after one year from the date of grant and 1/36th of the
shares vesting in equal shares monthly thereafter.

There was one new member added to the board of directors during fiscal year 2009. Mr. Dyal. who received a one-time
initial option grant to purchase 28.700 shares of our common stock on June 10, 2009, with an exercise price of $8.20 per
share. based on the NASDAQ closing price on June 9, 2009. The grant date fair value of these options. based on
Black-Scholes valuation model., was $4.60 per option. All other option grants were to continuing non-employee directors.,
including Mr. Dyal. Thus, each non-employee director received options to purchase 7.175 shares of the company’s
common stock, granted on September 9. 2009, with an exercise price of $7.91 per share, based on the NASDAQ closin
price on September 8. 2009. The grant date fair value of these options, based on Black-Scholes valuation model, was
$4.39 per option.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table and accompanying footnotes set forth certain information as of March 8. 2010 with respect to the
ownership of our common stock by:

seach person or group who beneficially owns more than 5% of our common stock;

seach of our directors;

sour Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and our two other highest paid executive officers for fiscal year 2009: and

«all of our directors and officers as a group.

A person is deemed to be the beneficial owner of securities that can be acquired within sixty days from March 8. 2010, as
a result of the exercise of options and warrants. Accordingly. common stock issuable upon exercise of options and
warrants that are currently exercisable or exercisable within sixty days of March 8. 2010. have been included in the table
with respect to the beneficial ownership of the person or entity owning the options and warrants, but not with respect to
any other persons or entities.

Applicable percentage of ownership for each holder is based on 7.958.928 shares of common stock outstanding on March
8. 2010. plus any presently exercisable stock options and warrants held by each such holder. and options and warrants
held by each such holder that will become exercisable within sixty days after March 8. 2010.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner (1) SharesBeneficiallyOwned Percentage of Common Stock

Executive Officers and Directors:

Robert S. Rosenschein 658.590 (2) 7.92%

¢/o Answers Corporation, Jerusalem Technology Park. The Tower. Jerusalem 91481 Israel
Steven Steinberg 142,336 (3) 1.76%

c/o Answers Corporation, Jerusalem Technology Park. The Tower, Jerusalem 91481 Israel
Bruce D. Smith 150,690 (4) 1.86%

Mark A. Tebbe 102,232 (5) 1.27%

Yehuda Sternlicht 35.673 (6) *

Mark B. Segall 56.173 (7) *

Lawrence S. Kramer 53.173 (8) *
Allen Beasley 3.948.539 (9) 33.16%

Thomas R. Dyal 3.932.545 (10) 33.07%

All directors and executive officers as a group (11 individuals) 5.147.406 (11) 40.42%

5% or greater stockholders:

Redpoint Ventures 3.932.545 (12) 33.07%

3000 Sand Hill Road, Building 2. Suite 290. Menlo Park, CA 94025
Marlin Sams Fund. L.P. 683.000 (13) 8.58%

645 Fifth Avenue, New York., New York 10022

Outboard Investments Limited 690,000 (14) 8.67%

BCM Cape Building Leeward Highway. Providencials Turks and Caicos

* less than 1%

(1)Unless otherwise indicated, the business address of each of the following is c/o Answers Corporation, 237 West 35th Street,
Suite 1101. New York, NY 10001.

_(2)Consists of 300.960 shares of common stock and 357.630 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options.

(3)Consists of 6,500 shares of common stock and 135.836 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options.
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_(4)Consists of 15.000 shares of common stock and 135.690 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options.
_(5)Consists of 40,062 shares of common stock and 62.170 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options.
_(G)Consists of 35.673 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options.

_(7)Consists of 5,500 shares of common stock and 50,673 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options.
_(8)Consists of 2,500 shares of common stock and 50,673 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options.
(9)Consrsts of (i) 1,296,667 shares of Common Stock initially |ssuable upon conversron of 58,350 shares of Series A Convertible

issuable pursuant to common stock purchase warrants (the “Class A Warrants ) held by RO LP. (iii) 36.667 shares of Common
Stock |n|t|ally issuable upon. conversron of 1,650 shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by Redpoint Omega Associates, LLC

held by ROA LLC: (v) 23.453 shares of Common Stock initially issuable upon conversion of shares of Series A Preferred Stock
pursuant to dividends paid to Redpoint; (vi) 1,237,727 shares of Common Stock initially issuable upon conversion of 68,075 shares
of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B Preferred Stock”) held by RO LP: (vii) 618.864 shares of Common Stock
issuable pursuant to common stock purchase warrants (the “Class B Warrants”) held by RO LP: (viii) 35.000 shares of Common
Stock initially issuable upon conversion of 1,925 shares of Series B Preferred Stock held by ROA LLC: and (ix) 17.500 shares of
Common Stock issuable pursuant to Class B Warrants held by ROA LLC. Additionally, includes 15,994 shares of Common Stock
issuable upon exercise of options held by Mr. Beasley. RO LP is under common control with ROA LLC. Redpoint Omega. LLC
(“BRO LLC”) is the general partner of RO LP and possesses sole voting and investment control over the shares owned by RO LP
and may be deemed to have indirect beneficial ownership of the shares held by RO LP. Mr. Beasley is Manaqing Director of RO
LLC. As such, Mr. Beasley shares voting and investment power over the shares held by RO LP and may be deemed to have
indirect beneficial ownership of the shares held by RO LP. Mr. Beasley disclaims beneficial ownership of these securities except to
the extent of his proportionate pecuniary interest therein. The securities are owned by ROA LLC as nominee for its
members. Allen Beasley is a Manager of ROA LLC. As such, Mr. Beasley shares voting and investment power over the shares
held by ROA LLC and may be deemed to have indirect beneficial ownership of the shares held by ROA LLC. Mr. Beasley disclaims
beneficial ownership of these securities except to the extent of his proportionate pecuniary interest therein.

(10)Consrsts of (i) 1,296,667 shares of Common Stock initially |ssuable upon conversron of 58,350 shares of Series A Convertible

issuable pursuant to common stock purchase warrants (the “Class A Warrants ) held by RO LP. (iii) 36.667 shares of Common
Stock |n|t|ally issuable upon. conversron of 1,650 shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by Redpoint Omega Associates, LLC

held by ROA LLC: (v) 23.453 shares of Common Stock initially issuable upon conversion of shares of Series A Preferred Stock
pursuant to dividends paid to Redpoint; (vi) 1,237,727 shares of Common Stock initially issuable upon conversion of 68,075 shares
of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B Preferred Stock”) held by RO LP: (vii) 618.864 shares of Common Stock
issuable pursuant to common stock purchase warrants (the “Class B Warrants”) held by RO LP: (viii) 35.000 shares of Common
Stock initially issuable upon conversion of 1,925 shares of Series B Preferred Stock held by ROA LLC: and (ix) 17.500 shares of
Common Stock issuable pursuant to Class B Warrants held by ROA LLC. RO LP is under common control with ROA
LLC. Redpoint Omega, LLC (“RO LLC") is the general partner of RO LP and possesses sole voting and investment control over
the shares owned by RO LP and may be deemed to have indirect beneficial ownership of the shares held by RO LP. Mr. Dyal is a
Managing Director of RO LLC. As such, Mr. Dyal shares voting and investment power over the shares held by RO LP and may be
deemed to have indirect beneficial ownership of the shares held by RO LP. Mr. Dyal disclaims beneficial ownership of these
securities except to the extent of his proportionate pecuniary interest therein. The securities are owned by ROA LLC as nominee
for its members. Mr. Dyal is a Manager of ROA LLC. As such, Mr. Dyal shares voting and investment power over the shares held
by ROA LLC and may be deemed to have indirect beneficial ownership of the shares held by ROA LLC. Mr. Dyal disclaims
beneficial ownership of these securities except to the extent of his proportionate pecuniary interest therein

_(1 1)Consists of 370,522 shares of common stock. 844.339 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options, 1,356,787
shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of Series A Preferred Stock, 1.272.727 shares of common stock issuable upon

conversion of Series B Preferred Stock and 1,303.031 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of common stock purchase
warrants

_(1 2)Based on information included on Schedule 13D/A filed with the SEC on June 16, 2009 and the Company’s records.
_(1 3)Based on information included on Schedule 13D/A filed with the SEC on December 18, 2008
_(1 4)Based on information included on Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on December 18. 2007
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence
There have been no transactions. or proposed transactions, during the last two years. to which we were or will be a party.
n wh|ch any drrector, executlve officer, beneflmal owner of more than 5% of our common stock or any member of the

direct or indirect material interest.
Any future transactions with officers. directors or 5% stockholders will be on terms no less favorable to us than could be
obtained from independent parties. Any affiliated transactions must be approved by a majority of our independent and

disinterested directors who have access to our counsel or independent legal counsel at our expense.
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Our auditors for the year ended December 31, 2009 were Somekh Chaikin, Certified Public Accountants (Israel). a member
firm of KPMG International. We expect that KPMG will serve as our auditors for fiscal year 2010. All of the services
described in the following fee table were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

2008 2009

$3

Audit Fees(1) (2)478.551 256,374

Tax Fees(3)27.570 25.512
Total506.,121 281.886

(1)This cateqgory includes fees associated with the audit of our annual financial statements. review of financial statements included

in our Form 10-Q quarterly reports. and services that are normally provided by the independent reqistered public accounting firm in
connection with statutory and requlatory filings or engagements, for those fiscal years. Includes $113 thousand and $108 thousand

accrued as of December 31. 2008 and December 31, 2009, respectively.

_2 This category also consists of: $77 thousand and $53 thousand of fees relating to the Redpoint transactions during the years

ended December 31, 2008, and December 31. 2009. respectively, and $213 thousand of fees relating to the failed Lexico
acquisition and the terminated follow-on offering of securities during the year ended December 31, 2008.

(3)This category consists of services provided by KPMG for tax compliance. Includes $5 thousand accrued as of December 31,
2008 and December 31, 2009. Consistent with SEC policies and guidelines regarding audit independence. the Audit
Committee is responsible for the pre-approval of all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by our principal
independent accountants on a case-by-case basis. Our Audit Committee has established a policy regarding approval of
all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by our principal independent accountants. In cases involving
engagements of our principal independent accountants that do not exceed $25 thousand. the Audit Committee has
approved delegating to the Committee Chairman the approval of such engagements. as part of the Company’s
pre-approval policy. Our Audit Committee pre-approves these services by category and service. Our Audit Committee has

pre-approved all of the services provided by our principal independent accountants in 2009.
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
1. Financial Statements.
See Index to Financial Statements on page 34
2. Financial Statement Schedule.
None.
3. Exhibits.
See exhibits Index immediately below.
Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (Previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Reqistrant’'s Annual
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-32255) filed March 9. 2009. and incorporated herein by reference)
1A Certificate of DeS|gnat|ons, Number, Voting Powers, Preferences and Rights of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of the

and incorporated herein by reference)
1B Certificate of DeS|gnat|ons, Number, Voting Powers, Preferences and Rights of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of the

No 333-115424) filed May 12, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference)

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of the Registrant (Previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Regqistration Statement on Form
SB-2 (File No. 333-115424) filed July 16, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference)
10.1« 1999 Stock Option Plan of Registrant and form of Option Agreement thereunder (Previously filed as Exhibits 4.58 and 4.5A,
respectively, to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-123185) filed March 8, 2005, and incorporated herein by
reference)
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10.2« 2000 Stock Plan of Registrant and form of Option Agreement thereunder (Previously filed as Exhibits 4.4B and 4.4A,
respectively. to the Reqistration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-123185) filed March 8. 2005. and incorporated herein by
reference)

May 12, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference)
10. 3A« Forms of Stock Ogtlon Agreement under the 2003 Stock Plan coverlng (i) emgloyees of Reqistrant, and (n) officers of

May 12, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference)
10. 4A« Forms of Stock Ogtlon Agreement under the 2004 Stock Plan coverlng (i) emgloyees of Reqistrant, and (n) officers of

333-123185) filed March 8, 2005, and |ncorgorated herein by reference)

10.5« 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan (Previously filed as Annex B to the Reqistrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed May 31,
2005, and incorporated herein by reference)
10.5A« Amendment to 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan approved by the Registrant’s stockholders on June 21,
2006 (Previously filed within the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed May 1, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference)
10.5B« Amendment to 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan approved by the Registrant’s stockholders on September 9,
2008 (Previously filed within the Reqistrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed July 28, 2008, and incorporated herein by reference)
10.5C Amendment to 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan approved by the Registrant’s stockholders on September 9. 2009
(Previously filed within the Reqistrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed July 22, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference)
10.5D« Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan covering Israel-based employees
(Previously filed as Exhibit 10.5A to the Reqistrant's Annual Report on Form 10-KSB (File No. 001-32255) filed March 20, 2006,
and incorporated herein by reference)
10.5E« Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan covering U.S.-based employees (Previously
filed as Exhibit 10.5B to the Reqistrant's Annual Report on Form 10-KSB (File No. 001-32255) filed March 20, 2006. and
incorporated herein by reference)
10.6« Robert S. Rosenschein Employment Agreement (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Reqistration Statement on Form SB-2
(File No. 333-115424) filed May 12, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference)
10.7« Steven Steinberg Employment Agreement (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (File
No. 333-115424) filed May 12. 2004, and incorporated here by reference)
10.8« Jeff Schneiderman Employment Agreement (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Reqistration Statement on Form SB-2
(File No. 333-115424) filed May 12, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference)

10.9« Bruce D. Smith Employment Agreement (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the annual report on Form 10-KSB (File No.
001-32255) filed March 20, 2006, and |ncorgorated hereln by reference)

Statement on Form SB-2 (File No. 333-115424) filed May 12, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference)

10.11 Form of Warrants issued in connection with exercise of Bridge Warrants (Previously filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K/A (File No. 001-32255) filed February 7. 2005, and incorporated herein by reference)
10.12+ Google Services Agreement (“GSA”). GSA Order Form and GSA Order Form Terms and Conditions, all dated January 28,
2005 (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.19 to the Reqistrant's Annual Report on Amendment No. 3 to Form 10-KSB (File No.
001-32255) filed June 7. 2006. and incorporated herein by reference)
10.13+ Amendment No. 1 to Google Order Form and GSA. dated December 20, 2005 (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.20 to the
Reqistrant's Annual Report on Amendment No. 2 to Form 10-KSB (File No. 001-32255) filed May 19, 2006. and incorporated herein
by reference)

10.14+ Amendment No. 2 to Google Order Form. dated January 31, 2006 (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the Registrant's
Annual Report on Amendment No. 2 to Form 10-KSB (File No. 001-32255) filed May 19, 2006. and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.15+ API Agreement with Shopping.com. Inc. dated May 2. 2005 (Previously filed as Exhibit10.22 to the Registrant's Annual
Report on Form 10-KSB (File No. 001-32255) filed March 20. 2006, and incorporated herein by reference)
10.16 Lease Agreement with 35th Street Associates to lease office space in the building known as 237 West 35th Street in New
York. NY. dated April 29, 2005 (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32255) filed May 4,
2005, and incorporated herein by reference)

10. 17 Sugglemental agreement to operating lease agreement between GuruNet Israel Lid.. Answers Corgoratlon S wholly-owned

office space (a summary of the principal terms of this lease was previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No. 001-32255) filed July 28. 2005, and incorporated herein by reference)
10.18« Amendment to Robert S. Rosenschein's Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 27, 2006
(Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32255) filed November 29. 2006, and incorporated
herein by reference)

10.19+ Amendment No. 5 to Google Order Form. dated September 21, 2007 (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32255) filed November 9, 2007, and incorporated herein by reference
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10.20 Amendment No. 7 to Google Order Form and Google Services Agreement, dated October 13, 2009 (Previously filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32255) filed November 9, 2009, and incorporated herein b
reference)

10.21« Amendment to Robert S. Rosenschein's Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 6. 2007
Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32255) filed November 9, 2007. and
incorporated herein by reference)

10.22« Amendment to Steve Steinberg's Employment Agreement, dated as of November 6, 2007 (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.2

to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32255) filed November 9. 2007, and incorporated herein by reference

10.23« Amendment to Jeff Schneiderman's Employment Agreement, dated as of November 6, 2007 (Previously filed as Exhibit
10.3 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32255) filed November 9. 2007, and incorporated herein by reference

10.24« Amendment to Bruce Smith's Employment Agreement, dated as of November 6. 2007 (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to

the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32255) filed November 9, 2007, and incorporated herein by reference

10.25« Amendment to Robert S. Rosenschein's Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2008
Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32255) filed August 4, 2008, and incorporated
herein by reference)

10.26 Securities Purchase Agreement dated June 16, 2008 between Answers Corporation and Redpoint Omega. L.P. and
Redpoint Omega Associates. LLC (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Reqistrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No.
001-32255) filed June 17, 2008. and incorporated herein by reference)

10.27 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant granted to Redpoint Omega, L.P. and Redpoint Omega Associates., LLC on June
16, 2008 (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32255) filed June 17, 2008,
and incorporated herein by reference)

10.28 Warrant Agreement dated as of June 16. 2008 between Answers Corporation and Redpoint Omega, L.P. and Redpoint
Omeaqga Associates, LLC (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Redistrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32255) filed

June 17. 2008, and incorporated herein by reference)
10.29 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of June 16, 2008 between Answers Corporation and Redpoint Omega. L.P. and
Redpoint Omega Associates. LLC (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Reqistrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No.
001-32255) filed June 17, 2008. and incorporated herein by reference)
10.30* Master Services Agreement and Statement of Work with C7 Data Centers. Inc. dated March 31, 2009

10.31* Network Access and Data Center Services Agreement, Service Order, Network SLA and Facility Availability SLA with Net
Access Corporatlon= Inc. dated March 31. 2009

333 115424) filed May 12. 2004, and incorporated herein by reference)
21.1* List of Subsidiaries

23.1* Consent of KPMG Somekh Chalkln, Independent Regqistered Public Accounting Firm

32.2*" Certification of Principa |nan0|al Officer required under Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended. and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

* Filed herewith.

+ Portions of this exhibit were omitted and filed separately with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant
to a request for confidential treatment. A The certifications attached as Exhibit 32 accompany this Annual Report on Form
10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not be deemed "filed"” by Answers Corporation
for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act.

« Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

91Table of Contents SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, the reqgistrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned. thereunto duly authorized.

Answers Corporation

éy: /s/ Robert S. Rosenschein
Robert S. Rosenschein

Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 8, 2010 Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Each person whose signature appears below hereby authorizes Robert S. Rosenschein and Steve Steinberg, or any of
them. as attorneys-in-fact to sign on his behalf. individually. and in each capacity stated below. and to file all amendments
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and/or supplements to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Signature Capacity Date

gRobert S. Rosenschein Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer March 8, 2010
Robert S. Rosenschein (Principal Executive Officer)

gSteven Steinberg Chief Financial Officer March 8, 2010

Steven Steinberg (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

gMark A. Tebbe Director March 8. 2010
Mark A. Tebbe

gYehuda Sternlicht Director March 8. 2010
Yehuda Sternlicht

[s/ Mark B. Seqall Director March 8. 2010
Mark B. Segall

gLawrence S. Kramer Director March 8. 2010
Lawrence S. Kramer

[s/ W. Allen Beasley Director March 8. 2010
W. Allen Beasley

/s/ R. Thomas Dyal Director March 8. 2010
R. Thomas Dyal
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